
Looking Back, 2001 Really Was a Terrific Year

Record Earnings 

Record Asset Levels

Record Deposit Levels

Record Loan Levels

Record Revenue Levels

92% Share Price Increase

Successfully Raised $22 Million Through Common Stock Offering

Agreed to Acquire Wayne Hummer Companies—Full Service Brokerage, 

Asset Management and Mutual Fund Firm

We have always had a policy of presenting our goals, objectives and financial results in an up front manner to our shareholders.
In this annual report, we are confirming our policy of reporting thoroughly the financial results, accounting policies and objectives
of Wintrust Financial Corporation and our operating subsidiaries. We hope you enjoy the report.

All share and per share amounts reflected in this report have been restated to reflect the 3-for-2 stock split, effected in the form of
a 50% stock dividend, declared in January 2002, paid on March 14, 2002 to shareholders of record on March 4, 2002.
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Selected Financial Trends
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All share and per share amounts reflected in this annual report have been restated to reflect the 3-for-2 stock split,
effected in the form of a 50% stock dividend, declared in January 2002, paid on March 14, 2002 to 
shareholders of record on March 4, 2002.



All share and per share amounts reflected in this annual report have been restated to reflect the 3-for-2 stock split, effected in the
form of a 50% stock dividend, declared in January 2002, paid on March 14, 2002 to shareholders of record on March 4, 2002.

Years Ended December 31,

2001 2000 1999 1998 1997
(dollars in thousands, except per share data)

Selected Financial Condition Data  
(at end of year):

Total assets $ 2,705,422 $ 2,102,806 $ 1,679,382 $ 1,348,048 $ 1,053,400
Total deposits 2,314,636 1,826,576 1,463,622 1,229,154 917,701
Total net loans 2,061,383 1,558,020 1,278,249 992,062 712,631
Notes payable 46,575 27,575 8,350 - 20,402
Federal Home Loan Bank advances 90,000 - - - -
Long term debt - trust preferred securities 51,050 51,050 31,050 31,050 -
Total shareholders’ equity 141,278 102,276 92,947 75,205 68,790

Selected Statements of Operations Data:
Net interest income $ 74,014 $ 61,000 $ 47,734 $ 36,764 $ 26,772
Total net revenues 102,812 79,306 57,542 44,839 31,716
Net income 18,439 11,155 9,427 6,245 4,846
Net income per common share - Basic 1.34 0.85 0.76 0.51 0.42
Net income per common share - Diluted 1.27 0.83 0.73 0.49 0.40
Cash dividends declared per common share 0.093 0.067 - - -

Selected Financial Ratios and Other Data:
Performance Ratios:

Net interest margin 3.49% 3.66% 3.54% 3.43% 3.41%
Core net interest margin (1) 3.73 3.91 3.75 3.50 3.41
Non-interest income to average assets 1.24 0.99 0.66 0.69 0.58
Non-interest expense to average assets 2.83 3.12 2.65 3.04 3.18
Net overhead ratio 1.59 2.13 2.00 2.36 2.60
Net overhead ratio - excluding fraud charge 1.59 1.90 2.00 2.36 2.60
Efficiency ratio 63.66 72.33 68.63 79.75 86.03
Return on average assets 0.79 0.60 0.63 0.53 0.56
Return on average equity 15.24 11.51 11.58 8.68 7.88

Average total assets $  2,328,032 $ 1,853,582 $ 1,496,566 $ 1,177,745 $ 858,084
Average total shareholders’ equity 120,995 96,918 81,381 71,906 61,504
Ending loan-to-deposit ratio 89.1% 85.3% 87.3% 80.7% 77.7%
Average loans to average deposits ratio 87.4 87.7 86.6 80.1 80.1
Average interest earning assets to 

average interest bearing liabilities 109.35 107.24 106.96 108.92 109.93

Asset Quality Ratios:
Non-performing loans to total net loans 0.63% 0.62% 0.54% 0.55% 0.59%
Non-performing assets to total assets 0.48 0.46 0.41 0.45 0.40
Allowance for possible loan losses to:

Total loans 0.66 0.67 0.69 0.71 0.72
Non-performing loans 105.63 107.75 126.10 129.66 121.64

Common Share Data at end of year:
Market price per common share $ 20.38 $ 10.63 $ 10.17 $ 13.09 $ 11.33
Book value per common share $  9.72 $ 7.92 $ 7.06 $ 6.15 $  5.65
Common shares outstanding 14,531,665 12,921,592 13,156,207 12,224,919 12,177,784

Other Data at end of year:
Number of:

Bank subsidiaries 7 7 6 6 6
Non-bank subsidiaries 3 3 3 2 1
Banking offices 29 28 24 21 17

(1) The core net interest margin excludes the interest expense associated with the Company’s Trust Preferred Securities.
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Welcome to Wintrust Financial Cor-

poration’s sixth annual report.

2001 was a terrific year for our young

organization and its growing list of sub-

sidiaries.  During each quarter of 2001,

our de novo strategy generated record

levels in the categories of loans,

deposits, assets and net income. This

makes us, once again, one of the fastest

growing bank groups in the U.S.  We

also achieved an annual return on

equity of 15.24%, the highest annual

return on equity in our history, and our

stock price reached record levels in

2001.  And we strategically strength-

ened our full-service financial provider

capabilities with the 2002 acquisition of Wayne Hummer

Investments LLC and Wayne Hummer Management

Company.  Wintrust Financial is well positioned for the

future, and 2002 should be a terrific year as well.

We declared our first stock split in January 2002, a 3-for-

2 split effected in the form of a 50% stock dividend,

which was paid on March 14, 2002.  As required, all

share and per share amounts shown in this report have

been restated to reflect the stock split.

First, Some Thank You’s

As we have done every year

in this report, it is only right

to start off by thanking all of

our dedicated employees

who continue to provide our

customers with the best

service around, bar none.

And we would like to thank

our clients—banking, invest-

ment, trust, premium

finance, employment agen-

cies—for allowing us to

assist them with their finan-

cial affairs.  We would also

like to thank our more than 100 direc-

tors of Wintrust Financial Corporation

and our subsidiaries for their sage

advice and community contacts.  And

finally we’d like to thank our sharehold-

ers, for keeping us focused on what we

do best—profitably growing our fran-

chises by delivering our unique brand

of superior customer service.

We’ve Come A Long Way In Ten
Years

It’s humbling to step back and realize

that our first bank, Lake Forest Bank &

Trust, is only ten years old.   We’ve

come a long way from that small, store-

front operation which we launched in 1991.  Here are

some of our accomplishments:

• We are now a $2.7 billion financial services holding

company.

• We provide commercial and community banking

services to over 50,000 customer households via

our seven bank charters and 29 banking facilities

located in some of the best markets in Chicago.

• We can now provide all of the nonbanking financial

products and services that our customers need,

including retail brokerage, asset management, trust

services, proprietary mutual funds, annuities, insur-

ance and a wide array of other financial products,

through the Wayne Hummer

Companies and Wintrust

Asset Management Company.

This full array of services will

further enhance our ability to

compete against the large

national and regional banks

and brokerage institutions.

• We also augment our earning

assets and fee revenue

through First Insurance Fund-

ing’s premium finance busi-

ness and Tricom’s  payroll

funding and processing busi-

ness for the temporary staffing

industry.
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To Our Fellow Shareholders,
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Building Shareholder Value Via De Novo Growth

Our de novo community banking growth strategy has

served us well.  We have created strong community

banking franchises in affluent, suburban-Chicago mar-

kets and have achieved a leadership market share posi-

tion in all of our mature markets.

Deposit
Market 

Initial Share 
Bank Opening Rank*

1. Lake Forest Bank & Trust—Lake Forest 12/91 2

2. Hinsdale Bank & Trust—Hinsdale 10/93 2

3. North Shore Community Bank & Trust—

Wilmette 09/94 2

4. Libertyville Bank & Trust—Libertyville 10/95 1

5. Barrington Bank & Trust—Barrington 12/96 2

6. Crystal Lake Bank & Trust—Crystal Lake 12/97 3

7. Northbrook Bank & Trust—Northbrook 11/00 7

*FDIC deposit market share as of June 30, 2001

In our fifth full year as a public corporation, we continued

to make terrific progress on all fronts.  By balancing

growth and improved profitability, we have been able to

achieve something that few banks around the country can

boast about these days—compound growth rates in both

earnings and assets that exceed our peer group by a large

margin.   Our core earnings are growing quickly as our

portfolio of de novo banks mature and we reap the bene-

fits of becoming an asset-driven organization.

Compound Growth Rates

1 year 2 year 3 year 4 year

Total Assets 28.7% 26.9% 26.1% 26.6%

Total Loans 32.3% 27.0% 27.6% 30.4%

Total Deposits 26.7% 25.8% 23.5% 26.0%

Total Revenue 29.6% 33.7% 31.9% 34.2%

Net Income 34.0%* 39.9% 43.5% 39.7%

* Excludes non-recurring after-tax charge reported in 2000

Hidden Earnings Potential

Importantly, we believe our de novo growth strategy has

a sizeable hidden earnings potential.  The following

graphs illustrate that as our young banks mature and

preform like our older banks, our internally generated

growth rate should continue and our earnings should

explode.

A number of trends are worth pointing out.  First, we

have generally been able to grow our recently intro-

duced banks at the same historical rate as we grew our

initial banks.  That is because we use the same proven

“recipe” for starting and growing each of our banks.  Sec-

ondly, we have also been able to continue to grow our

mature banks by adding de novo branches in new mar-

kets and improving their market penetration  in existing

markets.  Thirdly, we fully expect that these young

banks will follow the same improving profitability trend

line as their maturing siblings.  The earnings perform-

ance of our young banks are enhanced as they  mature

and grow into their infrastructure. If we can continue to

achieve increased performance as assets grow, the

organization will experience significant increases in

earnings.
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Outpacing The Marketplace

The respected market maker, Stifel, Nicolaus & Com-

pany, recently published data for the 57 bank holding

companies they regularly track and

this data ranks Wintrust Financial’s per-

formance as:

• #1–Five year annual compound

growth rate in revenue

• #1–Five year annual compound

growth rate in earnings per share

While some banks are successful in

growing either earnings by consolidat-

ing and shrinking operations, or grow-

ing assets with significantly reduced

earnings or lowered share price due to

acquisitions, very few have been able

to  simultaneously grow both earnings

and assets at the levels we have

achieved. 

Our stock price ended the year at $20.38 per share, or

92% higher than at December 31, 2000.  We consider

the sharp upward movement in the stock price to be

long overdue recognition of the Company’s growth and

performance.   By contrast, for the year 2001 the Nas-

daq Composite Index was down 21% and the Nasdaq

Bank Index was up only 10%.  We continue to believe

that we can achieve further  increases in shareholder

value over the long term as we continue to execute our

strategy.

What Comes Next

Please enjoy the remainder of our 2001 Annual Report,

which highlights the following areas:

• Overall Financial Performance

• Our Subsidiaries—An Update

• The Newest Family Member—

the Wayne Hummer Companies

• The Future Looks Bright Indeed

• Consolidated Financial 

Statements and Notes

• Report of Independent Auditors 

• Management’s Discussion and 

Analysis

• Directors & Officers

• Corporate Locations

• Corporate Information

We continue to be grateful for your sup-

port of our organization and are enthu-

siastic about making the year 2002 an

even better year in terms of growth in earnings and

assets.  And we look forward to breaking even more

records!

Thank you for being a shareholder.

Sincerely,

John S. Lillard
Chairman

Edward J. Wehmer
President & Chief Executive Officer

David A. Dykstra
Senior EVP & Chief Operating Officer
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In 2001 we again achieved record earnings, surpassed

the $2.7 billion asset level, and recorded 20-40% com-

pound growth rates in all major financial categories.  Here

is an overview summarizing our financial and other

accomplishments during 2001:

• Wintrust generated record earnings

for the year and, in fact, had record

earnings each quarter during the

year.   The Company recorded

earnings of $18.4 million for the

year compared with $11.2 million

in 2000, up 65%.  Excluding a non-

recurring charge in 2000, net

income was up 34% in 2001;

• Net income reached $5.2 million

for the quarter ended December

31, 2001, an increase of 35% over

the $3.8 million recorded in the

fourth quarter of 2000;

• On a per share basis, net income

totaled $0.33 per diluted common

share for the fourth quarter of

2001, up from $0.29 in the fourth

quarter of 2000; and, on a year-to-

date basis, net income per com-

mon share totaled $1.27 compared

to the $0.83 reported in 2000, a

53% increase.  Excluding the afore-

mentioned non-recurring charge in

2000, net income per diluted com-

mon share increased 23%.  Strong

growth, despite increasing our out-

standing shares with a common

stock offering;

• For the twelve months of 2001,

return on average equity increased

to 15.24%, the highest annual

return on equity rate that our young

Company has achieved. By indus-

try standards, that would make us

a “high performing” bank group;

• Total assets rose to $2.7 billion as of December 31,

2001, an increase of $603 million, or 29%, com-

pared to a year ago.  We continue to show strong

and consistent asset growth in each of our banks;

• Total deposits reached $2.3 billion as of year-end

2001, an increase of $488 million, or 27%, com-

pared to December 31, 2000;

• Total loans grew to $2.1 billion as of

December 31, 2001, an increase of

$503 million, or 32%, compared to a

year ago;

• Our net overhead ratio, a measure of

operating efficiency, improved to

1.50% in the fourth quarter of 2001

from 1.90% in the prior year quarter;

• Our asset quality remains strong, as

the level of non-performing assets is

very manageable;

• In late December, Northbrook Bank &

Trust (our newest de novo bank)

moved into its new permanent facil-

ity.  At the end of December 2001, it

has already surpassed the $85 mil-

lion asset level, making this one of

the fastest growing Wintrust commu-

nity banks ever; 

• We continue to be one of the fastest

growing bank groups in the country,

not only in assets, but in earnings and

revenues as well;

• We successfully raised $22 million

through a public offering of our com-

mon stock;

• In January 2002, we approved a 29%

increase in the semi-annual dividend

to $0.06 per common share;

• Also in January 2002, we declared a

3-for-2 stock split of the Company’s

common stock; 

• In December 2001, we announced

an agreement to acquire Chicago-

based Wayne Hummer Investments

LLC, a full service brokerage com-

pany, and Wayne Hummer Manage-

ment Company, an asset

management and mutual fund firm,

for $28 million in cash, stock and

deferred cash payments.  We suc-

cessfully closed this transaction in

February 2002.
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Fourth Quarter “Run Rate” Indicates Even Greater Upside

As a relatively young banking group that is aggressively

growing both assets and earnings, looking at our “total

year” results can understate our true performance.  If we

were to annualize the fourth quarter’s net income, we

would generate net income in 2002 of $20.7 million,

before any improvement in performance.  This would

represent a 12% pro-forma increase in net income over

2001 results, before any expected improvement.  If we

were to factor in growth, which is reasonable given our

track record and the continued maturation of our young

franchise, we conclude that Wintrust Financial Corpora-

tion should have another impressive year in 2002.

Performance Versus Goals

At Wintrust, we set aggressive goals and evaluate our per-

formance versus those goals.  Progressing towards these

financial goals over the next few years will make our

Company a high performing bank relative to its peers.  In

2001, we made good progress towards achieving most

of these goals and expect continued improvement as our

young franchises—the community banks and our other

subsidiaries—grow and mature.  Although our Core Net

Interest Margin has declined slightly this year due to the

precipitous cuts in interest rates by the Federal Reserve

Bank, the following performance statistics indicate that

we are making overall improvement in the financial per-

formance of the Company.

Performance Measurements

Our Year ended 12/31,

Goal 2001 2000 1999

Core Net Interest Margin (1) 4  - 4.5% 3.73% 3.91% 3.75%

Net Overhead Ratio 1.5  - 2.0% 1.59% 2.13% 2.00%

Return on Average Equity 20  -  25% 15.24% 11.51% 11.58%

Return on Average Assets 1.5% 0.79% 0.60% 0.63%

Earnings per Diluted 

Common Share $1.27 $0.83 $0.73

Non-Performing Assets  

as a Percent of Total Assets 0.48% 0.46% 0.41%

(1) By definition, our Core Net Interest Margin excludes the impact of
interest expense associated with the Company’s Trust Preferred
Securities offerings.

Net Interest
Margin and
Other Income

While the 2001

interest rate envi-

ronment was very

volatile with eleven

rate cuts by the

Federal Reserve

Bank during the

year, our net 

interest margin

declined just

slightly and still

was close to goal.

However, our net

interest income increased 21% as compared to the prior

year due to strong growth in our earning asset base.  We

think we are well positioned to deal with this unprece-

dented rate environment and our net interest margin

should benefit in the event that rates begin to rise in 2002

as forecasted.

One of our strategies is to diversify our revenue streams

so we can weather any adverse economic condition that

may impact a sec-

tion of our operat-

ing earnings.  As 

a result of this

strategy, our non-

interest income

continues to grow

and totaled $28.8

million in 2001, an

increase of 57%

over the prior year.

This growth was

mainly a result of a

higher level of fees

from originating

and selling resi-

dential mortgage

loans into the secondary market, an increase in income

from premium finance receivables which were sold to an

unrelated third party, and enhanced fee income received
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from active management of our

investment portfolio.  As a result,

our non-interest revenues com-

prised 28% of our net revenues 

in 2001 compared to 23% in 2000.

Look for non-interest revenues 

to improve in 2002 with the addi-

tion of the Wayne Hummer 

Companies.

Asset Quality Is Good and Stable

Your management understands

that maintaining good credit qual-

ity is extremely important to over-

all profitability.  To that end, we

are pleased to report that non-per-

forming asset levels remain rela-

tively low.  In fact, our ratio of

non-performing assets as a per-

centage of total assets has con-

sistently been below 0.50%.

While you read about many other banks experiencing

higher levels of problem loans, our conservative lending

strategy is resulting in a low level of non-performing

assets. In fact, a small number of credits comprise the

core non-performing loans total.  The small number of

such non-performing loans allows

management to effectively moni-

tor the status of these credits.

Careful underwriting of loans and

diversification of credit risks con-

tribute to the low level of problem

loans.

Successful Capital Offering

In June, we successfully completed

an offering of 1,488,750 shares of

common stock at a price of $16.00

per share which generated net cap-

ital to the company of approxi-

mately $22.2 million.  We are very

pleased with the results of the offer-

ing which was over subscribed.

The additional capital enables us to

continue to grow our community

banking and financial services fran-

chise.  U.S. Bancorp Piper Jaffray

acted as lead manager of the

underwriters for the offering and

Stifel, Nicolaus & Company, Incor-

porated, Advest, Inc. and Howe

Barnes Investments, Inc. acted as

co-managers.

Dividend Increase and a Stock
Split

In January 2002, our Board of

Directors approved a semi-

annual cash dividend of $0.06

per common share outstanding.

This dividend was paid on Feb-

ruary 19, 2002 to shareholders of

record as of February 5, 2002.

This cash dividend, on an annu-

alized basis, represents a 28.6%

increase over the $0.093 per

share common stock dividend

paid during 2001.  Although we have increased the div-

idend rate every year since one was initiated, as a grow-

ing company, we continue to retain approximately 90%

of our core earnings to fund future growth and to build

our franchise.

As previously mentioned, the

Board of Directors also declared a

3-for-2 stock split of the Com-

pany’s common stock to be

effected in the form of a 50% stock

dividend, payable on March 14,

2002, to shareholders of record

as of March 4, 2002.  This is our

first stock split and is designed to

improve the liquidity of the Com-

pany’s stock.
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200 West Burlington Avenue • Tel 630.323.1240
Drive-thru ATM: 5 South Walker Avenue

www.clarendonhillsbank.com©2001 Hinsdale Bank & Trust Company

ANOTHER CLARENDON HILLS
BANK HAS CHANGED ITS SIGN.

PERMIT US TO SUGGEST A MORE APPROPRIATE ONE.
When a bank changes its name, it means more than new signs. It
means new account numbers, new fees, new faces, and different
rules. So now is the time for you to make a change to your
hometown bank. Clarendon Hills Bank is run by your neighbors
with a genuine interest in the community. Our products are
customized, not cookie-cutter, for junior savers, adults, businesses,
and not-for-profits. And no one offers the personalized service we do.

That’s not all. When you open a Clarendon Hills Community
Account® with no minimum balance and no monthly 
service charge1, you’ll get lots of great benefits. You’ll

enjoy discounts at local merchants, a $50 credit toward a safety
deposit box, and we’ll even buy back your old checks at
$0.06 each, up to $15.00!

So check us out. After all, your old bank’s sign change may
also be a sign … for you to change to Clarendon Hills Bank.

PLUS, THROUGH AUGUST 15, IF YOU OPEN A
COMMUNITY ACCOUNT AND AN ADDITIONAL CD 
OF $5,000 OR MORE2, WE'LL GIVE YOU A $25 GIFT

CERTIFICATE TO MESSINA’S ITALIAN CUISINE 
IN DOWNTOWN CLARENDON HILLS.

1Penalty fees, such as overdraft charges and fees for special services, may apply.  2Substantial penalty fee for early withdrawal. Fees may reduce earnings.

Looking for 
your lost banker?

Where have all the bankers gone? To Wauconda Community Bank.
w’re proud to add to our family some of the most experienced bank-
ing professionals in the area, with decades of knowledge and friendly
hometown banking courtesy. 

And they aren’t alone in flocking from those bigger banks – lots of
customers are, too, fed up with impersonal service, different rules,

and constant change. So, if you want a top-notch service from a
locally-run bank who cares about your community, take a look to
where your old banker looked – at Wauconda Community Bank.

You’ll find him or her at Wauconda Community Bank.

Now, you can get a 30-month CD paying
5.00% APY1 through 8/31/01

1Substantial penalty for early withdrawal. Withdrawal penalty may reduce earnings. The annual percentage yield (APY) is calculated on a simple interest rate with interest compounded monthly and paid
monthly and assumes interest remains on deposit for one year. Minimum opening deposit of $1,000. Offer may change, be adjusted or withdrawn at any time.

495 West Liberty Street • 847-487-2500 •  (Drive-Thru) 1180 Dato Lane
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Wintrust Financial Corporation Locations

Main Bank

Branch Office

Drive-thri/Walk-up

Other Subsidiaries

Tricom

McHenry
Bank & Trust

Crystal Lake
Bank & Trust

Barrington
Bank & Trust

Libertyville
Bank & Trust

Deerfield
Bank & Trust

(pending)

Lake Forest
Bank & Trust

Bank of Highwood
-Fort Sheridan 

Highland Park
Bank & Trust

(pending)

Northbrook
Bank & Trust

Hoffman Eststes
Community Bank

Wauconda
Community Bank

The Community Bank
of Western Springs

Hinsdale
Bank & Trust

Riverside
Bank & Trust

Wayne Hummer
Companies

First Insurance
Funding Corp.

North Shore
Community

Bank & Trust

Clarendon Hills Bank 

Current Market Area

Future Market Area

City of Chicago

Milwaukee

Lake

McHenry

Kane

DuPage
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Our Community Banks

Each of our community banks and non-bank sub-

sidiaries recorded record levels in assets and improve-

ments in earnings in 2001. In recognition of the

outstanding performance of our subsidiary manage-

ment teams and board members, we wanted to include

a short update on their achievements in 2001 and plans

for 2002.

Lake Forest Bank & Trust

Lake Forest Bank & Trust® (LFB&T), which celebrated its

10th Anniversary in 2001, reached $702 million in

assets, an increase of $121 million over year ago.  Not

bad growth for the most mature member of the Wintrust

community banks.  LFB&T operated with an impressive

net overhead ratio of less than 1.0% and generated a

1.61% return on average assets in 2001.  LFB&T oper-

ates six banking facilities in Lake Forest, West Lake For-

est, Lake Bluff and Highwood.  As of 06/30/01, FDIC

data indicated that LFB&T was the #2 bank (in deposits)

in its initial market area. The Bank of Highwood-Fort

Sheridan®, a branch of LFB&T that we opened just two

years ago, is now the #1 bank in its market.  In 2002 we

will be launching a new branch, Highland Park Bank &

Trust™, in this community immediately to the south of

our current marketing area.

Hinsdale Bank & Trust

Hinsdale Bank & Trust® (HB&T), which was launched

eight years ago, reached $513 million in assets in 2001,

an increase of $112 million from 2000.  This growth rate

is impressive for the second oldest Wintrust community

bank. HB&T operated with an efficient 1.74% net over-

head ratio and generated a 1.16% return on average

assets in 2001.  HB&T operates five banking facilities in

Hinsdale, Clarendon Hills (Clarendon Hills Bank®), West-

ern Springs (The Community Bank of Western Springs®),

and Riverside.  Our newest branch, Riverside Bank™,

was just opened in January 2002 and is off to a great

start.  HB&T has grown to be the #2 bank in its original

market area and just won the local newspaper’s award

for the best bank in the area.

North Shore Community Bank & Trust

North Shore Community Bank & Trust® (NSCB&T), which

was opened seven years ago, reached $563 million in

assets in 2001, an increase of $113 million over the

prior year.  NSCB&T operated with a 1.24% net overhead

ratio that is well below the Wintrust average, and gener-

ated a 0.98% return on average assets.  NSCB&T oper-

ates seven banking facilities in Wilmette, Winnetka,

Glencoe, and Skokie.  In mid-2001, NSCB&T moved into

a more convenient space with ATM service and safe

deposit boxes in Winnetka, and in early 2003, is plan-

ning to open a new full service facility with a drive-

through facility in Skokie.  NSCB&T has grown to be the

#2 bank in its initial market area.

Libertyville Bank & Trust

Libertyville Bank & Trust® (LB&T), which opened in Octo-

ber 1995, reached $355 million in assets in 2001, an

increase of $68 million from 2000. LB&T operated with

a 1.18% net overhead ratio, well below the Wintrust

average, and generated a 0.85% return on average

assets.  LB&T operates five banking facilities, three

located in Libertyville and two in Wauconda (Wauconda

Community Bank).  In 2002, Wauconda Community

Bank® will be moving into their beautiful new permanent

facility right across the street from its key big bank com-

Our Subsidiaries—An Update

Lake Forest Bank & Trust employees in front of historic vault door

New Riverside Bank facility
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petitor.  LB&T is also in the process of beginning con-

struction on a new permanent full service facility in South

Libertyville.  As of 6/30/01, LB&T had grown to be the #1

bank in Libertyville and the #2 bank in Wauconda.

Barrington Bank & Trust

Barrington Bank & Trust® (BB&T), which was opened five

years ago, reached $314 million in assets in 2001, an

increase of $73 million over year ago. BB&T operated

with a 1.64% net overhead ratio,

and generated a 0.67% return on

average assets—impressive for a

young bank.  BB&T operates two

banking facilities, a main bank in

Barrington and a new branch in

Hoffman Estates.  Hoffman

Estates Community Bank™,

launched in September 2001, is

performing very well and is out-

pacing our original projections.

BB&T has grown to be the #2

bank in Barrington.  Community

Advantage®, BB&T’s condominium

association lending division, has

established itself as a market

leader in the Chicago metropolitan

area.

Crystal Lake Bank & Trust

Crystal Lake Bank & Trust®

(CLB&T), which commenced oper-

ations four years ago, reached

$184 million in assets in 2001, an

increase of $59 million over 2000.

CLB&T has 39 employees and

operated with a 1.68% net over-

head ratio. Additionally, profitabil-

ity was well ahead of budget.

CLB&T operates four banking facil-

ities in Crystal Lake, South Crystal

Lake, and McHenry. McHenry Bank & Trust, launched in

February 2001, is off to a terrific start and is well ahead

of original projections.  In 2002, McHenry Bank & Trust

will be moving into their spacious new permanent facil-

ity.  We’re sure their customers (and employees) will like

moving out of the 750 sq. ft. temporary facility!  By the

end of 2001, CLB&T has grown to be the #3 bank in its

primary market.  CLB&T also launched their Aircraft

Financing Division in 2001, generating $6.5 million in

small aircraft loans.  This is a business that we will be

aggressively growing in 2002.

Northbrook Bank & Trust

Northbrook Bank & Trust™ (NB&T), which was opened in

late 2000, reached $86 million in assets in 2001, an

increase of $64 million over year ago.  This would make

NB&T one of the fastest growing Wintrust banks ever.

Additionally, this bank reached

profitability in the 4th quarter of

2001...another record for a Wintrust

community bank. NB&T’s staff of

dedicated community bankers

moved into its beautiful, new full-

service facility and drive-through in

late 2001 with rave reviews.  Deer-

field Bank & Trust™, a proposed

new branch located directly north

of our marketing area, is in devel-

opment at this time.

Wintrust Asset Management
Company
Wintrust Asset Management Com-

pany provides trust and asset

management services to all of the

communities that the Banks

serve.  We consider these to be

some of the best trust markets in

Illinois.  Despite a difficult invest-

ment environment in 2001, Win-

trust Asset Management grew the

number of accounts and

increased assets under manage-

ment to $440 million. 

Given the demographics of our

Banks’ marketplaces, we look to

trust and asset management rev-

enue to be an ongoing major source of non-interest

income for the Company.  In 2002, Wayne Hummer

Management Company will become part of Wintrust

Asset Management. We believe combining these com-

panies will improve distribution and result in an

enhanced array of investment products and services for

our customers.

New Northbrook Bank & Trust main facility
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MARY SMITH

NEEDED TRUST AND

INVESTMENT SERVICE

FOR HER FAMILY.

SO SHE JOINED OURS.
�

720 12th Street, Wilmette 

Six years ago, Mary Smith’s husband passed away, leaving behind seven children and a family-owned business. Mary needed financial
help and advice, neither of which she got from her big bank. So Mary did what many investors are doing: she switched to Wintrust Asset
Management, the trust and investment affiliate of North Shore Community Bank & Trust.  

When Mary walked through our doors, she discovered a place with a whole different philosophy – a place where the customers come first.
Mary says, “They got to know me, what was going on in my life, and what my needs were. I trust them.” After taking the time to learn about
Mary’s goals and needs we developed a trust and investment plan that was right for her and her family. 

Wintrust Asset Management specializes in trust and investment products and services. Our seasoned professionals deliver a distinguished
level of personalized expertise to all of our clients. You’ll find we’re attentive, responsive, and listen closely to your individual needs.
For a free consultation, or to learn more about our trust and investment services, call Tolbert Chisum at 847-853-2188.

We earned Mary Smith’s trust – we know we can earn yours, too.

Wintrust Asset Management
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First Insurance Funding

FIRST Insurance Funding Corp®.

used 2001 to refocus its business

and improve its customer service

and profitability. FIRST spent much

of the year reevaluating current cus-

tomers and ending relationships

with those that proved to be unprof-

itable or marginally profitable.

FIRST stopped doing business with

more than 1,300 insurance agents,

returning to its original focus on

large and middle-market commer-

cial insurance agencies. 

These changes allowed FIRST to

book 20,000 fewer loans in 2001

than in 2000 and increase its aver-

age loan size by 50%. Even with

these reductions, FIRST’s total loan

volume topped $1.3 billion, a 21%

increase over 2000.  With dramati-

cally improved operations and cus-

tomer service, FIRST will spend

2002 increasing its marketing and

sales efforts. These efforts, com-

bined with an increase in insurance

premiums nationally, should allow

FIRST to grow its volumes by an

even greater percentage in 2002.

Tricom, Inc.

In its second full year as a member of the Wintrust family,

2001 was another profitable year for Tricom.  Even in an

economy where the placement of temporary staffing indi-

viduals by Tricom’s clients was significantly reduced, Tri-

com was able to maintain its net

revenue contribution to the Com-

pany at $8.0 million, compared to

$8.1 million in 2000.  After

expenses, Tricom contributed

$1.2 million of net income to the

Company in 2001, and on a cash

basis, has added approximately

$4.0 million of earnings to our

consolidated results since the

date of our acquisition in October

1999.  Accordingly, we continue

to be pleased with the return on

the investment of Wintrust’s first

acquisition.  Tricom used the

downturn in the temporary

staffing industry in 2001 as an

opportunity to concentrate on

upgrading its systems and deliv-

ery capabilities and stands ready

to handle significant levels of new

business as the economy begins

to recover and temporary staffing

individuals get absorbed back

into the marketplace.
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201 South Hough Street, Barrington, IL 60010 
847-842-4500 | www.barringtonbank.com

©2001 Barrington Bank & Trust Company

Chicago? Ohio, Montreal, or even Raleigh? You might not realize
it, but when you apply for a commercial loan at most of the big
banks, your application is sent to downtown Chicago or all over
the country for approval. 

At Barrington Bank & Trust decisions about your loan are made
at our main bank by our experienced commercial lenders. Sure,
that means quicker approvals for you, but it also means that we
are more personally involved in the loan process from start to finish. 

We handle every type of loan you can imagine, including:
• Working Capital Lines of Credit
• Equipment Loans
• Construction Loans
• Commercial & Industrial Mortgages
• Land Development Loans
• Cash Management Services

Don’t chase your loan application downtown or across the country
and Canada. Give us a call for your next commercial loan. Feel
free to contact Brad Stetson at 847.842.4642, Jon Stickney at
847.842.4673, Chris Marrs at 847.842.4675 or Linda J. Schiff at
847.842.7980. 

Where are your loan decisions being made?

Member FDIC

The Best Commercial Bank for Business in the Northwest Suburbs

Pictured above is Barrington Bank and Trust’s Commercial Banking Team, listed
from left to right:  Jon Stickney,   Chris Marrs,   Brad Stetson,   Linda J. Schiff

Main Bank: 70 North Williams Street: 815-479-5200

South Crystal Lake: 1000 South McHenry Avenue: 815-479-5715

Drive–Thru: 27 North Main Street

www.crystallakebank.com

Unlike those big banks, we treat you like, well, you know.

When you bank with us, you’re at home.

When it comes to customer service, only one bank is king. That’s because 

at Crystal Lake Bank & Trust we treat you like a neighbor, not a number.

Too bad those big banks don’t do the same. They put profits before

customers, stockholders before service. But at our bank, things are different.

We’re locally managed, so we care about our community and the people

who live here. In fact, we not only make you feel like royalty, but at home. 

Member FDIC

New accounts only. 1. Minimum opening deposit of $100. Fees, such as overdraft charges and fees for special services may apply. A $10 fee will be imposed if account is closed within first six months.
2. Offer requires the opening of a new Crystal Lake Checking Account. Certificate good for $40 to Christophe’s Restaurant in Crystal Lake and two movie tickets to Regal Cinemas. Only one certificate
per household. This promotion cannot be combined with any other offer. Offer expires 2/28/02. Offer may be withdrawn at any time.  ©2002 Crystal Lake Bank & Trust Company

And get a Gift Certificate2 to Christophe’s Restaurant
and two tickets to Regal Cinemas, plus:

Open a Crystal Lake Checking Account®1

• FREE checking account
• Unlimited check writing
• No minimum balance 

• BONUS rates on CDs 
• FREE first order of checks 
• FREE on-line banking and more
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Who is WHI?

Since 1931, Chicago-based Wayne Hummer Investments

LLC® (WHI) has been providing a full-range of investment

products and services tailored to meet the specific

needs of individual investors throughout the country.

Wayne Hummer is a well respected name in the broker-

age business that services a very loyal, affluent client

base.  WHI also operates an office in Appleton, Wiscon-

sin that was opened in 1936.  WHI has approximately

150 employees, including over 40 active brokers, and is

a member of the New York Stock Exchange, the Chicago

Stock Exchange, the American Stock Exchange and the

National Association of Securities Dealers.

WHI’s goal is to help clients define and achieve their

financial goals. Whether they are setting their sights on

a comfortable retirement, planning to send their children

to college, or wanting extra monthly income, WHI is

there to help fulfill those dreams.  WHI’s success stems

from the long-lasting relationships that their Investment

Executives develop with clients. Getting to know clients

by understanding their individual goals, risk tolerance,

and investment philosophy is an objective that each

WHI Investment Executive shares. Because clients

know that advice is always given with their best interest

in mind, they have placed a high level of trust with WHI

and their Investment Executive.

In 2001, the number of WHI client households is esti-

mated to be in excess of 20,000, with over $4 billion in

customer assets in custody.  WHI’s Appleton, Wisconsin

branch has a client base of over 4,000 accounts and

serves the greater Appleton area with over 100 years of

investment experience on staff.

Who is WHMC?

Wayne Hummer Management Company® (WHMC), estab-

lished in 1981, is the investment advisory affiliate of

Wayne Hummer Investments and is advisor to the Wayne

Hummer family of mutual funds.   The Wayne Hummer

family of funds include the Wayne Hummer Growth Fund,

the Wayne Hummer CorePortfolio Fund, the Wayne Hum-

mer Income Fund, and the Wayne Hummer Money Market

Fund.  Both the Growth Fund and the CorePortfolio Fund

have been recognized as outperforming mutual funds

within their respected categories.

With assets in excess of $1.0 billion, the investment man-

agement group provides advisory services to individuals

and institutions, municipal and tax-exempt organizations,

including approximately $600 million in the Wayne Hum-

mer Mutual Funds. Additionally, WHMC also provides port-

folio management and continuous financial supervision

for a wide-range of pension and profit sharing plans.

These defined portfolios are managed for public and pri-

vate clients, bank portfolios and trusts, endowments and

foundations, and both taxable and tax-deferred portfolios

of individual investors. WHMC managed over $400 million

in these portfolios at the end of 2001. 

The Newest Family Member—The Wayne Hummer Companies

Directors of Wayne Hummer Investments

Wayne Hummer Management Company Officers

14
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Who is FI?

Focused Investments LLC®, a NASD member

broker/dealer, is a wholly owned subsidiary of WHI and

provides a full range of investment solutions to clients

through a network of community-based financial institu-

tions throughout the Midwest. We anticipate continued

growth and enhanced resources as a result of synergies

created through the Wintrust affiliation. Focused Invest-

ments will continue to operate as a wholly owned subsidiary

of WHI.

What Are The Terms of the Transaction?

The purchase price of $28 million was comprised of $8

million of cash, 762,742 shares of Wintrust’s common

stock (valued at $15 million) and $5 million of deferred

cash payments to be made over a three-year period

subsequent to the closing date.  We agreed to also pay

additional contingent consideration upon the attainment

of certain performance measures over the next five

years.  And to ensure continuity, all former principals of

WHI and WHMC agreed to sign management employ-

ment contracts.

The transaction is expected to be slightly accretive to

our Wintrust 2002 earnings per share. Additional posi-

tive impact should be experienced to the extent that

amounts currently invested in the money market mutual

fund are transferred into bank deposits and invested in

earning assets at Wintrust banks.

How will the merger work?  What branding will be
used by the resulting companies?

The Wayne Hummer brand name is well known and

respected in the Chicago metropolitan area and its client

base is nationwide.  Accordingly, it makes sense for us

to continue to use the Wayne Hummer name in our bro-

kerage and asset management operations. As such,

during 2002, we will merge the asset management

business of WHMC and Wintrust Asset Management

Company and create a new name for the combined

asset management business using the Wayne Hummer

branding.  WHI will continue operating as Wayne Hum-

mer Investments and will be managed by the current

WHI management team. 

What are the benefits to Wintrust Financial Corpora-
tion shareholders and customers?

For Wintrust, this was a transaction with a well-

respected Chicago firm with consistent profitability, a

solid investment performance, a loyal client base, and a

strong corporate culture.  It is fully supported by both

parties.  The additional revenue provided by the Wayne

Hummer Companies will further diversify Wintrust’s rev-

enue stream and is expected to result in non-interest

income in excess of 40% of total net revenues, up from

the current level of 28%.

Currently, the Wayne Hummer Companies have over

$400 million in a money market mutual fund  that would

be beneficial to eventually migrate into deposits in the

Wintrust banks.  Using these deposits to fund our

excess loan production would generate attractive

spreads and could significantly increase our earnings

per share.  To accomplish this, we plan to offer a supe-

rior market-rate, FDIC-insured, cash management

account in which Wayne Hummer customers can invest

their liquid assets.  We will also offer large balance

clients the opportunity to receive up to $700,000 in FDIC

insurance by depositing these excess balances in up to

seven Wintrust banks.  This extra-FDIC insurance prod-

uct takes strategic advantage of Wintrust’s seven (and

eventually more) bank charters.

15
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Wintrust will now be able to offer full-service WHI bro-

kerage services and WH mutual funds to its bank and

trust/investment customers.  The addition of these serv-

ices allows the Wintrust organization to take another big

step forward in its efforts to be

a “one-stop” shop for all of its

customers’ financial needs.

Our Wintrust banks will also

benefit from offering additional

banking deposit and loan prod-

ucts to over 20,000 Wayne

Hummer customer house-

holds. This merger will also

help make Wintrust’s trust and

investment business profitable

and will result in over $1.0 bil-

lion in assets under direct man-

agement including the existing

mutual funds.

What are the benefits to
Wayne Hummer owners and
customers?

This merger gives Wayne Hum-

mer Companies the opportunity

to expand market share and

earnings at a much faster pace

by joining Wintrust Financial

and its group of community

banks.  Wintrust’s seven banks

and 29 banking facilities pro-

vide additional distribution

channels in high potential afflu-

ent markets.  In addition to the

aforementioned market-rate

FDIC insured cash manage-

ment account which will pro-

vide up to $700,000 of FDIC

insurance per customer,cross

selling WHI brokerage and the

WHMC family of mutual funds

to Wintrust’s 50,000 customer households represents a

sizeable growth opportunity.

We will be able to offer trust and estate services via our

trust company powers to Wayne Hummer’s asset man-

agement and brokerage clients.  These services are cur-

rently outsourced by the Wayne Hummer Companies.

Net, Net—Win, Win

This transaction is a win-win sit-

uation for both companies and

more importantly for our cus-

tomers.  Wintrust is partnering

with a company that has a ter-

rific history and operating cul-

ture, outstanding growth and

profit potential, and a dedicated

management team.  We are

both very excited about this

new relationship.

The union of our two compa-

nies just feels like a good fit.

Wayne Hummer and Wintrust

are organizations that share

similar values. Wayne Hum-

mer’s beliefs regarding the

importance of superior cus-

tomer service, staying ahead of

the curve on technology, and

following the highest ethical

standards makes for a good fit.

A strong corporate culture and

employee loyalty are pervasive

in both companies.  And,

importantly, there is very little

overlap in the products and

services that the merging 

firms offer.  It looks like a

win/win for both organizations,

our employees, and our 

customers.

Member FDIC

* The North Shore Community Bank and Trust 
Junior Savers Club is for kids 18 and under.
©2002 North Shore Community Bank & Trust Company

Sure, Junior Savers enjoy
saving money.

But that’s not all they enjoy.

Wilmette: 1145 Wilmette Avenue, 847-853-1145
Winnetka: 576 Lincoln Avenue, 847-441-2265

Glencoe: 362 Park Avenue, 847-835-1700
Skokie: 5049 Oakton Street, 847-933-1900

www.nscbank.com

Pumpkin patches. Parades. Carnivals. Sure, learning the value of saving

money is important, but kids know being a Junior Saver is also about

having fun. That’s why our Junior Savers enjoy a full year’s schedule 

of free Club Events, contests, and giveaways. Plus, they get a FREE Junior

Savers Club Bank and Club T-Shirt, a FREE $5 Blockbuster® gift card, and FREE

“Homer Dollars” for ice cream and other tasty treats with every $100 deposit.

Each Junior Savers account*has no service charge, no minimum deposit, and the

highest interest rate for any kids account in town. Just stop by the bank and 

ask how to join our family of Junior Savers. Because when it comes to helping

kids save money and have fun, no one does it better or bigger than North Shore Community Bank.

“Hey, kids! Here’s your
chance to join the

coolest club in town.”
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and Philip W. Hummer (WHMC)
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Profitable Growth Strategies

At Wintrust, we believe that profitable growth is a key

ingredient in building long-term shareholder value.

Future growth will be fueled by adhering to a variety of

proven successful de novo strate-

gies and new acquisition-related

strategies that will enable us to

gain market share in key areas

and continue this growth. Some

of these strategies may include:

• Growing our existing bank

and investment franchises—

Increase market share by 1)

cross selling existing cus-

tomers additional banking,

investment, trust, and other

financial services, 2) attract-

ing new customers, and 3)

adding new branches and

distribution channels;

• Creating new de novo fran-

chises—Introduce new banks

in high opportunity markets

and create new earning asset niches;

• Partnering with or acquiring existing community

banks in high opportunity markets;

• Partnering with or acquiring non-banking financial

services firms to expand our portfolio of investment

services, asset niches, and fee revenues;

• Being “asset driven”—Generating excess earning

assets to augment our community bank lending;

• Continuing to diversify our revenue streams by start-

ing up or acquiring fee based businesses;

• Bringing money market balances at Wayne Hummer

into our banks to profitably fund our excess loan

volume; and,

• Utilizing the internet as an additional distribution

vehicle for current products and a portal to market-

ing and distributing new products.

Growing Our Bank and Investment Franchises—A
Huge Opportunity

We have built our de novo franchises from scratch with

aggressive, hard-hitting consumer marketing that

includes both customer acquisition and cross selling

programs.  With our acquisition of the Wayne Hummer

Companies, we have significantly increased the cross

sell opportunities.  Now we can offer our banking cus-

tomers a full range of non-bank financial services,

including retail brokerage, managed investments,

mutual funds, annuities, insurance

and a wide array of other financial

services products.  And we can

offer our Wayne Hummer cus-

tomers banking and trust products

and services.  We also will grow

the Wayne Hummer brand with

awareness building marketing, tar-

geted product marketing, and

expansion of Wayne Hummer dis-

tribution channels to our affluent

bank locations.  We believe this

represents a huge growth oppor-

tunity for the banks and our invest-

ment companies.

De Novo Expansion

We continue to selectively expand

our current franchises into new

high opportunity market areas.

We have generally allocated approximately ten cents

per share to de novo growth.  Depending on the oppor-

tunities available in the marketplace, on occasion we

may deviate from that amount, but we believe that level

of investment is appropriate. Clearly, the additional mar-

ket share garnered by this expansion should add to

future earnings growth and increased franchise value.

In 2001, we opened the following de novo banks and

branches:

• McHenry Bank & Trust (branch of Crystal Lake Bank

& Trust)

• Hoffman Estates Community Bank (branch of 

Barrington Bank & Trust)

• Launched Northbrook Bank & Trust new permanent

facility

1375 Palatine Road, Hoffman Estates, IL 60195

OPENING SOON Member FDIC

If you’re looking for a true community bank, your search is about to come to an end. We’re Hoffman Estates
Community Bank, and we will soon be opening our doors for business. But we’re not a new kind of bank;
we’re a very old-fashioned kind of bank … One that cares about our customers, that puts people before
profits, and strives to be a part of the community, not a part from it. 

We’ll be a place where your entire family feels comfortable. We’ll offer products and services especially
created for all ages, from young children to older folks. And you can depend on us to bring you these
customized products at the best possible rates and lowest fees around.

You’ll also really like our friendly, personal staff: experienced bankers who are involved in the community.
That’s because we’re locally-managed, run by your neighbors and by folks you see everyday. So you’ll
know when someone says, “May I help you?” they really mean it. 

We’re Hoffman Estates Community Bank. And if you’re looking for a true hometown bank, we think we’ll
be exactly what you’re looking for. 

Help! I’m tired of those impersonal big

banks who put profits before people,

fees before customers. Is there a bank

out there who cares about our community?

Who has bankers who are experienced,

but also friendly and take pride in 

personal attentive service and will treat

me with respect? Is there a bank that

has services and products designed for

me? I want a bank that, frankly, isn’t like

every other bank. I want a bank I can

truly call my hometown bank.

TM

The Future Looks Bright Indeed
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In the near future we plan to open the following banks

and branches: Riverside Bank (a branch of Hinsdale

Bank & Trust that opened in January 2002), Highland

Park Bank & Trust (a branch of Lake Forest Bank &

Trust), North Shore Community Bank & Trust-Skokie (a

full service location including a drive through), Wau-

conda Community Bank’s (a branch of  Libertyville Bank

& Trust) new permanent facility, Libertyville Bank & Trust-

South Libertyville’s full service location, McHenry Bank &

Trust’s (a branch of Crystal Lake Bank & Trust) new per-

manent facility, and  bank #8, We have also purchased

property for Deerfield Bank &

Trust, a branch of Northbrook

Bank & Trust.

Potential Acquisitions

We continue to evaluate other

Chicagoland community banks

with the goal of partnering with us

by merging their community-

based bank or branches into the

Wintrust family of banks.  As we

have said in the past, Wintrust is a

logical partner for many smaller

community banks because of the

liquidity and value-added opera-

tional benefits we could bring,

and the fact that we would allow

the bank to continue to operate

locally with their own name and

management team.

In addition to the Wayne Hummer acquisition, we are

looking at other managed investments acquisitions that

will “bulk up” this important fee generator.  We also con-

tinue to look to add earning asset niches, either as start-

up operations or through acquisition.  This type of

growth will add diversified earning asset and fee-based

business niches to supplement Wintrust’s banking rev-

enues.

As our stock price rises and our “currency” becomes

more valuable, acquisitions become a more viable

avenue for future growth and enhanced shareholder

value.  Your management team and Board of Directors

are dedicated to being disciplined with regard to pricing

potential acquisitions to be accretive to earnings per

share.  We will keep evaluating potential acquisitions

and will update you regularly on our progress.

Earning Asset Niches—A Key Strategy To Fuel Our
Growth

Experience tells us that the typical community bank can

generate loans from local consumers and small busi-

nesses that represent about 60% of their lending capac-

ity without compromising credit quality.  That’s because

in most suburban communities, there are more con-

sumer and small business deposit

opportunities than there are loans.

Most community banks can’t over-

come this limitation and are

unable to grow beyond a certain

size.

We augment our community

banks’ loan portfolios with addi-

tional earning assets generated by

our specialty earning asset niches.

This not only allows us to improve

the profitability of our community

banks by optimizing their earning

asset base, but also allows them

to diversify their loan portfolios.  Our

ability to compete  in the future will

continue to be aided by this asset

strategy.

We generate additional loan vol-

ume from a number of specialty

The longer you wait, the worse the problem can get.
But there is a solution. Community Advantage is the
first choice of associations needing financial backing for
a large-scale project or repair. That’s because we go that
extra mile to make your loan experience understandable

and simple. With less paperwork, quicker turnaround,
and competitive programs and rates. So, if you’re
leaning toward a new project, call Linda J. Schiff,
Senior Vice President at 847-842-7980, or call Pete
Santangelo, Assistant Vice President at 847-842-4678.

Putting off your repairs?

Member FDIC
©2001 Barrington Bank & Trust Company

Commercial and 
commercial real estate

Home equity

Residential real estate

Installment and other

Premium finance receivables

Indirect auto

Tricom finance receivables

48%

1%9%
17%

3%

9%

13%

Loans
December 31, 2001
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earning asset niches, most of which were developed

internally:

• Commercial premium finance lending

• Temporary staffing industry financing (acquisition)

• Indirect auto lending

• Equipment leasing (acquisition)

• Condominium and association lending

• Mortgage warehouse lending

• Small craft aviation lending

The Benefits Of Being “Asset Driven”

In 2001, with the help of our growing earning asset

niches, we again accomplished our objective of being

an “asset driven” organization.  Having an excess of

loans is beneficial to the Company for a number of rea-

sons.  It allows us:

• To be more profitable and to fund more aggressive

growth. Excess loan volume allows us to immedi-

ately invest any new deposit dollars in loans that

have higher interest rates than alternative short-term

investments. This allows us be more aggressive in

key markets where we want to increase market

share because we are generating sufficient higher

yielding assets to invest the new deposits;

• To increase revenues on excess loan volumes. In

2001, we sold approximately $245 million of pre-

mium finance receivables to an unrelated financial

institution.  We anticipate continuing this practice in

the future as we balance growth and earnings.  We

should note that these assets are also profitable

sources of interest income and to the extent we

have the future liquidity, capital and opportunity to

absorb these excess loan volumes, we could main-

tain such assets on our books at even higher profit

levels.  Specifically, these assets are well suited for

investment of the funds that we anticipate migrating

from the Wayne Hummer money market fund.

Accordingly, as the fund migration occurs, the level

of loan sale activity could be less in 2002 than in

2001; and

• To diversify our asset mix into various different loan

types, thereby reducing any concentration of credit risk.

.community banking™, Wintrust Style

Our innovative on-line financial services called .commu-

nity banking™ helps customers track and control

finances, all from the comfort of their home or office, at

any time. In 2001, we made a series of enhancements to

our community banks’ on-line financial services including:

• Check Register—which allows users to better man-

age payments, maintain their checkbook online,

help reconcile these items with their bank state-

ments, and store up 16 months of checking or

money market account history;

• On-line Mortgage Application—which allows users to

easily enter their home loan application data on-line

and provide quick on-line approval;

• Customizable User ID—which allows users to change

their User ID’s from the bank assigned User ID; and

• Longer Deposit History—deposit history can now be

queried for last posting date, last 7 days, last 75

transactions, current statement, prior statement, or

all history that is available on-line.

Other Planned Technology Initiatives

Our Wintrust banks are firm believers in the value of

investing in technology to improve our services and

improve our operating efficiency.   To that end we have

created a Wintrust Information Technology Services

(WITS) operational facility in Villa Park, Illinois, to house

the operational end of a number of technology initiatives.

Here are our 2002 consumer technology initiatives:

• Statement Processing—new internally produced

statement and notices

• Imaging—historical imaged checks and statements

• CheckManager Plus—a better way to manage your

checks via optional imaged checks with statement

• Annual CD ROM—historical statements and check

images
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We also plan to introduce a number of technology initia-

tives for our business customers:

• Improved retail lock box services—additional cash

management services

• i-businessbanking.com—improved on-line business

banking services

• E-mail statements and check images

• Quarterly and/or annual CD ROM—historical state-

ments and check images

MaxSafe™ CD—The Right Investment Alternative
When Both High Return And Added Security Are
Important

In 2002, we will begin testing an innovative new kind of

investment account—the MaxSafe CD—with seven

times the security of a normal CD.  This product lever-

ages our seven bank charters by “waterfalling” deposits

in excess of $96,000 into other Wintrust community

bank account(s).  Seven banks equal seven times the

usual level of FDIC insurance for maximum protection.

And we can increase this coverage in the future as we

add new banks.  In today’s volatile marketplace, the

added security of up to $700,000 in FDIC insurance

offers a very relevant and unique value-added benefit.

Our plans are to initially introduce this idea as a value-

added jumbo CD, but eventually rollout this service to

other products—e.g. cash management and money

market accounts.

Investor Relations Program

In 2002, we are continuing our investor relations pro-

gram which includes:  presentations at investor confer-

ences, providing interviews and story ideas to financial

publications, distributing investor packages to interested

investors through various programs, and making pre-

sentations to interested institutional buyers.  We believe

that communicating our story is important to creating

awareness about our Company and thereby creating

demand for our stock which will help us raise capital on

a cost effective basis.

We have received a lot of nice compliments on our new

investor relations web site (www.wintrust.com) com-

plete with a new look and sophisticated navigation sys-

tem and many new features, including authorizing

Wintrust to automatically e-mail interested investors key

reports and updates when they become available.

Currently, the following respected investment firms are

now writing research on Wintrust and all are currently

recommending the purchase of Wintrust common stock.

• Advest, Inc.

• Howe Barnes Investments, Inc.

• Midwest Research

• RBC Dain Rauscher Capital Markets

• Stifel, Nicolaus & Company, Inc.

• U.S. Bancorp Piper Jaffray

Summary

In summary, we are pleased with the Company’s signifi-

cant growth in 2001.  This was a very good year in

terms of executing our strategy of balancing growth of

the balance sheet with growth in earnings.  For the

future, we are confident in our corporate strategy and

believe we have strong momentum going into 2002.

We are grateful for your support of our organization and

are enthusiastic about making the year 2002 another

good year in terms of growth in earnings and assets.

Introducing our MaxSafe™ CD1, 
with up to $700,000 of FDIC Insurance2.
When high return and added security are important, you need a 
MaxSafe™ CD1. MaxSafe is the innovative and unmatched investment 
alternative that provides up to seven times the security of a normal CD. 

In today’s volatile marketplace, the added security of $700,000 in FDIC 
insurance per person means peace of mind. How can we offer this
unparalleled level of protection? By depositing your funds across 
our seven affiliated community banks. Seven banks equals seven
times the usual $100,000 level of FDIC maximum protection.

And receiving this maximum safety is easy. Just stop by the bank 
and talk to one of our personal bankers. Ask to open a MaxSafe™

CD1 with a minimum deposit of $100,000, and keep your nest egg 
safe and growing.

3.25% APY
3

for 12 months
New money only.  1. This certificate of deposit program will deposit funds into interest-bearing FDIC-insured
certificates of deposit at Wintrust Financial Corp. affiliated banks.  2. Insurance coverage is subject to other
deposits you hold at each participating bank in the same ownership capacity.You should monitor deposits 
made by you in this program to determine the extent of FDIC insurance coverage available.  3. Rates are
accurate as of 2/01/02 and are subject to change without notice. The Annual Percentage Yield (APY) 
is calculated on a simple interest rate with interest compounded monthly and paid monthly and assumes 
interest remains on deposit for one year. Substantial penalty for early withdrawal. Fees may reduce
earnings. Minimum deposit of $100,000 required to obtain stated APY. Offer expires 4/30/02.
Offer may be withdrawn at any time.
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When you bank with us, you’re at home.

Is this the only face you know at your bank?

A familiar smile, a sincere hello. We believe these things are as important 

from your bank as superior rates and products. But those big banks must

disagree, what with their reducing staff, constant turnover and anonymous

employees. Walk through our doors, however, and you’re greeted by people

you know, and who know you. That’s because we’re locally run and managed 

by people who feel you should be as comfortable here as you are at home.

Those big banks? Well, maybe it’s time they took a long look in the mirror.

50+
Checking 
Account1

If you’re fifty years of age or older, our

ProspectTMAccount offers great perks to

make your life easier. Get FREE Checks,

Bonus rates on CDs and more. FREE
Member FDIC 1Overdraft charges and fees for special services may apply. ©2002 Hinsdale Bank & Trust Company

200 West Burlington Avenue, 630-323-1240
Drive-thru ATM: 5 South Walker Avenue

www.clarendonhillsbank.com
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WINTRUST FINANCIAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CONDITION

(In thousands, except share data)
December 31,

2001 2000
Assets
Cash and due from banks $      71,575  65,413
Federal funds sold and securities purchased under resale agreements 51,955 164,641 
Interest bearing deposits with banks 692 182 
Available-for-sale securities, at fair value 385,350 193,105

Loans, net of unearned income 2,061,383 1,558,020 
Less: Allowance for possible loan losses 13,686 10,433 
Net loans 2,047,697 1,547,587 

Premises and equipment, net 99,132 86,386
Accrued interest receivable and other assets 38,936 34,722 
Goodwill and other intangible assets, net of accumulated 

amortization of $1,918 in 2001 and $1,233 in 2000 10,085 10,770 

Total assets $ 2,705,422 2,102,806  

Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity
Deposits:
Non-interest bearing $ 254,269 198,319 
Interest bearing 2,060,367 1,628,257 

Total deposits 2,314,636 1,826,576 

Short-term borrowings 28,074 43,639
Notes payable 46,575 27,575
Federal Home Loan Bank advances 90,000 -
Long-term debt - trust preferred securities  51,050 51,050 
Accrued interest payable and other liabilities 33,809 51,690 

Total liabilities 2,564,144 2,000,530 

Shareholders’ equity:
Preferred stock, no par value; 20,000,000 shares authorized, of which 100,000  

shares are designated as Junior Serial Preferred Stock A; no shares issued and  
outstanding at December 31, 2001 and 2000 - -  

Common stock, no par value; $1.00 stated value; 30,000,000 shares authorized;
14,531,665 and 13,285,042 issued at December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively 14,532 13,285 

Surplus 97,956 79,282 
Common stock warrants 99 100 
Treasury stock, at cost; 363,450 shares at December 31, 2000 - (3,863)
Retained earnings 30,995 13,835
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (2,304) (363)

Total shareholders’ equity 141,278 102,276 

Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity $ 2,705,422 2,102,806 

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements

Consolidated Financial Statements
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WINTRUST FINANCIAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

(In thousands, except per share data)

Years Ended December 31,
2001 2000 1999

Interest income
Interest and fees on loans $  149,057 130,910 97,270 
Interest bearing deposits with banks 10 26 204 
Federal funds sold and securities purchased under resale agreements 5,632 1,627 1,536 
Securities 11,756 15,621 10,321 

Total interest income 166,455 148,184 109,331 

Interest expense
Interest on deposits 83,503 78,670 56,026
Interest on short-term borrowings and notes payable 2,845 4,371 2,633
Interest on Federal Home Loan Bank advances 942 - -
Interest on long-term debt - trust preferred securities 5,151 4,143 2,938

Total interest expense 92,441 87,184 61,597 

Net interest income 74,014 61,000 47,734 
Provision for possible loan losses 7,900 5,055 3,713 

Net interest income after provision for possible loan losses 66,114 55,945 44,021 

Non-interest income
Fees on mortgage loans sold 7,831 2,911 3,206 
Service charges on deposit accounts 2,504 1,936 1,562 
Trust and asset management fees 1,996 1,971 1,171 
Gain on sale of premium finance receivables 4,564 3,831 1,033 
Administrative services revenue 4,084 4,402 996 
Net available-for-sale securities gains (losses) 337 (40) 5 
Fees from covered call options 4,344 882 441 
Other 3,138 2,413 1,394 

Total non-interest income 28,798 18,306 9,808 

Non-interest expense
Salaries and employee benefits 35,628 28,119 20,808 
Equipment expense 6,297 5,101 3,199
Occupancy, net 4,821 4,252 2,991
Data processing 3,393 2,837 2,169 
Advertising and marketing 1,604 1,309 1,402 
Professional fees 2,055 1,681 1,203
Amortization of intangibles 685 713 251
Premium finance defalcation      - 4,320 -
Other 11,300 9,471 7,655 

Total non-interest expense 65,783 57,803 39,678 

Income before income taxes and cumulative effect of accounting change 29,129 16,448 14,151
Income tax expense 10,436 5,293 4,724
Income before cumulative effect of accounting change 18,693 11,155 9,427
Cumulative effect of change in accounting for derivatives, net of tax of $161 254 - -

Net income $ 18,439 11,155 9,427

Basic earnings per share:
Income before cumulative effect of accounting change $       1.36 0.85 0.76
Cumulative effect of accounting change, net of tax 0.02 - -

Net income per common share - Basic $ 1.34 0.85 0.76

Diluted earnings per share:
Income before cumulative effect of accounting change $       1.29 0.83 0.73
Cumulative effect of accounting change, net of tax 0.02 - -

Net income per common share - Diluted $       1.27 0.83 0.73
See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
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WINTRUST FINANCIAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

(In thousands, except share data)
Accumulated

Compre- other
hensive Common Retained comprehensive Total
income Common stock Treasury earnings income shareholders’
(loss) stock Surplus warrants stock (deficit) (loss) equity

Balance at December 31, 1998 $  12,225 68,803 100 - (5,872) (51) 75,205

Comprehensive income:
Net income $   9,427 - - - - 9,427 - 9,427
Other comprehensive loss, net of tax:
Unrealized losses on securities, net of 

reclassification adjustment (2,220) - - - - - (2,220) (2,220)
Comprehensive income 7,207
Common stock issuance, net of costs 871 9,113 - - - - 9,984
Common stock issued upon 

exercise of stock options 48 355 - - - - 403
Common stock issued through

employee stock purchase plan 12 136 - - - - 148

Balance at December 31, 1999 13,156 78,407 100 - 3,555 (2,271) 92,947 

Comprehensive income:
Net income 11,155 - - - - 11,155 - 11,155
Other comprehensive income, net of tax:
Unrealized gains on securities, net of 

reclassification adjustment 1,908  - - - - - 1,908 1,908
Comprehensive Income 13,063  
Cash dividends declared on common stock - - - - (875) - (875)
Purchase of 363,450 shares 

of common stock - - - (3,863) - - (3,863)
Common stock issued upon 

exercise of stock options 115 763 - - - - 878
Common stock issued through

employee stock purchase plan 14 112 - - - - 126

Balance at December 31, 2000 13,285 79,282 100 (3,863) 13,835 (363) 102,276

Comprehensive income:
Net income 18,439 - - - - 18,439 - 18,439
Other comprehensive loss, net of tax:
Unrealized losses on securities, net of 

reclassification adjustment (1,378)  - - - - - (1,378) (1,378)
Unrealized losses on derivative instruments (563) - - - - - (563) (563)

Comprehensive income $ 16,498  
Cash dividends declared on common stock - - - - (1,279) - (1,279)
Common stock issuance, net of costs 1,125 17,234 - 3,863 - - 22,222
Common stock issued upon 

exercise of stock options 106 1,190 - - - - 1,296
Common stock issued through 

employee stock purchase plan 15 239 - - - - 254
Conversion of common stock warrants 1 11 (1) - - - 11

Balance at December 31, 2001 $  14,532 97,956 99 - 30,995 (2,304) 141,278

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
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WINTRUST FINANCIAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(In thousands)

Years Ended December 31,
2001 2000 1999

Operating Activities:
Net income $    18,439 11,155 9,427
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash 

used for, or provided by, operating activities:
Cumulative effect of accounting change 254 - -
Provision for possible loan losses 7,900 5,055 3,713 
Depreciation and amortization 8,082 6,619 4,246
Deferred income tax expense (benefit) 1,791 597 (835) 
Net (accretion) amortization of securities (578) 1,775 (490)
Originations of mortgage loans held for sale (515,170) (161,017) (263,857)
Proceeds from sales of mortgage loans held for sale 482,690 158,716 273,765
Gain on sale of premium finance receivables (4,564) (3,831) (1,033)
Purchase of trading securities (17,662) (2,940) (5,558)
Proceeds from sale of trading securities 17,678 2,945 5,567
Gain on sale of trading securities (16) (5) (9)
(Gain) loss on sale of Available-for-Sale securities (337) 40 (5)
(Gain) loss on sale of premises and equipment, net (209) 18 -
Increase in accrued interest receivable and other assets, net (6,031) (404) (3,585)
Increase (decrease) in accrued interest payable and other liabilities, net (17,720) 28,120 5,580 

Net Cash Provided by (Used for) Operating Activities (25,453) 46,843 26,926
Investing Activities:

Proceeds from maturities of Available-for-Sale securities 484,292 235,275 368,889 
Proceeds from maturities of Held-to-Maturity securities - - 5,000 
Proceeds from sales of Available-for-Sale securities 1,260,838 675,458 15,166 
Purchases of Available-for-Sale securities (1,938,546) (896,922) (383,723)
Proceeds from sales of premium finance receivables 244,684 229,277 68,875
Acquisition of Tricom Inc., net of cash acquired - - (4,227)
Net (increase) decrease in interest bearing deposits with banks (510) 2,365 5,316 
Net increase in loans (715,894) (506,321) (346,778)
Purchases of premises and equipment, net (19,934) (19,459) (17,217)

Net Cash Used for Investing Activities (685,070) (280,327) (288,699)
Financing Activities:

Increase in deposit accounts 488,060 362,954 234,468 
Increase (decrease) in short-term borrowings, net (15,565) (16,204) 41,254
Increase in notes payable, net 19,000 19,225 8,350
Proceeds from Federal Home Loan Bank advances 90,000 - - 
Proceeds from trust preferred securities offering - 20,000 - 
Issuance of common stock, net of issuance costs 22,222 - 5,984
Common stock issued upon exercise of stock options 1,296 878 403
Common stock issued through employee stock purchase plan 254 126 148
Proceeds from conversion of common stock warrants 11 - -
Purchase of common stock - (3,863) -
Dividends paid (1,279) (875) -

Net Cash Provided by Financing Activities 603,999 382,241 290,607 
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (106,524) 148,757 28,834 
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year 230,054 81,297 52,463 
Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year $   123,530 230,054 81,297 
Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information:

Cash paid during the year for:
Interest $     92,802 85,581  60,667 
Income taxes, net 8,023 4,084 4,241

Acquisition of Tricom, Inc. of Milwaukee:
Fair value of assets acquired - - 22,116
Goodwill recorded from acquisition - - 10,052
Fair value of liabilities assumed - - 23,941

Non-cash investing activities:
Common stock issued for acquisition of Tricom, Inc. of Milwaukee - - 4,000
Transfer to other real estate owned from loans 244 - -

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
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Description of the Business

Wintrust Financial Corporation (“Wintrust” or “Company”) is

a financial services holding company currently engaged

in the business of providing community banking serv-

ices, trust and investment services, commercial insur-

ance premium financing, short-term accounts receivable

financing, and certain administrative services, such as

data processing of payrolls, billing and cash manage-

ment services.  Wintrust provides banking services to

customers in the Chicago metropolitan area through its

seven wholly-owned banking subsidiaries (collectively,

“Banks”), all of which started as de novo institutions,

including Lake Forest Bank & Trust Company (“Lake For-

est Bank”), Hinsdale Bank & Trust Company (“Hinsdale

Bank”), North Shore Community Bank & Trust Company

(“North Shore Bank”), Libertyville Bank & Trust Company

(“Libertyville Bank”), Barrington Bank & Trust Company,

N.A. (“Barrington Bank”), Crystal Lake Bank & Trust Com-

pany, N.A. (“Crystal Lake Bank”) and Northbrook Bank &

Trust Company (“Northbrook Bank”).  Wintrust provides

trust and investment services at each of the Wintrust

banks through Wintrust Asset Management Company,

N.A. (“WAMC”).  The Company provides financing for the

payment of commercial insurance premiums (“premium

finance receivables”), on a national basis, through First

Insurance Funding Corp. (“FIFC”), a wholly-owned sub-

sidiary of Crabtree Capital Corporation (“Crabtree”), which

is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Lake Forest Bank.  Tri-

com, Inc. (“Tricom”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of Hins-

dale Bank, provides short-term accounts receivable

financing (“Tricom finance receivables”) and value-added

out-sourced administrative services, such as data pro-

cessing of payrolls, billing and cash management serv-

ices, to temporary staffing service clients located

throughout the United States. 

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The accounting and reporting policies of Wintrust and its

subsidiaries conform to generally accepted accounting

principles in the United States and prevailing practices of

the banking industry. In the preparation of the consoli-

dated financial statements, management is required to

make certain estimates and assumptions that affect the

reported amounts contained in the consolidated financial

statements.  Management believes that the estimates

made are reasonable; however, changes in estimates

may be required if economic or other conditions change

beyond management’s expectations.  Reclassifications of

certain prior year amounts have been made to conform

with the current year presentation.  The following is a

summary of the more significant accounting policies of

the Company.

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements of Wintrust include

the accounts of the Company and its subsidiaries.  All sig-

nificant intercompany accounts and transactions have

been eliminated in the consolidated financial statements. 

Stock Split

On January 24, 2002, the Board of Directors declared a 3-

for-2 stock split of the Company’s common stock, to be

effected in the form of a 50% stock dividend, payable on

March 14, 2002 to shareholders of record as of March 4,

2002.  In accordance with Statement of Accounting Stan-

dard (SFAS) 128, “Earnings Per Share”, all per-share com-

putations and references to number of shares presented

in this report have been restated to reflect the stock split.

Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the consolidated statements of cash

flows, Wintrust considers cash on hand, cash items in the

process of collection, non-interest bearing amounts due

from correspondent banks, federal funds sold and secu-

rities purchased under resale agreements to be cash

equivalents.  

Securities

The Company classifies securities upon purchase in one

of three categories:  trading, held-to-maturity, or available-

for-sale.  Trading securities are bought principally for the

purpose of selling them in the near term.  Held-to-maturity

securities are those debt securities in which the Com-

pany has the ability and positive intent to hold  until matu-

rity.  All other securities are currently classified as

available-for-sale as they may be sold prior to maturity.

Held-to-maturity securities are stated at amortized cost

which represents actual cost adjusted for premium amor-

tization and discount accretion using methods that

approximate the effective interest method.  Available-for-

sale securities are stated at fair value.  Unrealized gains

and losses on available-for-sale securities, net of related

taxes, are included as accumulated other comprehensive

income and reported as a separate component of share-

holders’ equity.  

Trading account securities are stated at fair value.   Real-

ized and unrealized gains and losses from sales and fair

value adjustments are included in other non-interest

income.  The Company did not maintain any trading

account securities at December 31, 2001 or 2000.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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A decline in the market value of any available-for-sale or

held-to-maturity security below cost that is deemed other

than temporary is charged to earnings, resulting in the

establishment of a new cost basis for the security.  Inter-

est and dividends, including amortization of premiums

and accretion of discounts, are recognized as interest

income when earned.  Realized gains and losses for

securities classified as available-for-sale are included in

non-interest income and are derived using the specific

identification method for determining the cost of securi-

ties sold.

Securities Purchased Under Resale Agreements and
Securities Sold Under Repurchase Agreements

Securities purchased under resale agreements and secu-

rities sold under repurchase agreements are generally

treated as collateralized financing transactions and are

recorded at the amount at which the securities were

acquired or sold plus accrued interest.  Securities, gener-

ally U.S. government and Federal agency securities,

pledged as collateral under these financing arrangements

cannot be sold by the secured party.  The fair value of

collateral either received from or provided to a third party

is monitored and additional collateral obtained or

requested as deemed appropriate. 

Loans and Allowance for Possible Loan Losses

Loans, which include premium finance receivables, Tri-

com finance receivables and lease financing, are

recorded at the principal amount outstanding.  Interest

income is recognized when earned.  Loan origination

fees and certain direct origination costs associated with

loans retained in the portfolio are deferred and amortized

over the expected life of the loan as an adjustment to the

yield using methods that approximate the effective inter-

est method.  Finance charges on premium finance receiv-

ables are earned over the term of the loan based on

actual funds outstanding, beginning with the funding

date, using a method which approximates the effective

yield method. 

Mortgage loans held for sale are carried at the lower of

aggregate cost or market, after consideration of related

loan sale commitments, if any.  Fees received from the

sale of these loans into the secondary market are

included in non-interest income. 

Interest income is not accrued on loans where manage-

ment has determined that the borrowers may be unable

to meet contractual principal and/or interest obligations,

or where interest or principal is 90 days or more past

due, unless the loans are adequately secured and in the

process of collection.  Cash receipts on non-accrual

loans are generally applied to the principal balance until

the remaining balance is considered collectible, at which

time interest income may be recognized when received.

The allowance for possible loan losses is maintained at a

level believed adequate by management to cover proba-

ble losses inherent in the portfolio and is based on an

assessment of individual problems loans, actual and

anticipated loss experience, current economic events

and other pertinent factors.  Determination of the

allowance is inherently subjective as it requires signifi-

cant estimates, including the amounts and timing of

expected future cash flows on impaired loans and esti-

mated losses on pools of homogeneous loans based on

historical loss experience, delinquency levels and current

economic trends.  In estimating potential losses, the

Company evaluates loans for impairment in accordance

with SFAS 114, “Accounting by Creditors for Impairment

of a Loan”. A loan is considered impaired when, based

on current information and events, it is probable that a

creditor will be unable to collect all amounts due.

Impaired loans are generally considered by the Company

to be commercial and commercial real estate loans that

are non-accrual loans, restructured loans or loans with

principal and/or interest at risk, even if the loan is current

with all payments of principal and interest.  Impairment is

measured by estimating the fair value of the loan based

on the present value of expected cash flows, the market

price of the loan, or the fair value of the underlying col-

lateral.  If the estimated fair value of the loan is less than

the recorded book value, a valuation allowance is estab-

lished as a component of the allowance for possible loan

losses.

Mortgage Servicing Rights

The Company originates mortgage loans for sale to the

secondary market, the majority of which are sold without

retaining servicing rights.  There are certain loans, how-

ever, that are originated and sold to a governmental

agency, with servicing rights retained.  Mortgage servic-

ing rights associated with loans originated and sold,

where servicing is retained, are capitalized and included

in other assets in the consolidated statements of condi-

tion.  The Company capitalizes the rights to service these

originated mortgage loans at the time of sale.  The capi-

talized value of loan servicing rights is amortized in pro-

portion to, and over the period of, estimated net future

servicing revenue.  Mortgage servicing rights are periodi-

cally evaluated for impairment.  For purposes of measur-

ing impairment, the servicing rights are stratified into
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pools based on loan type, interest rate and term. Impair-

ment represents the excess of the remaining capitalized

cost of a stratified pool over its fair value, and is recorded

through a valuation allowance.  The fair value of each

servicing rights pool is calculated based on the present

value of estimated future cash flows using a discount rate

commensurate with the risk associated with that pool,

given current market conditions.  Estimates of fair value

include assumptions about prepayment speeds, interest

rates and other factors which are subject to change over

time.  Changes in these underlying assumptions could

cause the fair value of mortgage servicing rights, and the

related valuation allowance, if any, to change significantly

in the future.

Sales of Premium Finance Receivables 

Transfers of premium finance receivables to an unrelated

third party are recognized as sales in accordance with

SFAS 140, “Accounting for  Transfers and Servicing of

Financial Assets and Extinguishment of Liabilities.” The

Company recognizes as a gain the difference between

the proceeds received and the allocated cost basis of the

loans.  The cost basis of the loans is determined by allo-

cating the Company’s initial investment in the loan

between the loan and the Company’s retained interests,

based on their relative fair values.  The retained interests

include assets for the servicing rights and interest only

strip less a liability for the Company’s guarantee obliga-

tion pursuant to the terms of the sale agreement.  The net

retained interest is included in other assets.  If actual cash

flows are less than estimated, the net retained interest

would be impaired and charged to earnings. Loans sold

in these transactions have terms of less than twelve

months, resulting in minimal prepayment risk.

Premises and Equipment

Premises and equipment are stated at cost less accumu-

lated depreciation and amortization. Depreciation and

amortization are computed using the straight-line method

over the estimated useful lives of the related assets.

Expenditures for major additions and improvements are

capitalized, and maintenance and repairs are charged to

expense as incurred.  Internal costs related to the config-

uration and installation of new software and the modifi-

cation of existing software that provides additional

functionality are capitalized and amortized over periods

of three to five years.  Equipment owned and subject to

leasing contracts characterized as operating leases is

also included in premises and equipment. 

Other Real Estate Owned

Other real estate owned is comprised of real estate

acquired in partial or full satisfaction of loans and is

included in other assets at the lower of cost or fair mar-

ket value less estimated selling costs.  When the property

is acquired through foreclosure, any excess of the related

loan balance over the adjusted fair market value less

expected selling costs, is charged against the allowance

for possible loan losses.  Subsequent write-downs or

gains and losses upon sale, if any, are charged to other

non-interest expense.

Intangible Assets

Goodwill, representing the cost in excess of the fair value

of net assets acquired, is primarily amortized on a

straight-line basis over periods of fifteen to twenty years.

The Company periodically evaluates the carrying value

and remaining amortization period of intangible assets

and other long-lived assets for impairment, and adjusts

the carrying amounts, as appropriate.

Effective January 1, 2002, the Company adopted SFAS

142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets,” which

changes the way goodwill and certain other intangible

assets are recognized and accounted for in the consoli-

dated financial statements.  See Note 2 for further dis-

cussion of the impact of this new accounting

pronouncement on the Company’s financial statements.

Derivative Instruments

The Company enters into derivative transactions princi-

pally to protect against the risk of adverse price or inter-

est rate movements on the future cash flows or the value

of certain assets and liabilities. Effective January 1, 2001,

the Company adopted SFAS 133, “Accounting for Deriva-

tive Instruments and Hedging Activates,” which requires

that all derivative instruments be recorded in the state-

ment of condition at fair value.  The accounting for

changes in the fair value of a derivative instrument

depends on whether it has been designated and qualifies

as part of a hedging relationship and further, on the type

of hedging relationship.  Derivatives owned at the time of

adoption were not designated as hedges pursuant to

SFAS 133, and resulted in a charge of $254,000 (net of

tax) to reflect the cumulative effect of an accounting

change in the Consolidated Statements of Income.

Derivative instruments designated in a hedge relationship

to mitigate exposure to changes in the fair value of an

asset or liability attributable to a particular risk, such as

interest rate risk, are considered fair value hedges. Deriv-

ative instruments designated in a hedge relationship to

mitigate exposure to variability in expected future cash

flows, or other types of forecasted transactions, are con-

sidered cash flow hedges. The Company formally docu-

ments relationships between derivative instruments and
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hedged items, as well as its risk-management objective

and strategy for undertaking each hedge transaction.  

Fair value hedges are accounted for by recording the fair

value of the derivative instrument and the fair value

related to the risk being hedged of the hedged asset or

liability on the balance sheet with corresponding offsets

recorded in the income statement. Cash flow hedges are

accounted for by recording the fair value of the derivative

instrument on the balance sheet with a corresponding

offset recorded in other comprehensive income, net of

tax.  Amounts are reclassified from other comprehensive

income to interest expense in the period or periods the

hedged forecasted transaction affects earnings. Deriva-

tive instruments that do not qualify as hedges pursuant to

SFAS 133 are reported at fair value and the changes in

fair value are recognized in earnings as noninterest

income or noninterest expense, as appropriate, during

the period of the change.

Under both the fair value and cash flow hedge scenarios,

changes in the fair value of derivatives not considered to

be highly effective in hedging the change in fair value or

the expected cash flows of the hedged item are recog-

nized in earnings as noninterest expense during the

period of the change.

Trust Preferred Securities Offering Costs

In connection with the Company’s October 1998 and

June 2000 offerings of Cumulative Trust Preferred Securi-

ties (“Trust Preferred Securities”), approximately $1.4 mil-

lion and $1.1 million, respectively, of offering costs were

incurred, including underwriting fees, legal and profes-

sional fees, and other costs.  These costs are included in

other assets and are being amortized over a ten year

period as an adjustment of interest expense using a

method that approximates the effective interest method.

See Note 12 for further information about the Trust Pre-

ferred Securities.    

Trust Assets

Assets held in fiduciary or agency capacity for customers

are not included in the consolidated financial statements

as they are not assets of Wintrust or its subsidiaries.  Fee

income is recognized on an accrual basis for financial

reporting purposes and is included as a component of

non-interest income.

Income Taxes

Wintrust and its subsidiaries file a consolidated Federal

income tax return.  The subsidiaries provide for income

taxes on a separate return basis and remit to Wintrust

amounts determined to be currently payable.  

Wintrust and subsidiaries record income taxes under the

asset and liability method.  Deferred tax assets and liabil-

ities are recognized for the estimated future tax conse-

quences attributable to differences between the financial

statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabili-

ties and their respective tax bases.  Deferred tax assets

and liabilities are measured using currently enacted tax

rates in effect for the years in which those temporary dif-

ferences are expected to be recovered or settled.  The

effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in

tax rates is recognized in income in the period that

includes the enactment date.

Stock Option Plans

The Company follows APB Opinion No. 25, “Accounting

for Stock Issued to Employees,” and related interpreta-

tions in accounting for its stock option plans.  Since the

exercise price of options granted is equal to the market

value of the stock on the grant date, no compensation

cost is required. The Company follows the disclosure

requirements of SFAS 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based

Compensation”, rather than the recognition provisions of

SFAS 123, as allowed by the statement.  Further disclo-

sures are presented in Note 15.

Advertising Costs

All advertising costs incurred by the Company are

expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

Start-up Costs

Start-up and organizational costs are expensed in the

period in which they are incurred. 

Earnings per Share

Basic earnings per share excludes dilution and is com-

puted by dividing income available to common share-

holders by the weighted-average number of common

shares outstanding for the period.  Diluted earnings per

share reflects the potential dilution that could occur if

securities or other contracts to issue common stock were

exercised or converted into common stock or resulted in

the issuance of common stock that then shared in the

earnings of this entity.
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(2) Recent Accounting Pronouncements

Business Combinations

In June 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board

issued SFAS 141, “Business Combinations,” which

replaces APB Opinion 16.  SFAS 141 requires all busi-

ness combinations be accounted for by the purchase

method and eliminates the pooling-of-interests method of

accounting for business combinations initiated after June

30, 2001.  

While SFAS 141 will affect how future business combina-

tions are accounted for and disclosed in the financial

statements, the issuance of the new guidance had no

effect on the Company’s results of operations, financial

position, or liquidity during 2001.  

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

In conjunction with the issuance of the new guidance for

business combinations, the Financial Accounting Stan-

dards Board also issued SFAS 142, “Goodwill and Other

Intangible Assets,” which addresses the accounting and

reporting for acquired goodwill and other intangible

assets and supercedes APB Opinion 17.  

Under the provisions of SFAS 142, goodwill and certain

other intangible assets which do not possess finite useful

lives, will no longer be amortized into net income but

rather will be tested at least annually for impairment

based on specific guidance provided in the Statement.

Intangible assets determined to have finite lives will con-

tinue to be amortized over their estimated useful lives

and also continue to be subject to impairment testing.

The provisions of SFAS 142 were adopted by the Com-

pany effective January 1, 2002. Application of the non-

amortization provision of the Statement is expected to

reduce noninterest expense by approximately $607,000,

resulting in an increase in net income of approximately

$413,000, in 2002 as compared to 2001.  SFAS 142

requires a transitional impairment test be applied to all

goodwill and other indefinite-lived intangible assets

within the first half of 2002 and any resulting impairment

loss be reported as a change in accounting principle.

Management does not currently expect any impairment

to result from such testing.  

In general, application of the new provisions may result

in more income statement volatility due to the potential

periodic recognition of impairment losses, which are

likely to vary in amount and regularity, for goodwill and

other indefinite-lived intangible assets, versus reducing

those assets through the recognition of recurring, consis-

tent amortization amounts.

(3) Securities

A summary of the securities portfolio presenting carrying amounts and gross unrealized gains and losses as of Decem-

ber 31, 2001 and 2000 is as follows (in thousands):

December 31, 2001 December 31, 2000
Gross Gross Gross Gross

Amortized unrealized unrealized Fair Amortized unrealized unrealized Fair
cost gains losses Value cost gains losses Value

Available-for-sale:
U.S. Treasury $ 3,045 3 -    3,048 29,987 45 (45) 29,987
U.S. Government agencies 151,911 295   (21)    152,185 61,937 57 (123) 61,871
Municipal securities         6,507 179 - 6,686 5,020 130 (8)   5,142
Corporate notes and other      26,691 599 (1,395) 25,895 30,208 31 (1,042) 29,197
Mortgage-backed securities     184,483 761 (3,819) 181,425 54,182 239 (147) 54,274
Federal Reserve/FHLB stock 

and other equity securities     15,384 727 - 16,111 12,358 317 (41) 12,634
Total available-for-sale securities $ 388,021 2,564 (5,235) 385,350 193,692 819 (1,406) 193,105

The amortized cost and fair value of securities as of December 31, 2001 and 2000, by contractual maturity, are shown

in the following table.  Contractual maturities may differ from actual maturities as borrowers may have the right to call or

repay obligations with or without call or prepayment penalties.  Mortgage-backed securities are not included in the matu-

rity categories in the following maturity summary as actual maturities may differ from contractual maturities because the

underlying mortgages may be called or prepaid without any penalties.
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December 31, 2001 December 31, 2000
Amortized Fair Amortized Fair  

Cost Value  Cost Value  
(in thousands) 
Available-for-sale securities: 

Due in one year or less $   139,245 139,591 58,515 58,392  
Due in one to five years 32,971 32,979 51,159 51,116    
Due in five to ten years 3,032 3,181 4,579 4,707  
Due after ten years 12,906 12,063 12,899 11,982
Mortgage-backed securities 184,483 181,425 54,182 54,274
Federal Reserve/FHLB stock

and other equity securities 15,384 16,111 12,358 12,634   
Total available-for-sale securities $   388,021 385,350 193,692 193,105  

In 2001, 2000 and 1999, the Company had gross realized gains on sales of available-for-sale securities of $524,000,

$79,000 and $19,000, respectively.  During 2001, 2000 and 1999, gross realized losses on sales of available-for-sale

securities totaled $187,000, $119,000 and $14,000, respectively.    Proceeds from sales of available-for-sale securities

during 2001, 2000 and 1999,  were $1,260,838,000, $675,458,000 and $15,166,000, respectively.  At December 31,

2001 and 2000, securities having a carrying value of $115,981,000 and $116,774,000, respectively, were pledged as col-

lateral for public deposits, trust deposits and securities sold under repurchase agreements.  

(4) Loans

A summary of the loan portfolio at December 31, 2001

and 2000 is as follows (in thousands):

2001 2000
Core loans:

Commercial and commercial real estate $ 1,007,580 647,947
Home equity 261,049 179,168
Residential real estate 182,945 141,919
Installment and other 59,157 51,995

Total core loans 1,510,731 1,021,029
Niche loans:

Premium finance receivables 348,163 313,066
Indirect auto 184,209 203,571
Tricom finance receivables 18,280 20,354

Total niche loans 550,652 536,991
Total loans, net of unearned income $ 2,061,383 1,558,020

Residential real estate loans include mortgage loans held

for sale totaling $42.9 million and $10.4 million at Decem-

ber 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively. The significant

increase in mortgage loans held for sale in 2001 reflects

heavy origination volumes driven by the low interest rate

environment and a strong local housing market.

Certain real estate and home equity loans with balances

totaling approximately $312.8 million and $142.0 million,

at December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively, were

pledged as collateral to secure the availability of borrow-

ings from certain Federal agency banks.  The majority of

these pledged loans are included in a blanket pledge of

qualifying loans by four of the Banks to the Federal Home

Loan Bank (FHLB). The increase in pledged loans at

December 31, 2001 compared to the previous year end

is due to the general increase in qualifying loans under

those blanket pledge agreements as well as only three of

the Banks having entered into such agreements at

December 31, 2000. At December 31, 2001, the Banks

borrowed $90.0 million from the FHLB in connection with

these collateral arrangements. See Note 11 for a sum-

mary of these borrowings.

The Company’s core loan portfolio is generally com-

prised of loans to consumers and small to medium-sized

businesses located within the geographic market areas

that the Banks serve.  The niche premium finance and Tri-

com receivables portfolios are made to customers on a

national basis and the niche indirect auto loans are gen-

erated through a network of local automobile dealers.  As

a result, the Company strives to maintain a loan portfolio

that is diverse in terms of loan type, industry, borrower

and geographic concentrations.  Such diversification

reduces the exposure to economic downturns that may

occur in different segments of the economy or in different

industries.  

It is the policy of the Company to review each prospective

credit in order to determine the appropriateness and, when

required, the adequacy of security or collateral necessary

to obtain in making a loan.  The type of collateral, when

required, will vary in ranges from liquid assets to real

estate.  The Company seeks to assure access to collateral,

in the event of default, through adherence to state lending

laws and the Company’s credit monitoring procedures. 
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Certain officers and directors of Wintrust and its sub-

sidiaries and certain corporations and individuals related

to such persons borrowed funds from the Banks.  These

loans were made at substantially the same terms, includ-

ing interest rates and collateral, as those prevailing at the

time for comparable transactions with other borrowers. A

rollforward of these loans during 2001 is as follows (in

thousands):

Balance at December 31, 2000 $    30,499
New loans and advances 6,809
Maturities and paydowns (14,119)

Balance at December 31, 2001 $ 23,189

(5) Allowance for Possible Loan Losses

A summary of the activity in the allowance for possible

loan losses for the years ended December 31, 2001,

2000, and 1999 is as follows (in thousands):

Year Ended December 31,
2001 2000 1999

Allowance at beginning of year $  10,433 8,783 7,034
Provision 7,900 5,055 3,713
Acquired allowance for loan losses - - 175
Charge-offs (5,322) (3,756) (2,449)
Recoveries 675 351 310
Allowance at end of year $  13,686 10,433 8,783

A summary of non-accrual loans and their impact on

interest income and impaired loans and their impact on

interest income is as follows (in thousands):  

Year Ended December 31,
2001 2000 1999

Total non-accrual loans 
(as of year end) $  8,967 4,329 4,338

Reduction of interest income 
from non-performing loans 91 111 100

Average balance of impaired loans 503 1,212 1,295
Interest income recognized 

on impaired loans 9 6 14

Management evaluates the value of the impaired loans

primarily by using the fair value of the collateral.  A sum-

mary of impaired loan information at December 31, 2001

and 2000 is as follows (in thousands):

2001 2000
Impaired loans $  641 770
Impaired loans that had allocated 

specific allowance for possible loan losses 500 214
Allocated allowance for possible loan losses 347 214

(6)  Mortgage Servicing Rights

The outstanding principal balance of mortgage loans

serviced for others totaled $131.5 million at December

31, 2001, $97.2 million at December 31, 2000 and $87.1

million at December 31, 1999.  The following is a sum-

mary of the changes in mortgage servicing rights for the

years ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999 (in

thousands):   

Year Ended December 31,
2001 2000 1999

Balance at beginning of year $  633 648 715
Servicing rights capitalized 775 146 214
Amortization of servicing rights (502) (161) (281)
Valuation allowance - - -
Balance at end of year   $  906 633 648

At December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999, the aggregate

fair value of mortgage servicing rights was $950,000,

$895,000 and $793,000, respectively.  Fair values are

determined by discounting anticipated future net cash

flows from servicing activities considering market con-

sensus loan prepayment speeds, interest rates, servicing

costs and other economic factors.

(7) Premises and Equipment, Net

A summary of premises and equipment at December 31,

2001 and 2000 is as follows (in thousands):

2001 2000
Land $  16,179 15,294 
Buildings and leasehold improvements 64,497 57,015 
Furniture, equipment and

computer software 28,597 24,210 
Construction in progress 8,215 1,418 

117,488 97,937 
Less:  Accumulated depreciation

and amortization 21,495 15,530 
95,993 82,407 

Equipment under leasing contracts,
net of accumulated depreciation 3,139 3,979 

Premises and equipment, net $  99,132 86,386 

Equipment under leasing contracts represents the Com-

pany’s investment in equipment leased to others under

operating lease agreements.  The portfolio consists of

various types of equipment including medical, techno-

logical and machine tools.
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(8) Time Deposits

The scheduled maturities of time deposits at December

31, 2001 and 2000 are as follows (in thousands):

2001 2000
Due in one year $ 1,012,626 912,543 
Due in one to two years 164,487 120,095 
Due in two to three years 99,705 22,021 
Due in three to four years 15,544 13,196 
Due after four years 12,750 9,275 

Total time deposits $ 1,305,112 1,077,130

Certificates of deposit in amounts of $100,000 or more

approximated $659,136,000 and $564,747,000 at

December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively.  

(9) Short-term Borrowings

At December 31, 2001, short-term borrowings totaled

$28,074,000 and were comprised of $16,274,000 of

securities sold under repurchase agreements and

$11,800,000 of federal funds purchased.  At December

31, 2000, short-term borrowings totaled $43,639,000 and

were comprised entirely of securities sold under repur-

chase agreements.  As of December 31, 2001 and 2000,

the weighted average borrowing rate was 1.73% and

4.35%, respectively.

(10)  Notes Payable

A summary of the outstanding balances of notes payable at

December 31, 2001 and 2000 is as follows (in thousands):

2001 2000
Maturity less than one year $ 21,575 27,575
Maturity greater than one year 25,000 -
Total notes payable $ 46,575 27,575

The notes payable balances represent the outstanding

balances on a revolving loan agreement (“Agreement”)

with an unaffiliated bank.   At December 31, 2001, the

total amount of the Agreement is $70 million, comprised

of a $45 million revolving note that matures on December

31, 2002 and a $25 million revolving note that matures

on February 27, 2006.  Interest is calculated at a floating

rate equal to, at the Company’s option, either the lender’s

prime rate or LIBOR plus 125 basis points.  The Agree-

ment is secured by the stock of all Banks and contains

several restrictive covenants, including the maintenance

of various capital adequacy levels, asset quality and prof-

itability ratios, and certain restrictions on dividends and

other indebtedness.  The Agreement may be utilized, as

needed, to provide capital to fund continued growth at

the company’s existing Banks, expand its asset manage-

ment business, fund possible acquisitions of financial

institutions or other finance related companies, purchase

treasury stock or for other general corporate matters.

(11) Federal Home Loan Bank Advances

A summary of the outstanding balances of Federal Home

Loan Bank (“FHLB”) advances is as follows  (in thousands):

2001 2000
4.60% advance due July 2011 $  30,000 -
3.95% advance due November 2011 35,000 -
3.30% advance due November 2011 25,000 -
Federal Home Loan Bank advances $  90,000 -

The FHLB advances bear fixed rates with varying one-

time call dates ranging from July 2004 to November

2006.  The Company has an arrangement with the FHLB

whereby based on available collateral (residential mort-

gages), the Company could have borrowed an additional

$32.6 million at December 31, 2001.  

(12) Long-term Debt - Trust Preferred Securities

The Company issued $51,050,000 of Trust Preferred

Securities through two separate issuances by Wintrust

Capital Trust I and Wintrust Capital Trust II (“Trusts”).  The

Trusts issued $1,579,000 of common securities, all of

which are owned by the Company.  The Trust Preferred

Securities represent preferred undivided beneficial inter-

ests in the assets of the Trusts.  The Trusts invested the

proceeds from the issuances of the Trust Preferred Secu-

rities and the common securities in Subordinated Deben-

tures (“Debentures”), with the same maturities and fixed

interest rates as the Trust Preferred Securities, issued by

the Company.  The debentures are the sole assets of the

Trusts and are eliminated, along with the related income

statement effects, in the consolidated financial state-

ments.

A summary of the Company’s trust preferred securities at

December 31, 2001 and 2000, is as follows (in thousands):

2001 2000
9.00% trust preferred securities of

Wintrust Capital Trust I, due
September 30, 2028 $  31,050 31,050

10.50% trust preferred securities of
Wintrust Capital Trust II, due 
June 30, 2030 20,000 20,000

Total trust preferred securities $  51,050 51,050

The Company has guaranteed the payment of distribu-

tions and payments upon liquidation or redemption of the

Trust Preferred Securities, in each case to the extent of

funds held by the Trusts.  The Company and the Trusts

believe that, taken together, the obligations of the Com-
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pany under the guarantees, the subordinated deben-

tures, and other related agreements provide, in the aggre-

gate, a full, irrevocable and unconditional guarantee, on

a subordinated basis, of all of the obligations of the Trusts

under the Trust Preferred Securities.  Subject to certain

limitations, the Company has the right to defer payment

of interest on the Debentures at any time, or from time to

time, for a period not to exceed 20 consecutive quarters.

The Trust Preferred Securities are subject to mandatory

redemption, in whole or in part, upon repayment of the

Debentures at maturity or their earlier redemption.  The

Debentures of the Trusts are redeemable in whole or in

part prior to maturity, at the discretion of the Company if

certain conditions are met, and only after the Company

has obtained Federal Reserve approval, if then required

under applicable guidelines or regulations.  The early

redemption dates are on or after September 30, 2003 for

Wintrust Capital Trust I and June 30, 2005 for Wintrust

Capital Trust II.

The Trust Preferred Securities, subject to certain limita-

tions, qualify as Tier 1 capital of the Company for regula-

tory purposes.  Interest expense on the Trust Preferred

Securities is deductible for tax purposes.

(13) Minimum Lease Commitments

The Company occupies certain facilities under operating

lease agreements. Gross rental expense related to the

Company’s premises was $1,050,000, $1,129,000 and

$1,106,000 in 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively.  The

Company also leases certain owned premises and

receives rental income from such agreements.  Gross

rental income related to the Company’s buildings totaled

$502,000, $486,000 and $415,000, in 2001, 2000 and

1999, respectively.  In 2001, 2000 and 1999, the Com-

pany also recorded equipment lease income of approxi-

mately $1,567,000, $1,263,000 and $397,000,

respectively.  Future minimum gross rental payments for

office space, future minimum gross rental income, and

future minimum equipment lease income as of Decem-

ber 31, 2001 for all noncancelable leases are as follows

(in thousands):

Future Future Future
minimum minimum minimum

gross gross equipment
rental rental lease

payments income income

2002 $ 828 400 1,172
2003 676 346 813
2004 458 195 587
2005 275 87 256
2006 106 80 16
2007 and thereafter 75 182 -
Total minimum future amounts $ 2,418 1,290 2,844

(14)  Income Taxes

Income tax expense (benefit) for the years ended Decem-

ber 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999 is summarized as follows

(in thousands):

Year Ended December 31,
2001 2000 1999

Current income taxes:
Federal $   8,492 4,509 5,571
State 153 187 -

Total current income taxes 8,645 4,696 5,571

Deferred income taxes:
Federal 1,348 847 (1,240)
State 443 (250) 393

Total deferred income taxes 1,791 597 (847)

Total income tax expense $ 10,436 5,293 4,724

The exercise of certain stock options produced tax bene-

fits of $312,000 in 2001, $151,000 in 2000 and  $90,000

in 1999 which were recorded directly to shareholders’

equity.

A reconciliation of the differences between taxes computed

using the statutory Federal income tax rate of 35% and

actual income tax expense is as follows (in thousands):

Year Ended December 31,
2001 2000 1999

Computed “expected” income 
tax expense $  10,195 5,757 4,953

Increase (decrease) in tax
resulting from: 

Tax-exempt interest, 
net of interest
expense disallowance (469) (295) (179)

State taxes, net of 
federal tax benefit 388 ( 40) 255

Decrease in valuation 
allowance for deferred
tax assets - (346) (460)

Other, net 322 217 155
Income tax expense $  10,436 5,293 4,724
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The tax effects of temporary differences that give rise to

significant portions of the deferred tax assets and liabili-

ties at December 31, 2001 and 2000 are as follows (in

thousands):

2001 2000
Deferred tax assets:

Allowance for possible loan losses $  5,310  4,065
Net unrealized losses on securities 930 224
Net unrealized losses on derivatives 303 -
Federal net operating loss carryforward 4,091 4,653
State net operating loss carryforward 440 563
Deferred compensation 621 392
Other 292 -

Total gross deferred tax assets 11,987 9,897

Deferred tax liabilities:
Premises and equipment 2,067 26
Deferred loan fees 1,119 1,076
Capitalized servicing rights 780 251
Other 505 246

Total gross deferred tax liabilities 4,471 1,599
Net deferred tax assets $ 7,516 8,298

At December 31, 2001, Wintrust and its subsidiaries had

Federal net operating losses of approximately $11.7 mil-

lion and state net operating losses of approximately $9.3

million.  Such amounts are available for carryforward to

offset future taxable income and expire in 2003 - 2010.

Utilization of the net operating losses are subject to cer-

tain statutory limitations. 

Management believes that it is more likely than not that

the recorded net deferred tax assets will be fully realized

and therefore no valuation allowance is necessary.  The

basis for the conclusion that it is more likely than not that

the deferred tax assets will be realized is based on the

Company’s historical earnings trend, its current level of

earnings and prospects for continued growth and prof-

itability.

(15) Employee Benefit and Stock Plans

The Wintrust Financial Corporation 1997 Stock Incentive

Plan (“the Plan”) provides options to purchase shares of

Wintrust’s common stock at the fair market value of the

stock on the date the option was granted.  The Plan per-

mits the grant of incentive stock options, nonqualified

stock options, rights and restricted stock.  The Plan cov-

ers substantially all employees of Wintrust.  

A total of 3,581,038 shares of Common Stock may be

granted under the Plan.  The incentive and nonqualified

options expire at such time as the Compensation Com-

mittee shall determine at the time of grant, however, in no

case shall they be exercisable later than ten years after

the grant.

A summary of the aggregate activity of the Plan for 2001,

2000 and 1999 is as follows:

Weighted
Common Range of Average
Shares Strike Prices Strike Price

Outstanding at 
December 31, 1998 2,287,476 $ 3.87 – 14.50 $   8.33

Granted 391,754 11.13 – 13.37 11.59
Exercised 47,900 5.17 – 9.69 6.53
Forfeited or canceled 62,687 7.18 – 12.83 11.82
Outstanding at

December 31, 1999 2,568,643 3.87 – 14.50 8.77
Granted 206,550 9.21 – 11.92 10.33
Exercised 115,394 3.87 – 9.69 6.30
Forfeited or canceled 149,853 5.17 – 14.50 12.18
Outstanding at

December 31, 2000 2,509,946 3.87 – 14.50 8.81
Granted 279,675 12.63 – 20.65 13.78
Exercised 105,774 5.17 – 12.92 9.30
Forfeited or canceled 46,626 5.17 – 12.92 11.31
Outstanding at

December 31, 2001 2,637,221 $ 3.87 – 20.65 $  9.26

At December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999, the weighted-

average remaining contractual life of outstanding options

was 5.0 years, 5.6 years and  6.2 years, respectively.

Additionally, at December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999, the

number of options exercisable was 1,935,569, 1,835,887

and 1,778,545, respectively, and the weighted-average

per share exercise price of those options was $8.16,

$7.85 and  $7.49, respectively.  Expiration dates for

options outstanding at December 31, 2001 range from

April 30, 2002 to November 26, 2011.



36 WINTRUST FINANCIAL CORPORATION

The following table presents certain information about the outstanding options and the currently exercisable options as

of December 31, 2001:

Options Outstanding Options Currently Exercisable
Weighted Weighted Weighted

Range of Average Average Average
Exercise Number Exercise Remaining Number Exercise
Prices of Shares Price Term of Shares Price

$   3.87 – 5.17 561,767 $    4.59 1.25 years 561,767 $   4.59
5.53 – 8.28 433,729 6.86 3.15 years 433,729 6.86
8.29 – 10.17 387,633 9.39 4.87 years 335,959 9.37

10.25 – 11.52 384,769 11.08 7.93 years 249,754 11.27
11.58 – 11.96 82,038 11.74 7.52 years 36,678 11.75
12.00 – 12.00 451,210 12.00 5.94 years 279,702 12.00
12.29 – 20.65 336,075 13.64 8.81 years 37,980 12.93

$  3.87 – 20.65 2,637,221 $    9.26 5.03 years 1,935,569 $   8.16

The Company applies APB No. 25, and related Interpre-

tations, in accounting for its stock option plan.  Accord-

ingly, no compensation cost has been recognized for its

stock option plan.  For purposes of providing the pro

forma disclosures required under SFAS 123, the fair

value of each option grant was estimated using the Black-

Scholes option-pricing model.  This model is sensitive to

changes in the subjective assumptions, which can mate-

rially affect the fair value estimates.  As a result, the pro

forma amounts indicated below may not be representa-

tive of the effects on reported net income for future years. 

The following weighted average assumptions were used

in the option pricing model for options granted in each of

the last three years:   a dividend yield of 0.6%,  0.7% and

0.6% for 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively; an expected

volatility of 25.7%, 25.6% and 27.5% for 2001, 2000 and

1999, respectively; a risk free rate of return of 4.9%, 6.2%

and 5.6% for 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively; and an

expected life of 6.8 years, 7.3 years and 7.2 years,

respectively. The per share weighted average fair value

of stock options granted during 2001, 2000 and 1999

was $4.91, $4.05 and $4.65, respectively.

Had compensation cost for the Company’s stock option

plan been determined based on the fair value at the date

of grant for awards under the stock option plan consistent

with the method of SFAS No. 123, the Company’s net

income and earnings per share would have been

reduced to the pro forma amounts indicated below (in

thousands, except per share data):

Year Ended December 31,
2001 2000 1999

Net income 
As reported $  18,439 11,155 9,427
Pro forma 17,742 10,453 8,082

Earnings per share - Basic
As reported $ 1.34 0.85 0.76
Pro forma 1.29 0.80 0.65

Earnings per share - Diluted
As reported $ 1.27 0.83 0.73
Pro forma 1.22 0.78 0.63

Wintrust and its subsidiaries also provide 401(k) Retire-

ment Savings Plans (“401(k) Plans”).  The 401(k) Plans

cover all employees meeting certain eligibility require-

ments.  Contributions by employees are made through

salary reductions at their direction, limited to $11,000 in

2001, $10,500 in 2000 and $10,000 in 1999.  Employer

contributions to the 401(k) Plans are made at the

employer’s discretion.  Generally, participants completing

501 hours of service are eligible to share in an allocation

of employer contributions.  The Company’s expense for

the employer contributions to the 401(k) Plans was

approximately $246,000, $151,000 and $57,000 in 2001,

2000 and 1999, respectively.

The Wintrust Financial Corporation Employee Stock Pur-

chase Plan (“SPP”) is designed to encourage greater stock

ownership among employees, thereby enhancing

employee commitment to the Company.  The SPP gives

eligible employees the right to accumulate funds over an

offering period to purchase shares of Common Stock.
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The Company has reserved 375,000 shares of its author-

ized Common Stock for the SPP.  All shares offered under

the SPP will be either newly issued shares of the Com-

pany or shares issued from treasury, if any.  In accor-

dance with the SPP, the purchase price of the shares of

Common Stock may not be lower than the lessor of 85%

of the fair market value per share of the Common Stock

on the first day of the offering period or 85% of the fair

market value per share of the Common Stock on the last

date for the offering period.  The Company’s Board of

Directors authorized a purchase price calculation at 90%

of fair market value for each of the offering periods.  Dur-

ing 2001, 2000 and 1999, a total of 14,454 shares,

13,441 shares and 12,523 shares, respectively,  were

issued to participant accounts and approximately

$98,000, $23,000 and $19,000, respectively, was recog-

nized as compensation expense.  The seventh offering

period concludes on March 31, 2002.  The Company

plans to continue to periodically offer Common Stock

through this SPP subsequent to March 31, 2002. 

The Company does not currently offer other postretire-

ment benefits such as health care or other pension plans.

(16) Regulatory Matters

Banking laws place restrictions upon the amount of divi-

dends which can be paid to Wintrust by the Banks.

Based on these laws, the Banks could, subject to mini-

mum capital requirements, declare dividends to Wintrust

without obtaining regulatory approval in an amount not

exceeding (a) undivided profits, and (b) the amount of net

income reduced by dividends paid for the current and

prior two years.  During 2001 and 2000, cash dividends

totaling $13.5 million and $16.0 million, respectively,

were paid to Wintrust by the Banks.  No cash dividends

were paid to Wintrust by the Banks for the year ended

December 31, 1999.  As of January 1, 2002, the Banks

had approximately $10.1 million available to be paid as

dividends to Wintrust, subject to certain capital limita-

tions.

The Banks are also required by the Federal Reserve Act

to maintain reserves against deposits.  Reserves are held

either in the form of vault cash or balances maintained

with the Federal Reserve Bank and are based on the

average daily deposit balances and statutory reserve

ratios prescribed by the type of deposit account.  At

December 31, 2001 and 2000, reserve balances of

approximately $4.9 million and $12.5 million, respec-

tively, were required.

The Company and the Banks are subject to various reg-

ulatory capital requirements administered by the federal

banking agencies.  Failure to meet minimum capital

requirements can initiate certain mandatory - and possi-

bly additional discretionary - actions by regulators that, if

undertaken, could have a direct material effect on the

Company’s financial statements.  Under capital adequacy

guidelines and the regulatory framework for prompt cor-

rective action, the Company and the Banks must meet

specific capital guidelines that involve quantitative meas-

ures of the Company’s assets, liabilities, and certain off-

balance-sheet items as calculated under regulatory

accounting practices.  The Company’s and the Banks’

capital amounts and classification are also subject to

qualitative judgments by the regulators about compo-

nents, risk weightings, and other factors.

Quantitative measures established by regulation to

ensure capital adequacy require the Company and the

Banks to maintain minimum amounts and ratios (set forth

in the table below) of total and Tier 1 capital (as defined

in the regulations) to risk-weighted assets (as defined) and

Tier 1 leverage capital (as defined) to average quarterly

assets (as defined).  Management believes, as of Decem-

ber 31, 2001 and 2000, that the Company and the Banks

met all minimum capital adequacy requirements.

As of December 31, 2001, the most recent notification

from the Banks’ primary federal regulators, the Banks

were categorized as well capitalized under the regulatory

framework for prompt corrective action.  The ratios

required for the Banks to be “well capitalized” by regula-

tory definition are 10.0%, 6.0%, and 5.0% for the Total Cap-

ital-to-Risk Weighted Assets, Tier 1 Capital-to-Risk

Weighted Assets and Tier 1 Leverage Capital-to-Average

Quarterly Assets, respectively.  To be categorized as ade-

quately capitalized, the Banks must maintain minimum

ratios as set forth in the following table.  There are no

conditions or events since the most recent notification

that management believes would materially affect the

Banks’ regulatory capital categories.  
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The Company’s and the Banks’ actual capital amounts and ratios as of December 31, 2001 and 2000 are presented in

the following table (dollars in thousands):

December 31, 2001 December 31, 2000
To Be Adequately To Be Adequately

Capitalized by Capitalized by
Actual Regulatory Definition Actual Regulatory Definition

Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio

Total Capital (to Risk Weighted Assets):

Consolidated $ 198,991 8.5% $188,056 8.0% $ 153,354 8.4% $145,482 8.0%
Lake Forest 60,219 10.1    47,720 8.0 43,889 9.1 38,725 8.0
Hinsdale 45,374  10.7    33,896 8.0 31,089 9.8 25,449 8.0
North Shore 46,201 10.1   36,743 8.0 34,594 9.3 29,747 8.0
Libertyville 30,732  10.2  24,166 8.0 24,288 10.3 18,813 8.0
Barrington 27,756   10.2   21,732 8.0 20,679 10.5 15,832 8.0
Crystal Lake 16,936   11.5  11,828      8.0 11,666 11.3 8,248 8.0
Northbrook 8,339 13.8 4,826 8.0 * * * *

Tier 1 Capital (to Risk Weighted Assets):
Consolidated $ 181,967        7.7% $  94,028 4.0% $ 126,085 6.9% $  72,741 4.0%
Lake Forest 56,921        9.5  23,860     4.0 41,052 8.5 19,362 4.0
Hinsdale 42,608          10.1    16,548    4.0 29,017 9.1 12,724 4.0
North Shore 43,470 9.5  18,371     4.0 32,415 8.7 14,873 4.0
Libertyville 28,596 9.5  12,083     4.0  22,674 9.6 9,406 4.0
Barrington 26,188         9.6  10,866     4.0   19,583  9.9 7,916 4.0
Crystal Lake 16,130         10.9    5,914    4.0 11,031 10.7 4,124 4.0
Northbrook 7,959 13.2 2,413 4.0 * * * *

Tier 1 Leverage Capital (to Average Quarterly Assets):
Consolidated $ 181,967 7.1% $ 102,589 4.0% $ 126,085 6.3% $  80,164 4.0% 
Lake Forest 56,921 7.8  29,110 4.0 41,052 6.6 25,038 4.0
Hinsdale 42,608  9.1 18,751 4.0 29,017 7.9 14,681 4.0
North Shore 43,470  8.1 21,573  4.0  32,415 7.3 17,693 4.0
Libertyville 28,596   8.2   14,043  4.0  22,674 8.0 11,314 4.0
Barrington 26,188   8.8  11,916 4.0 19,583 8.4 9,321 4.0
Crystal Lake 16,130 9.2   7,002 4.0 11,031 9.1 4,858 4.0  
Northbrook 7,959 10.9 2,913 4.0 * * * *

*Northbrook Bank, which opened opened in November 2000, was “well capitalized” in all categories at December 31, 2000;  however, its capital
ratios at December 31, 2000 were not meaningful.

(17) Commitments and Contingencies

The Company has outstanding, at any time, a number of

commitments to extend credit to its customers.  These

commitments include revolving home line and other

credit agreements, term loan commitments and standby

letters of credit.  These commitments involve, to varying

degrees, elements of credit and interest rate risk in excess

of the amounts recognized in the Consolidated State-

ments of Condition.  Since many of the commitments are

expected to expire without being drawn upon, the total

commitment amounts do not necessarily represent future

cash requirements.  The Company uses the same credit

policies in making commitments as it does for on-balance

sheet instruments.  Commitments to extend credit at

December 31, 2001 and 2000 were $683.5 million and

$511.2 million, respectively.  Standby and commercial  let-

ters of credit amounts were $25.9 million and $27.5 mil-

lion at December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

In connection with the sale of premium finance receiv-

ables, the Company continues to service the receivables

and maintains a recourse obligation to the purchasers

should the underlying borrowers default on their obliga-

tions.  The estimated recourse obligation is taken into

account in recording the sale, effectively reducing the

gain recognized.  As of December 31, 2001 and 2000,

outstanding premium finance receivables sold to and

serviced for third parties for which the Company has a

recourse obligation were $107.8 million and $94.6 million,

respectively.
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In the ordinary course of business, there are legal proceed-

ings pending against the Company and its subsidiaries.

Management considers that the aggregate liabilities, if any,

resulting from such actions would not have a material

adverse effect on the financial position of the Company. 

(18) Derivative Financial Instruments

The Company enters into certain derivative financial

instruments as part of its strategy to manage its exposure

to market risk.  Market risk is the possibility that, due to

changes in interest rates or other economic conditions,

the Company’s net interest income will be adversely

affected.  The derivative financial instruments that are

currently being utilized by the Company to manage this

risk include interest rate cap and interest rate swap con-

tracts.  The amounts potentially subject to market and

credit risks are the streams of interest payments under

the contracts and not the notional principal amounts used

to express the volume of the transactions.

As of January 1, 2001, the Company adopted SFAS 133,

“Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activ-

ities,” as amended by SFAS 137 and SFAS 138 (collec-

tively referred to as SFAS 133).

As a result of the adoption of SFAS 133, the Company

recognizes all derivative financial instruments, such as

interest rate cap and interest rate swap agreements, in

the Consolidated Financial Statements at fair value

regardless of the purpose or intent for holding the instru-

ment.  Derivatives are included in other assets or other

liabilities, as appropriate, on the Consolidated Statement

of Condition.  Changes in the fair value of derivative finan-

cial instruments are either recognized periodically in

income or in shareholders’ equity as a component of

comprehensive income depending on whether the deriv-

ative financial instrument qualifies for hedge accounting,

and if so, whether it qualifies as a fair value hedge or

cash flow hedge.  Generally, changes in fair values of

derivatives accounted for as fair value hedges are

recorded in income along with the portions of the

changes in the fair values of the hedged items that relate

to the hedged risk(s).  Changes in fair values of deriva-

tives accounted for as cash flow hedges, to the extent

they are effective hedges, are recorded in other compre-

hensive income net of deferred taxes.  Changes in fair

values of derivatives not qualifying as hedges are

reported in income.

Derivatives owned by the Company on January 1, 2001,

were not designated as hedges in accordance with SFAS

133.  As a result, the effect of recording the derivatives at fair

value upon adoption resulted in a charge of $254,000 (net of

tax) in the Consolidated Statement of Income to reflect the

cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle.

At December 31, 2001, the Company had $255 million of

notional principal amounts of interest rate caps with

maturities ranging from March 2002 to February 2003.

These contracts were purchased to mitigate the effect of

rising rates on certain floating rate deposit products and

provide for the receipt of payments when the 91-day

Treasury bill rate exceeds the predetermined strike rates

that range from 3.75% to 6.50%.  The payment amounts,

if any, are determined and received on a monthly basis

and are recorded as an adjustment to net interest

income.

At December 31, 2001, the Company had $25 million

notional principal amount of interest rate swap agree-

ments maturing in February 2004.  This contract effec-

tively converts a portion of the Company’s floating-rate

notes payable to a fixed-rate basis, thus reducing the

impact of interest rate changes on future interest

expense.

The following table presents a summary of derivative

instruments owned as of December 31, 2001 and

whether the changes in fair values are accounted for in

the income statement (IS) or as other comprehensive

income (OCI):

Accounting Fair Value
Notional for change in at year

Contract Amount fair value end
Interest rate caps $ 185,000,000 IS $             -
Interest rate caps 70,000,000 OCI 54,000
Interest rate swap 25,000,000 OCI (681,000)

The estimated amount of the existing losses on deriva-

tives at December 31, 2001 that is expected to be reclas-

sified into earnings within the next twelve months is

approximately $675,000.

Please see Note 19 - Fair Value of Financial Instruments,

and Note 20 – Shareholders’ Equity, for additional infor-

mation related to the market values and recording of

changes in the market values of interest rate cap and

swap agreements.

Periodically, the Company will sell options to a bank or

dealer for the right to purchase certain securities held

within the Banks’ investment portfolios.  These covered

call option transactions are designed primarily to

increase the total return associated with holding these

securities as earning assets.  The option premium

income generated by these transactions is recognized as

other non-interest income.  There were no call options

outstanding as of December 31, 2001 or 2000.
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(19) Fair Value of Financial Instruments

SFAS 107, “Disclosures about Fair Value of Financial Instruments,” defines the fair value of a financial instrument as the

amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties.  The following table

presents the carrying amounts and estimated fair values of the Company’s financial instruments at December 31, 2001 and

2000 (in thousands):

At December 31, 2001 At December 31, 2000
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair

Value Value Value Value
Financial Assets:

Cash and demand balances from banks $      71,575 $      71,575 $      65,413 $        65,413 
Fed funds sold and securities purchased 

under resale agreements 51,955 51,955 164,641 164,641 
Interest bearing deposits with other banks 692 692 182 182 
Available-for-sale securities 385,350 385,350 193,105 193,105 
Loans, net of unearned income 2,061,383 2,079,408 1,558,020 1,547,571 
Accrued interest receivable 10,702 10,702 10,850 10,850 

Financial Liabilities:
Non-maturity deposits 1,009,524 1,009,524 749,448 749,448 
Deposits with stated maturities 1,305,112 1,318,137 1,077,128 1,080,224 
Short-term borrowings 28,074 28,074 43,639 43,639 
Notes payable 46,575 46,575 27,575 27,575 
Federal Home Loan Bank advances 90,000 88,819 -   -   
Long-term debt - trust preferred securities 51,050 54,122 51,050 48,166 
Accrued interest payable 3,999 3,999 4,360 4,360 

Off-balance sheet derivative contracts:
Interest rate cap agreements 54 54 472 57 
Interest rate swap contracts (681) (681) -   -   

Cash, demand balances from banks, Federal funds sold

and securities purchased under resale agreements: The

carrying value of cash, demand balances from banks,

Federal funds sold and securities purchased under resale

agreements approximates fair value due to the short

maturity of those instruments.  Securities purchased

under resale agreements are short-term and have a fixed

sales price equal to the carrying amount.

Interest bearing deposits with banks and securities: Fair

values of these instruments are based on quoted market

prices, when available.  If quoted market prices are not

available, fair values are based on quoted market prices

of comparable assets.

Loans: Fair values are estimated for portfolios of loans

with similar financial characteristics.  Loans are analyzed

by type such as commercial, residential real estate, etc.

Each category is further segmented into fixed and vari-

able interest rate terms.

For variable-rate loans that reprice frequently, estimated

fair values are based on carrying values.  The fair value

of residential loans is based on secondary market

sources for securities backed by similar loans, adjusted

for differences in loan characteristics.  The fair value for

other loans is estimated by discounting scheduled cash

flows through the estimated maturity using estimated

market discount rates that reflect credit and interest rate

inherent in the loan.

Accrued interest receivable and accrued interest payable:

The carrying value of accrued interest receivable and

accrued interest payable approximates market value due

to the relatively short period of time to expected realization.

Deposit liabilities: The fair value of deposits with no stated

maturity, such as non-interest bearing deposits, savings,

NOW accounts and money market accounts, is equal to

the amount payable on demand as of year-end (i.e. the

carrying value).  The fair value of certificates of deposit is

based on the discounted value of contractual cash flows.

The discount rate is estimated using the rates currently in

effect for deposits of similar remaining maturities.

Short-term borrowings: The carrying value of short-term

borrowings approximates fair value due to the relatively

short period of time to maturity or repricing.
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Notes payable: The carrying value of notes payable

approximates fair value due to the relatively short period

of time to repricing of variable interest rates.

Federal Home Loan Bank advances: The fair value of Fed-

eral Home Loan Bank advances are determined using a

discounted cash flow analysis based on current market

rates of similar maturity debt securities to discount cash

flows.

Long-term debt: The fair value of long-term debt, which

consists entirely of Trust Preferred Securities, are deter-

mined based on the quoted market prices as of the last

business day of the year.

Interest rate cap and swap agreements: The fair value is

based on quoted market prices as of the last business

day of the year.

Commitments to extend credit and standby letters of

credit: The fair value of commitments to extend credit is

based on fees currently charged to enter into similar

arrangements, the remaining term of the agreement, the

present creditworthiness of the counterparty, and the dif-

ference between current interest rates and committed

interest rates on the commitments.  The majority of the

Company’s commitments contain variable interest rates;

thus, the carrying value approximates fair value.  

The fair value of letters of credit is based on fees cur-

rently charged for similar arrangements.  The fair value of

such commitments is not material and is not shown here.

The above fair value estimates were made at a point in

time based on relevant market information and other

assumptions about the financial instruments.  As no

active market exists for a significant portion of the Com-

pany’s financial instruments, fair value estimates were

based on judgments regarding current economic condi-

tions, future expected cash flows and loss experience,

risk characteristics and other factors.  These estimates

are subjective in nature and involve uncertainties and

therefore cannot be calculated with precision.  Changes

in these assumptions could significantly affect these esti-

mates.  In addition, the fair value estimates only reflect

existing on and off-balance sheet financial instruments

and do not attempt to assess the value of anticipated

future business and the value of assets and liabilities that

are not considered financial instruments.  For example,

the value of depositor relationships, premises and equip-

ment, intangible assets and the Company’s trust and

asset management business have not been considered.

(20) Shareholders’ Equity

A summary of the Company’s common and preferred

stock at December 31, 2001 and 2000, is as follows:

2001 2000
Common Stock:

Shares authorized 30,000,000 30,000,000
Shares issued 14,531,665 13,285,042
Shares outstanding 14,531,665 12,921,592
Cash dividend per share $0.093 $0.067

Preferred Stock:
Shares authorized 20,000,000 20,000,000
Shares issued - -
Shares outstanding - -

The Company reserves shares of its authorized common

stock specifically for its Stock Incentive Plan and its

Employee Stock Purchase Plan.   The reserved shares,

and these plans, are detailed in Note 15 – Employee Ben-

efit and Stock Plans.

The Company has designated 100,000 shares of its pre-

ferred stock as Junior Serial Preferred Stock A.  These

shares were designated in connection with the adoption

of a Shareholder Rights Plan in 1998, and are reserved

for issuance in the event the Rights become exercisable

under the plan.  The Rights could be triggered in certain

circumstances related to a person or group acquiring

more than 15% of the Company’s stock or commencing a

tender or exchange offer to acquire 15% or more of the

Company’s stock without prior approval of the Com-

pany’s Board of Directors.  The Rights are evidenced by

the certificates representing shares of Common Stock,

are nondetachable and do not trade separately.  The

Rights will expire in April 2008.

The Company has issued warrants to acquire common

stock.  The warrants entitle the holders to purchase one

share of the Company’s common stock at purchase

prices ranging from $9.90 to $10.00 per share.  Warrants

outstanding at December 31, 2001 and 2000 were

232,054 and 233,149, respectively.  Expiration dates on

the remaining outstanding warrants at December 31,

2001 range from December 2002 through November

2005.

In June 2001, the Company issued 1,488,750 additional

shares of its common stock through a public offering,

realizing net proceeds of approximately $22.2 million.

The shares issued included the reissuance of 363,450

treasury shares.  
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During the first quarter of 2000, the Company initiated a

stock buyback program authorizing the repurchase of up

to 450,000 shares of its common stock.  Through Sep-

tember 30, 2000, the Company repurchased a total of

363,450 shares at an average price of $10.63 per share.

No additional repurchases were made subsequent to

September 30, 2000.  As previously noted, the shares

repurchased pursuant to this buyback program were

reissued with the Company’s common stock offering in

June 2001.

At its January 2002 Board of Directors meeting, a semi-

annual cash dividend of $0.06 per share ($0.12 on an

annualized basis) was declared payable on February 19,

2002 to shareholders of record as of February 5, 2002. 

At the same meeting, a 3-for-2 stock split of the Com-

pany’s common stock, to be effected in the form of a 50%

stock dividend, payable on March 14, 2002 to share-

holders of record as of March 4, 2002, was declared.  All

historical share data and per share amounts in this report

have been restated to reflect the stock split.

The following table summarizes the components of other

comprehensive income, including the related income tax

effects, for the years ending December 31, 2001,  2000

and 1999 (in thousands): 

2001 2000 1999
Unrealized net gains (losses) on 

available-for-sale securities $ (1,747) 2,895 (3,460)
Related tax (expense) benefit 588 (1,013) 1,243 
Net after tax unrealized gains (losses) 

on available-for-sale securities (1,159) 1,882 (2,217)

Less: reclassification adjustment for 
net gains (losses) realized in net 
income during the year 337 (40) 5 

Related tax (expense) benefit (118) 14 (2)
Net after tax reclassification adjustment 219 (26) 3 

Net unrealized gains (losses) on 
available-for-sale securities, net of  
reclassification adjustment (1,378) 1,908 (2,220)

Net unrealized losses on derivatives 
used as cash flow hedges (866) - - 

Related tax benefit 303 - - 
Net unrealized losses on derivatives 

used as cash flow hedges (563) -   -  
Total other comprehensive income (loss) $  (1,941) 1,908 (2,220)

A rollforward of the change in accumulated other com-

prehensive income for the years ending December 31,

2001, 2000 and 1999 is as follows (in thousands): 

2001 2000 1999
Accumulated other comprehensive 

loss at beginning of year $    (363) (2,271) (51)
Other comprehensive income (loss) (1,941) 1,908 (2,220)
Accumulated other comprehensive 

loss at end of year $ (2,304) (363) (2,271)

Accumulated other comprehensive income at December

31, 2001, 2000 and 1999 is comprised of the following

components (in thousands): 

2001 2000 1999
Accumulated unrealized losses 

on securities available-for-sale $  (1,741) (363) (2,271)
Accumulated unrealized losses on  

derivatives used as cash flow hedges (563) -   -   
Total accumulated other comprehensive 

loss at end of year $  (2,304) (363) (2,271)

(21)  Segment Information

The Company’s operations consist of five primary seg-

ments:  banking, premium finance, indirect auto, Tricom

and trust and asset management.  Through its seven bank

subsidiaries located in several affluent suburban Chicago

communities, the Company provides traditional community

banking products and services to individuals and busi-

nesses such as accepting deposits, advancing loans,

administering ATMs, maintaining safe deposit boxes, and

providing other related services.  The premium finance

operations consist of financing the payment of commercial

insurance premiums, on a national basis, through FIFC.  A

significant portion of the loans originated by FIFC are sold

to the Banks and are retained in each of their loan portfo-

lios.  The indirect auto segment is operated from one of the

Company’s bank subsidiaries and is in the business of pro-

viding high quality new and used auto loans through a net-

work of auto dealerships within the Chicago metropolitan

area.  All loans originated by this segment are currently

retained within the Banks’ loan portfolios.  The Tricom seg-

ment encompasses the operations of the Company’s non-

bank subsidiary that provides short-term accounts

receivable financing and value-added out-sourced adminis-

trative services, such as data processing of payrolls, billing

and cash management services, to temporary staffing serv-

ice clients throughout the United States. The operating seg-

ment information of Tricom is included in the following

tables since October 1, 1999, the effective date of the Com-

pany’s acquisition of Tricom.  The trust and asset manage-

ment segment is operated through WAMC, which offers

trust and investment management services at each of the
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Parent &
Premium Indirect Intersegment

Banking Finance Auto Tricom Trust Eliminations Consolidated
2001
Net interest income (expense) $ 69,937 26,911 6,796 3,936 755 (34,321) 74,014
Provision for loan losses 7,023 3,611 928 88 - (3,750) 7,900
Noninterest income 18,520 4,520 10 4,084 1,996 (332) 28,798
Noninterest expense (1) 49,059 10,288 2,203 5,813 3,421 (4,586) 66,198
Income tax expense (benefit) (1) 11,528 6,960 1,459 870 (257) (10,285) 10,275
Net income (loss) $ 20,847 10,572 2,216 1,249 (413) (16,032) 18,439

Total assets at end of period $ 2,674,121 375,221 189,912 28,121 5,588 (567,541) 2,705,422

2000
Net interest income (expense) $ 57,220 14,824 6,489 3,640 508 (21,681) 61,000
Provision for loan losses 4,833 1,409 1,640 15 - (2,842) 5,055
Noninterest income 8,627 3,831 2 4,476 1,971 (601) 18,306
Noninterest expense 38,198 12,952 2,205 5,358 3,156 (4,066) 57,803
Income tax expense (benefit) 8,045 1,705 1,050 1,113 (264) (6,356) 5,293
Net income (loss) $ 14,771 2,589 1,596 1,630 (413) (9,018) 11,155

Total assets at end of period $ 2,071,147 360,218 209,813 31,883 5,492 (575,747) 2,102,806

1999
Net interest income (expense) $ 44,293 12,643 8,201 826 469 (18,698) 47,734
Provision for loan losses 3,774 263 1,665 10 - (1,999) 3,713
Noninterest income 7,140 1,033 1 1,009 1,171 (546) 9,808
Noninterest expense 31,544 6,443 2,165 1,247 2,498 (4,219) 39,678
Income tax expense (benefit) 5,831 2,697 1,692 238 (299) (5,435) 4,724
Net income (loss) $ 10,284 4,273 2,680 340 (559) (7,591) 9,427

Total assets at end of period $ 1,676,983 260,323 266,040 29,213 2,578 (555,755) 1,679,382

(1) Includes amounts reported as a cumulative effect of accounting change.

Banks.  In addition to offering these services to existing cus-

tomers of the Banks, WAMC targets affluent individuals and

small to mid-size businesses whose needs command per-

sonalized attention by experienced trust and asset man-

agement professionals.  

Each of the five reportable segments are strategic business

units that are separately managed as they offer different

products and services and have different marketing strate-

gies.  In addition, each segment’s customer base has vary-

ing characteristics.  The banking and indirect auto segments

also have a different regulatory environment than the pre-

mium finance, Tricom and trust and asset management seg-

ments.  While the Company’s chief decision makers monitor

each of the seven bank subsidiaries’ operations and prof-

itability separately, these subsidiaries have been aggregated

into one reportable operating segment due to the similarities

in products and services, customer base, operations, prof-

itability measures, and economic characteristics.

The segment financial information provided in the follow-

ing tables has been derived from the internal profitability

reporting system used by management and the chief

decision makers to monitor and manage the financial per-

formance of the Company.  The accounting policies of

the segments are generally the same as those described

in the Summary of Significant Accounting Policies in Note

1 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.  The Com-

pany evaluates segment performance based on after-tax

profit or loss and other appropriate profitability measures

common to each segment.  Certain indirect expenses

have been allocated based on actual volume measure-

ments and other criteria, as appropriate.  Intersegment

revenue and transfers are generally accounted for at cur-

rent market prices.  The Parent and Intersegment Elimi-

nations reflects parent company information and

intersegment eliminations. 

The following is a summary of certain operating informa-

tion for reportable segments (in thousands):

The premium finance and indirect auto segment informa-

tion shown in the above tables was derived from their inter-

nal profitability reports, which assumes that all loans

originated and sold to the banking segment are retained

within the segment that originated the loans.  All related

loan interest income, allocations for interest expense, pro-

visions for possible loan losses and allocations for other

expenses are included in the premium finance and indirect 
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(22) Condensed Parent Company Financial Statements

auto segments.  The banking segment information also includes all amounts related to these loans, as these loans are

retained within the Banks’ loan portfolios.  Accordingly, the intersegment eliminations include adjustments necessary for each

category to agree with the related consolidated financial amounts.  The intersegment eliminations amount reflected in the

Income Tax Expense (Benefit) category also includes the recognition of income tax benefits from the realization of previously

unvalued tax loss benefits.

Condensed Balance Sheets 
(in thousands):

December 31,
2001 2000

Assets
Cash $         232 312
Other Investments 1,772 1,609 
Loans 1,200 1,200
Investment in subsidiaries 233,637 176,501
Other assets 6,428 4,401
Total assets $  243,269 184,023

Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity
Other liabilities $ 2,787 1,543     
Notes payable 46,575 27,575
Long-term debt - trust 

preferred securities 52,629 52,629
Shareholders’ equity 141,278 102,276
Total liabilities and 

shareholders’ equity $  243,269 184,023

Condensed Statements of Income 
(in thousands):

Year Ended December 31,
2001 2000 1999

Income
Dividends from subsidiaries    $ 13,500 16,000 -
Other income 284 101 60
Total income 13,784 16,101 60

Expenses
Interest expense 7,082 5,297 3,187
Salaries and employee benefits 692 641 252
Amortization of goodwill and 

organizational costs 104 104 212
Other expenses 1,723 1,382 945
Total expenses 9,601 7,424 4,596
Income (loss) before income taxes 

and equity in undistributed net 
income of subsidiaries 4,183 8,677 (4,536)

Income tax benefit (3,515) (2,841) (1,709)
Income (loss) before equity in  

undistributed net income 
of subsidiaries 7,698 11,518 (2,827)

Equity in undistributed net 
income (loss) of subsidiaries 10,741 (363) 12,254

Net income $ 18,439 11,155 9,427

Condensed Statements of Cash Flows 
(in thousands):

Year Ended December 31,
2001 2000 1999

Operating activities:
Net income $ 18,439 11,155 9,427
Adjustments to reconcile net 
income to net cash provided 
by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization 398 338 365  
Deferred income tax benefit (135) (337) (249)
Increase in other assets (2,971) (1,286) (237)
Increase in other liabilities 1,345 401 320
Equity in undistributed net 
(income) loss of subsidiaries (10,741) 363 (12,254)

Net cash provided by (used for) 
operating activities 6,335 10,634 (2,628)

Investing activities:
Capital contributions 

to subsidiaries (48,150) (44,169) (14,300)
Other investing activity, net 231 (2,532) -
Net cash used for 

investing activities (47,919) (46,701) (14,300)

Financing activities:
Increase in notes payable, net 19,000 19,225 8,350
Proceeds from long-term debt - 20,619 -
Common stock issuance, net 22,222 - 5,984
Common stock issued upon 

exercise of stock options 1,296 878 403
Common stock issued through 

employee stock purchase plan 254 126 148
Proceeds from conversion of

Common stock warrants 11 - -
Cash dividends paid (1,279) (875) -
Purchase of common stock - (3,863) -
Net cash provided by 

financing activities 41,504 36,110 14,885
Net increase (decrease) in cash (80) 43 (2,043)
Cash at beginning of year 312 269 2,312
Cash at end of year $      232 312 269
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(23) Earnings Per Share 

The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted earnings per common share for 2001, 2000 and 1999

(in thousands, except per share data):

2001 2000 1999

Net income (A) $18,439 11,155 9,427

Average common shares outstanding (B) 13,734 13,066 12,373
Effect of dilutive common shares 811 345 464
Weighted average common shares and

effect of dilutive common shares (C) 14,545 13,411 12,837
Net income per 

common share - Basic (A/B) $ 1.34 0.85 0.76
Net income per 

common share - Diluted (A/C) $ 1.27 0.83 0.73

The effect of dilutive common shares outstanding results from stock options, stock warrants and shares to be issued

under the SPP, all being treated as if they had been either exercised or issued, and are computed by application of the

treasury stock method. 

(24)  Quarterly Financial Summary (Unaudited)

The following is a summary of quarterly financial information for the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000  (in thou-

sands, except per share data):

2001 Quarters 2000 Quarters
First Second Third Fourth First Second Third Fourth

Interest income           $ 41,782 41,390 42,529 40,754 32,309  35,074 38,908 41,893
Interest expense 24,506 23,375 23,399 21,161 18,441 20,225 23,268 25,250
Net interest income 17,276 18,015  19,130 19,593 13,868      14,849  15,640 16,643 
Provision for possible loan losses 1,638 2,264 2,100 1,898 1,141 1,223 1,307 1,384
Net interest income after provision 

for possible loan losses 15,638 15,751  17,030 17,695  12,727 13,626 14,333   15,259
Non-interest income, excluding

net securities gains (losses) 6,564 7,305 7,158 7,434 4,275 4,532 4,562 4,977
Net securities gains (losses) 286 86 (57) 22 3 (28) (69) 54
Non-interest expense (1) 15,971 16,282 16,339 17,191 12,109    12,889  18,126 14,679
Income before income taxes 6,517 6,860 7,792 7,960 4,896 5,241 700 5,611
Income tax expense (benefit) 2,359 2,497 2,784 2,796 1,774 1,922  (199) 1,796
Cumulative effect of a change in accounting

for derivatives, net of tax 254 - - - - - - -
Net income                           $ 3,904  4,363 5,008 5,164 3,122 3,319  899 3,815
Net income per common share: 

Basic  $       0.30 0.34 0.34 0.36 0.24 0.25 0.07 0.29
Diluted $       0.29 0.32 0.33    0.33 0.23 0.24 0.07 0.29

Cash dividends declared per common share $     0.047 - 0.047 - 0.033 - 0.033 -

(1) During the third quarter of 2000, the Company recorded a non-recurring $4.5 million pre-tax charge ($2.7 million after tax) related to a 
fraudulent loan scheme perpetrated against its premium finance subsidiary.  During the fourth quarter of 2000, a partial recovery of $200,000
related to this fraud was recorded as a reduction of the charge reported in the previous quarter. 
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(25) Subsequent Events

On February 20, 2002, Wintrust completed its previously

announced acquisition of Wayne Hummer Investments

LLC (including its wholly-owned subsidiary, Focused

Investments LLC) and Wayne Hummer Management

Company (collectively, the “Wayne Hummer Compa-

nies”).  Wayne Hummer Investments LLC is a registered

broker/dealer and investment services firm that provides

a full range of private client and brokerage services to

clients located primarily in the Midwest. Wayne Hummer

Management Company is a registered investment

adviser, providing services to individual accounts as well

as four proprietary mutual funds managed by the firm. 

Wintrust paid $28 million for the Wayne Hummer Com-

panies, consisting of $8 million in cash, 762,742 shares

of Wintrust’s common stock (valued at $15 million) and $5

million of deferred cash payments.  Wintrust could pay

additional contingent consideration upon the attainment

of certain performance measures over the next five

years. 

The acquisition of the Wayne Hummer Companies will

augment and diversify Wintrust’s revenue stream by

adding brokerage services to its fee based revenues as

well as offering traditional banking products to the cus-

tomers of the Wayne Hummer Companies, thereby pro-

viding a more comprehensive menu of financial products

and services to the customers of Wintrust and the Wayne

Hummer Companies.
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The Board of Directors 
Wintrust Financial Corporation

We have audited the accompanying consolidated statements of condition of Wintrust Financial Corporation and sub-

sidiaries (the “Company”) as of December 31, 2001 and 2000, and the related consolidated statements of income, share-

holders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2001.  These consolidated

financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management.  Our responsibility is to express an opinion on

these consolidated financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States.  Those stan-

dards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements

are free of material misstatement.  An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and

disclosures in the financial statements.  An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant

estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.  We believe that our

audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consol-

idated financial position of the Company at December 31, 2001 and 2000, and the consolidated results of its operations

and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2001, in conformity with accounting

principles generally accepted in the United States.

Chicago, Illinois

February 28, 2002

Report of Independent Auditors 
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations

The following discussion highlights the significant factors

affecting the operations and financial condition of Wintrust

for the three years ended December 31, 2001.  This discus-

sion and analysis should be read in conjunction with the

Company’s Consolidated Financial Statements and Notes

thereto, and Selected Financial Highlights appearing else-

where within this report.  This discussion contains forward-

looking statements concerning the Company’s business that

are based on estimates and involve risks and uncertainties.

Therefore, future results could differ significantly from man-

agement’s current expectations and the related forward-look-

ing statements.  See the last section of this discussion for

further information regarding forward-looking statements.

On January 24, 2002, the Company’s Board of Directors

approved a 3-for-2 stock split of the Company’s common

stock to be effected in the form of a 50% stock dividend.  The

Board believes that the split will make Wintrust’s stock more

readily available to a broader base of investors and therefore

improve the liquidity of the stock.  All references to numbers

of shares and per share amounts included in this report

have been restated to reflect the effect of the stock split.

Operating Summary

Wintrust’s key measures of profitability and balance sheet

growth continued to show impressive improvement in

2001, as evidenced by the following table (dollars in thou-

sands, except per share data): 

Year Ended December 31 Percent
2001 2000 Improvement

Net income $      18,439 $ 13,761* 34.0%

Net income per common
share – Diluted $ 1.27 $        1.03* 23.3%

Net revenues $    102,812 $ 79,306 29.6%
Net interest income $ 74,014 $ 61,000 21.3%

Net interest margin 3.49% 3.66% -4.6%
Net overhead ratio 1.59% 1.90%* 16.3%
Return on average assets 0.79% 0.74%* 6.8%
Return on average equity 15.24% 14.20%* 7.3%

At end of period:
Total assets $ 2,705,422 $2,102,806 28.7%
Total loans $ 2,061,383 $1,558,020 32.3%
Total deposits $ 2,314,636 $1,826,576 26.7%

Book value per
common share $   9.72 $        7.92 22.7%

Market price per 
common share $ 20.38 $ 10.63 91.7%

* Excludes non-recurring charge of $4.3 million ($2.6 million after
tax) reported in 2000 related to a fraudulent loan scheme perpe-
trated against the Company’s premium finance subsidiary.

Wintrust’s net income increased 34.0% in 2001 compared

to 2000, after increasing 46.0% in 2000 over 1999,

excluding a non-recurring charge reported in 2000.  On a

per share basis, net income per diluted common share

increased 23.3% in 2001, after increasing 41.1% in 2000.

The lower growth rate in the earnings per share in 2001,

as compared to net income, was due to the issuance of

approximately 1.5 million additional shares of common

stock in June 2001.  

Please refer to the Consolidated Results of Operations

section later in this discussion for further analysis of the

Company’s operations for the past three years. 

Overview and Strategy

Wintrust’s operating subsidiaries were organized within

the last ten years, with an average life of its seven sub-

sidiary banks of approximately six years.  The Company

has grown rapidly during the past few years and its

Banks have been among the fastest growing community-

oriented de novo banking operations in Illinois and the

country.  Because of the rapid growth, the historical finan-

cial performance of the Company has been affected by

costs associated with growing market share, establishing

new de novo banks, opening new branch facilities, and

building an experienced management team.  The Com-

pany’s financial performance over the past several years

generally reflects improving profitability of the Banks, as

they mature, offset by the costs of opening new banks

and branch facilities.  The Company’s experience has

been that it generally takes 13-24 months for new bank-

ing offices to first achieve operational profitability. 

While committed to a continuing growth strategy, man-

agement’s ongoing focus is also to balance further asset

growth with earnings growth by seeking to more fully

leverage the existing capacity within each of the Banks,

FIFC, WAMC and Tricom.  One aspect of this strategy is

to continue to pursue specialized earning asset niches in

order to maintain the mix of earning assets in higher-yield-

ing loans as well as diversify the loan portfolio.  Another

aspect of this strategy is a continued focus on less

aggressive deposit pricing at the Banks with significant

market share and more established customer bases. 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
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De Novo Bank Formation and Branch Opening Activity

The Company has developed its community banking franchise through the formation of seven de novo banks as well as

opening branch offices of the banks.  As of December 31, 2001, the Company had 29 banking facilities.  One additional

full-service branch office was opened in January 2002, and construction of several other offices are currently underway.

The following table illustrates the progression of bank and branch openings that have contributed to the Company’s

growth and results of operations since inception.

Month Year Bank Location Type of Facility

January 2002 Hinsdale Bank Riverside, Illinois (7) Branch
December   2001 Northbrook Bank Northbrook, Illinois New permanent facility
September 2001 Barrington Bank Hoffman Estates (6) Branch
February 2001 Crystal Lake Bank McHenry, Illinois (5) Branch
November 2000 Northbrook Bank Northbrook, Illinois Bank (temporary facility)
July 2000 Libertyville Bank Wauconda, Illinois (4) Branch
May 2000 Libertyville Bank Wauconda, Illinois (4) Drive-up
February 2000 Lake Forest Bank Highwood, Illinois (3) Branch
October 1999 North Shore Bank Skokie, Illinois Branch
September 1999 Crystal Lake Bank Crystal Lake, Illinois Branch
June 1999 Lake Forest Bank Lake Forest, Illinois     Bank/Corporate expansion
March 1999 Crystal Lake Bank Crystal Lake, Illinois              Drive-up/walk-up
January 1999 Hinsdale Bank Western Springs, Illinois (2) New permanent facility
October 1998 Libertyville Bank Libertyville, Illinois Branch
September 1998 Crystal Lake Bank Crystal Lake, Illinois    New permanent facility
May 1998 North Shore Bank Glencoe, Illinois              Drive-up/walk-up
April 1998 North Shore Bank Wilmette, Illinois Walk-up
December 1997 Crystal Lake Bank Crystal Lake, Illinois Bank
November 1997 Hinsdale Bank Western Springs, Illinois (2) Branch
February 1997 Lake Forest Bank Lake Forest, Illinois Drive-up/walk-up
December 1996 Barrington  Bank Barrington, Illinois Bank
August 1996 Hinsdale Bank Clarendon Hills, Illinois (1) Branch
May 1996 North Shore Bank Winnetka, Illinois Branch
November 1995 North Shore Bank Wilmette, Illinois Drive-up/walk-up
October 1995 Hinsdale Bank Hinsdale, Illinois Drive-up/walk-up
October 1995 Libertyville Bank Libertyville, Illinois Bank
October 1995 Libertyville  Bank Libertyville, Illinois Drive-up/walk-up
October 1995 North Shore Bank Glencoe, Illinois Branch
May 1995 Lake Forest Bank West Lake Forest, Illinois Branch
December 1994 Lake Forest Bank Lake Bluff, Illinois Branch
September 1994 North Shore Bank Wilmette, Illinois Bank
April 1994 Lake Forest Bank Lake Forest, Illinois New permanent facilities
October 1993 Hinsdale Bank Hinsdale, Illinois Bank
April 1993 Lake Forest Bank Lake Forest, Illinois Drive-up/walk-up
December 1991 Lake Forest Bank Lake Forest, Illinois Bank

(1) Operates in this location as Clarendon Hills Bank, a branch of Hinsdale Bank.

(2) Operates in this location as Community Bank of Western Springs, a branch of Hinsdale Bank.

(3) Operates in this location as Bank of Highwood-Fort Sheridan, a branch of Lake Forest Bank.

(4) Operates in this location as Wauconda Community Bank, a branch of Libertyville Bank.

(5) Operates in this location as McHenry Bank & Trust, a branch of Crystal Lake Bank.

(6) Operates in this location as Hoffman Estates Community Bank, a branch of Barrington Bank.

(7) Operates in this location as Riverside Bank, a branch of Hinsdale Bank.
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Earning Asset and Business Niches

As previously mentioned, the Company continues to pur-

sue specialized earning asset and business niches in

order to maximize the Company’s revenue stream as well

as diversify its loan portfolio.  A summary of the Com-

pany’s more significant earning asset and business

niches follows.

FIFC is the Company’s most significant specialized earn-

ing asset niche and originated approximately $1.3 billion

in premium finance receivable volume during 2001.  The

majority of these receivables are retained within the

Banks’ loan portfolios.  However, as a result of continued

growth in origination volume in 2001, FIFC sold approxi-

mately $245 million, or 19%, of the receivables generated

during the year to an unrelated third party.  The Company

began selling the excess of FIFC’s originations over the

capacity to retain such loans within the Banks’ loan port-

folios during the second quarter of 1999.  In addition to

recognizing gains on the sale of these receivables, the

proceeds provide the Company with additional liquidity.

Consistent with the Company’s strategy to be asset-

driven, it is probable that similar sales of these receiv-

ables will occur in the future; however, future sales of

these receivables depends on the level of new volume

growth in relation to the capacity to retain such loans

within the Banks’ loan portfolios.  See Consolidated

Results of Operations for further information on these

loan sales. 

In October 1999, the Company acquired Tricom as part of

its continuing strategy to pursue specialized earning

asset niches.  Tricom is a Milwaukee-based company that

has been in business for more than ten years and spe-

cializes in providing, on a national basis, short-term

accounts receivable financing and value-added out-

sourced administrative services, such as data processing

of payrolls, billing and cash management services, to

clients in the temporary staffing industry.  Tricom cur-

rently finances and processes payrolls with associated

client billings of approximately $248 million and gener-

ated approximately $8.0 million in net revenues in 2001.

By virtue of the Company’s funding resources, this acqui-

sition has provided Tricom with additional capital neces-

sary to expand its financing services in a national market.

Tricom’s revenue principally consists of interest income

from financing activities and fee-based revenues from

administrative services.  In addition to expanding the

Company’s earning asset niches, this acquisition has

added to the level of fee-based income.

In addition to the earning asset niches provided by the

Company’s non-bank subsidiaries, several earning asset

niches operate within the Banks, including the indirect

auto division at Hinsdale Bank, Lake Forest Bank’s MMF

Leasing Services (“MMF”) equipment leasing division and

Barrington Bank’s Community Advantage program that

provides lending, deposit and cash management serv-

ices to condominium, homeowner and community asso-

ciations.  In addition, Hinsdale Bank’s mortgage

warehouse lending program provides loan and deposit

services to mortgage brokerage companies located pre-

dominantly in the Chicago metropolitan area and Crystal

Lake Bank has recently developed a specialty in small

aircraft lending.  The Company plans to continue pursu-

ing the development or acquisition of other specialty

earning asset niches or finance businesses that generate

assets suitable for bank investment and/or secondary

market sales.

In September 1998, the Company formed WAMC, a trust

subsidiary, to expand the trust and investment manage-

ment services that were previously provided through the

trust department of Lake Forest Bank.  With a separately

chartered trust subsidiary, the Company is better able to

offer trust and investment management services to all

communities served by the Banks, which management

believes are some of the best trust markets in Illinois.  In

addition to offering these services to existing bank cus-

tomers at each of the Banks, the Company believes

WAMC can successfully compete for trust business by

targeting small to mid-size businesses and affluent indi-

viduals whose needs command the personalized atten-

tion offered by WAMC’s experienced trust professionals.

Services offered by WAMC typically include traditional

trust products and services, as well as investment man-

agement, financial planning and 401(k) management

services.  The trust and asset management services and

products will be expanded in 2002 to include brokerage

services as a result of the Company’s recent acquisition

of the Wayne Hummer Companies. 

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

There are a number of accounting policies that require

the use of judgment.  One of the most significant account-

ing policies which requires the use of judgment is estab-

lishing the amount of the allowance for possible loan

losses.  Management has established credit committees

at each of the Banks which evaluate the credit quality of

the loan portfolio and the level of the adequacy of the

allowance for possible loan losses.  See Notes to Con-

solidated Financial Statements (Note 1, Summary of Sig-

nificant Accounting Policies – “Loans and Allowance for

Possible Loan Losses”) and the section titled “Credit Risk

and Asset Quality” later in this report for discussions on
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the methodology used in determining the level of the

allowance for possible loan losses. 

Another area that requires judgment relates to the calcu-

lation of the gains on the sale of premium finance receiv-

ables.  Essentially, the initial investment in a loan is

allocated between the loan and the Company’s retained

interest based on their relative fair values, and a gain is

recognized for the difference between the proceeds

received and the cost basis allocated to the loan.  The

retained interest includes a servicing asset, an interest

only strip and a guarantee obligation pursuant to the

terms of the sale agreement.  The fair values of the serv-

icing asset and interest only strip are calculated based on

estimates of the future cash flows from the underlying

loans which incorporate assumptions for prepayments

and other factors.  The Company’s guarantee obligation

is estimated based on the historical loss experience and

credit risk factors of the loans.  If actual cash flows from

the underlying loans are less than originally anticipated,

the net retained interest may be impaired, and such

impairment would be recorded as a charge to earnings.

However, since these loans are short-term in nature, with

terms of less than twelve months, the Company’s expo-

sure to prepayment and market value risk is minimal.

General Components of Profitability

The Company’s operating profitability depends on its net

interest income, provision for possible loan losses, non-

interest income and non-interest expense.  Net interest

income is the difference between the income the Com-

pany receives on its loan and security portfolios and its

cost of funds, which consists of interest paid on deposits

and borrowed funds. The provision for possible loan

losses reflects the cost of credit risk in the Company’s

loan portfolio.  Non-interest income consists of fees on

mortgage loans sold, service charges on deposit

accounts, trust and asset management fees, gains on

sales of premium finance receivables, administrative

services revenue, premium income from call option con-

tracts and other miscellaneous fees and income.  Non-

interest expense includes salaries and employee benefits

as well as occupancy, equipment, data processing,

advertising and marketing, professional fees, amortiza-

tion of intangible assets and other operating expenses.

Net interest income is dependent on the amounts and

yields of interest-earning assets as compared to the

amounts and rates on interest-bearing liabilities.  Net

interest income is sensitive to changes in market rates of

interest and the Company’s asset/liability management

actions.  The provision for loan losses is dependent on

increases in the loan portfolio, management’s assess-

ment of the collectibility of the loan portfolio, net loans

charged-off, historical loss experience, as well as eco-

nomic conditions and other market factors.  Fees on

mortgage loans sold relate to the Company’s practice of

originating long-term fixed-rate mortgage loans for sale

into the secondary market in order to satisfy customer

demand for such loans while avoiding the interest-rate

risk associated with holding long-term fixed-rate mort-

gage loans in the Banks’ portfolios.  These fees are highly

dependent on the mortgage interest rate environment

and the volume of real estate transactions and mortgage

refinancing activity.  The Company earns trust and asset

management fees for managing and administering trust

and investment accounts for individuals and businesses.

Gains on sales of premium finance receivables result

from FIFC’s sale of a portion of new origination volumes

to an unaffiliated third party.  Administrative services rev-

enue results from various value-added services that Tri-

com provides to its temporary staffing service clients

such as data processing of payrolls, billing and cash

management services.  Miscellaneous fees and income

primarily include income generated from other ancillary

banking services, premium income from the sale of cov-

ered call options and rental income from leased equip-

ment.  Non-interest expenses are heavily influenced by

the growth of operations, with additional employees nec-

essary to staff new banks, branch facilities and trust

expansion, higher levels of occupancy and equipment

costs, as well as advertising and marketing expenses

necessary to promote the growth.  The increase in the

number of account relationships directly affects such

expenses as data processing costs, supplies, postage,

loan expenses, and other miscellaneous operating

expenses.
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Average Balance Sheets, Interest Income and Expense, and Interest Rate Yields and Costs

The following table sets forth the average balances, the interest earned or paid thereon, and the effective interest rate,

yield or cost for each major category of interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities for the years ended Decem-

ber 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999.  The yields and costs include loan origination fees and certain direct origination costs

which are considered adjustments to yields.  Interest income on non-accruing loans is reflected in the year that it is col-

lected, to the extent it is not applied to principal.  Such amounts are not material to net interest income or net change in

net interest income in any year.  Non-accrual loans are included in the average balances and do not have a material effect

on the average yield.  Net interest income and the related net interest margin have been adjusted to reflect tax-exempt

income, such as interest on municipal securities and loans, on a tax-equivalent basis.  This table should be referred to in

conjunction with this analysis and discussion of the financial condition and results of operations (dollars in thousands).

2001 2000 1999
Average Average Average

Average Yield/ Average Yield/ Average Yield/
Balance(1) Interest Cost Balance(1) Interest Cost Balance(1) Interest Cost

Assets
Interest bearing deposits with banks $ 385 $       10 2.60% $          439 $ 26 5.92% $ 3,840   $ 204  5.31%
Securities (2) 223,280 11,821 5.29 237,025 15,669 6.61 187,258 10,336 5.52
Federal funds sold 136,778 5,632 4.12  26,202 1,627 6.21 30,844 1,536 4.98
Loans, net of unearned income (2) (3) 1,786,596 149,850 8.39   1,416,419 131,428 9.28 1,135,200 97,529 8.59  

Total earning assets 2,147,039 167,313 7.79 1,680,085 148,750 8.85 1,357,142 109,605 8.08

Cash and due from banks 49,536 49,893 39,285
Allowance for possible loan losses (12,202) (9,929) (7,980)
Premises and equipment, net 91,590 80,778 65,539
Other assets 52,069 52,755 42,580

Total assets $ 2,328,032 $ 1,853,582 $ 1,496,566

Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity 
Deposits - interest bearing:
NOW accounts $ 205,306 $ 4,790 2.33% $ 152,731 $   5,248 3.44% $ 123,846 $    3,607 2.91%
Savings and money market deposits 411,929 12,387 3.01 351,095 15,313 4.36 309,525 11,194 3.62
Time deposits 1,219,584 66,326 5.44 946,011 58,109 6.14 751,286 41,225 5.49

Total interest bearing deposits 1,836,819 83,503 4.55 1,449,837 78,670 5.43 1,184,657 56,026 4.73

Short-term borrowings 
and notes payable 53,649 2,845 5.30 74,893 4,371 5.84  53,076 2,633 4.96

Federal Home Loan Bank advances 21,945 942 4.29 - - - - - -
Long-term debt – trust preferred 

securities 51,050 5,151 10.09 41,990 4,143 9.87 31,050 2,938  9.46
Total interest bearing liabilities 1,963,463 92,441 4.71 1,566,720 87,184 5.56 1,268,783 61,597 4.85

Non-interest bearing deposits 206,267 166,050 126,388
Other liabilities 37,307 23,894 20,014
Shareholders’ equity 120,995 96,918 81,381

Total liabilities and 
shareholders’ equity $ 2,328,032 $ 1,853,582 $ 1,496,566

Net interest income/spread $ 74,872 3.08% $ 61,566 3.29%  $  48,008 3.23%
Net interest margin 3.49% 3.66% 3.54%
Core net interest margin (4) 3.73% 3.91% 3.75%

(1) Average balances were generally computed using daily balances.

(2) Interest income on tax advantaged securities and loans reflects a tax-equivalent adjustment based on a marginal federal tax rate of 35%.  This
total adjustment reflected in the above table is $858, $566 and $274 in 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively.

(3) The average balances of loans include non-performing loans and loans held for sale.

(4) The core net interest margin excludes the interest expense associated with the Company’s Trust Preferred Securities. 
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Changes in Interest Income and Expense

The following table shows the dollar amount of changes in interest income (on a tax-equivalent basis) and expense by

major categories of interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities attributable to changes in volume or rate or both,

for the periods indicated (in thousands):

Year Ended December 31,
2001 Compared to 2000 2000 Compared to 1999

Change Change Change Change
Due to Due to Total Due to Due to Total
Rate Volume Change Rate Volume Change

Interest income:
Interest bearing deposits with banks $       (13)   (3) (16) 22 (200) (178)
Federal funds sold (719) 4,724 4,005 344 (253) 91
Securities (2,980) (868) (3,848) 2,274 3,059 5,333
Loans (13,513) 31,935 18,422 8,290 25,609 33,899

Total interest income (17,225) 35,788 18,563 10,930 28,215 39,145

Interest expense:
NOW accounts (1,965) 1,507 (458) 717 924 1,641
Savings and money market deposits (5,284) 2,358 (2,926) 2,488 1,631 4,119
Time deposits (7,208) 15,425 8,217 5,308 11,576 16,884
Short-term borrowings and notes payable (371) (1,155) (1,526) 522 1,216 1,738
Federal Home Loan Bank advances - 942 942 - - -
Long-term debt – trust preferred securities 96 912 1,008 131 1,074 1,205

Total interest expense (14,732) 19,989 5,257 9,166 16,421 25,587

Net interest income $  (2,493) 15,799 13,306 1,764 11,794 13,558

The changes in net interest income are created by vari-

ous changes in both interest rates and volumes and,

therefore, require significant analysis.   However, it is

clear that the change in the Company’s net interest

income for the periods under review was predominantly

impacted by the growth in the volume of the overall inter-

est-earning assets (specifically loans) and interest-bearing

deposit liabilities.  In the table above, volume variances

are computed using the change in volume multiplied by

the previous year’s rate.  Rate variances are computed

using the change in rate multiplied by the previous year’s

volume.  The change in interest due to both rate and vol-

ume has been allocated between factors in proportion to

the relationship of the absolute dollar amounts of the

change in each.

Analysis of Financial Condition

The dynamics of community bank balance sheets are

generally dependent upon the ability of management to

attract additional deposit accounts to fund the growth of

the institution.  As several of the Company’s banks and

branch offices are still less than five years old, the gener-

ation of new deposit relationships to gain market share

and establish themselves in the community as the bank

of choice is particularly important.  When determining a

community to establish a de novo bank, the Company

generally will only enter a community where it believes

the bank can gain the number one or two position in

deposit market share.  This is usually accomplished by

initially paying competitively high deposit rates to gain

the relationship and then by introducing the customer to

the Company’s unique way of providing local banking

services.

Deposits. Over the past three years, the Company has

experienced significant growth in both the number of

accounts and the balance of deposits primarily as a result

of de novo bank formations, new branch openings and

strong marketing efforts.  Total deposit balances

increased 26.7% to $2.31 billion at December 31, 2001,

as compared to $1.83 billion at December 31, 2000,

which increased 24.8% when compared to the balance of

$1.46 billion at December 31, 1999.
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The composition of the deposit base has remained relatively consistent over the last three years as evidenced by the

deposit balances and relative composition of each deposit category to total deposits as of December 31, 2001, 2000 and

1999, in the following table (dollars in thousands):

2001 2000 1999
Ending Percent Ending Percent Ending Percent
Balance of Total Balance of Total Balance of Total

Non-interest bearing deposits $     254,269 11% $    198,319  11% $ 154,034 11%
NOW accounts 286,860 13 180,898 10 130,625 9
Savings and money market deposits 468,395 20 370,231 20 325,201 22
Time deposits 1,305,112 56 1,077,128 59 853,762 58

Total deposits $  2,314,636 100% $ 1,826,576 100% $ 1,463,622 100%

Additionally, growth in the deposit base continues to be generated by each of the Banks.  The following table presents

deposit balances by the Banks and the relative percentage of total deposits held by each Bank at December 31 for the

past three years (dollars in thousands):

2001 2000 1999
Ending Percent Ending Percent Ending Percent
Balance of Total Balance of Total Balance of Total

Lake Forest Bank $     584,493 25% $    482,119 26% $ 416,642  29%
Hinsdale Bank 425,322 19 350,407 19 296,127 20
North Shore Bank 482,333 21 410,205 23 327,130 22
Libertyville Bank 296,056 13 245,119 13 191,085 13
Barrington Bank 284,316 12 215,456 12 156,859 11
Crystal Lake Bank 165,456 7 107,555 6 75,779 5
Northbrook Bank 76,660 3 15,715 1 - -

Total deposits $  2,314,636 100% $ 1,826,576 100% $ 1,463,622 100%

Percentage increase from 
prior year-end 26.7% 24.8% 19.1%

Other Funding Sources. Although deposits are the Com-

pany’s primary source of funding its interest-earning

assets, the Company’s ability to manage the types and

terms of deposits is somewhat limited by customer pref-

erences and market competition.  As a result, in addition

to deposits, the Company uses several other funding

sources to support its growth.  These other sources

include short-term borrowings, notes payable, FHLB

advances, trust preferred securities and the issuance of

equity securities as well as the retention of earnings.  The

Company evaluates the terms and unique characteristics

of each source, as well as its asset-liability management

position, in determining the use of such funding sources. 

Short-term borrowings. Short-term borrowings include

securities sold under repurchase agreements and federal

funds purchased and totaled $28.1 million and $43.6 mil-

lion at December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively.  This

funding category fluctuates based on daily liquidity needs

of the Banks, FIFC and Tricom.  

Notes payable. The notes payable balances of $46.6 mil-

lion at December 31, 2001 and $27.6 million at Decem-

ber 31, 2000, represent the balances on a  revolving

credit agreement with an unaffiliated bank.  This revolv-

ing credit line is available for corporate purposes such as

to provide capital to fund continued growth at existing

bank subsidiaries, expansion of WAMC, possible future

acquisitions and for other general corporate matters.  See

Note 10 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for fur-

ther discussion of the terms of this revolving credit line. 

FHLB Advances. In 2001, the Banks began to use FHLB

advances as a source of funding.  These advances pro-

vide the Banks with access to fixed rate funds which are

useful in mitigating interest rate risk and achieving an

acceptable interest rate spread on fixed rate loans or

securities.  FHLB advances to the Banks totaled $90 mil-

lion at December 31, 2001.  See Note 11 to the Consoli-

dated Financial Statements for further discussion of the

terms of these advances. 
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2001 2000 1999
Percent Percent Percent 

Balance of Total Balance of Total Balance of Total 

Core loans: 
Commercial and 

commercial real estate $ 1,007,580 49% $     647,947 42% $ 485,776 38%
Home equity 261,049 12 179,168 12 139,194 11
Residential real estate 182,945 9 141,919 9 111,026 9
Other loans 59,157 3 51,995 3 49,925 4

Total core loans 1,510,731 73 1,021,029 66 785,921 62

Niche loans: 
Premium finance receivables 348,163 17 313,065 20 219,341 17
Indirect auto loans 184,209 9 203,572 13 255,410 20
Tricom finance receivables 18,280 1 20,354 1 17,577 1

Total niche loans 550,652 27 536,991 34 492,328 38

Total loans, net of unearned income $ 2,061,383 100% $  1,558,020 100% $  1,278,249 100%

Long-term debt - trust preferred securities. The Company

has $51.1 million of trust preferred securities outstanding

which were sold in two public offerings.  In October

1998, the Company sold $31.05 million of 9.00% trust

preferred securities and in June 2000, sold $20.0 million

at 10.50%.  The trust preferred securities offerings

increased the Company’s regulatory capital, and pro-

vided for the continued growth of its banking and trust

franchise.  The ability to treat these trust preferred secu-

rities as regulatory capital under Federal Reserve Bank

guidelines and to deduct the related interest expense for

Federal income taxes, provides the Company with a cost-

effective form of capital.  See Note 12 to the Consolidated

Financial Statements for further discussion of these trust

preferred securities. 

Total assets and earning assets. The Company’s total

assets were $2.71 billion at December 31, 2001, an

increase of $602.6 million, or 28.7%, when compared to

$2.10 billion at December 31, 2000, which increased

$423.4 million, or 25.2%, over the December 31, 1999

total of $1.68 billion.  Earning assets totaled $2.50 billion

at December 31, 2001, an increase of $583.4 million, or

30.5%, from the balance of $1.92 billion a year earlier.

Earning assets as a percentage of total assets were

92.4% and 91.1% as of December 31, 2001 and 2000,

respectively. The increases in total assets and earning

assets since December 31, 2000 were primarily attribut-

able to the $488.1 million increase in deposits, which

mainly resulted from continued market share growth.  

Loans. Total loans, net of unearned income, totaled

$2.06 billion at December 31, 2001, and continued on a

solid growth track during 2001 increasing $503.4 million,

or 32.3%, over the December 31, 2000 balance of $1.56

billion.  In 2000, total loans increased $279.8 million, or

21.9%, compared to the balance at the end of 1999.

Growth has occurred in all core categories and the pre-

mium finance receivables portfolio.  Decreases in the

indirect auto loan portfolio were the result of manage-

ment’s decision to slow the volume of originations of indi-

rect auto loans due to the current economic and

competitive environment surrounding this portfolio.  Total

loans, net of unearned income, comprised 82.5% of total

earning assets at December 31, 2001 as compared to

81.3% at December 31, 2000.  Total loans were 89.1% of

total deposits at December 31, 2001 as compared to

85.3% at December 31, 2000.  These loan-to-deposit

ratios fall within management’s desired range of 85%-90%.

Deploying the deposits in higher yielding earning assets

is consistent with management’s objective of being an

asset-driven organization whereby excess loan origina-

tions can be sold to third parties and new deposit growth

can be immediately invested in higher yielding assets.

The following table presents loan balances, net of

unearned income, by category as of December 31, 2001,

2000 and 1999 (dollars in thousands):

Niche Loan Categories. In order to minimize the time lag

typically experienced by de novo banks in redeploying

deposits into higher yielding earning assets, the Com-

pany has developed lending programs focused on spe-

cialized earning asset niches that generally have large

volumes of homogeneous assets that can be acquired

for the Banks’ portfolios and possibly sold in the second-

ary market to generate fee income.  These specialty

niches also diversify the Banks’ loan portfolios and add

higher yielding earning assets that help to improve the
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net interest margin.  Currently, the Company’s three spe-

cialty loan areas that are considered separate operating

segments consist of the premium finance, indirect auto

and Tricom segments.  Other specialty loan programs

include medical and municipal equipment leases through

a division of Lake Forest Bank, mortgage broker ware-

house lending through Hinsdale Bank, the Community

Advantage program at Barrington Bank, which provides

lending, deposit and cash management services to con-

dominium, homeowner and community associations and

the small aircraft lending program at Crystal Lake Bank.

Management continues to evaluate other specialized

types of earning assets to assist with the deployment of

deposit funds and to diversify the earning asset portfolio. 

Premium finance receivables. The Company originates

commercial premium finance receivables through FIFC.

All premium finance receivables originated by FIFC are

subject to the Company’s stringent credit standards, and

substantially all such loans are made to commercial cus-

tomers.  The Company rarely finances consumer insur-

ance premiums.  At December 31, 2001, premium

finance receivables totaled $348.2 million and accounted

for 17% of the Company’s total loan portfolio.  The bal-

ance reflects an increase of  $35.1 million, or 11.2%, from

the $313.1 million balance a year earlier. The majority of

the receivables originated by FIFC are sold to the Banks

and retained in their loan portfolios.  However, premium

finance receivables originated in excess of the capacity

to retain such receivables within the Banks’ loan portfo-

lios are sold to an unrelated third party.    In  2001, FIFC

sold approximately $245 million, or 19%, of the $1.3 bil-

lion of receivables originated in 2001, to an unrelated

third party and recognized gains of approximately $4.6

million from such sales. Total loan originations in 2001

increased approximately $223.6 million, or 21%, over the

$1.1 billion of originations in  2000.  This increase in orig-

ination volume is due in part to market increases in insur-

ance premiums.  With continued growth expectations in

2002, it is probable that the Company will continue sell-

ing a portion of these new receivables to unrelated third

parties.  See Consolidated Results of Operations for fur-

ther information on these loan sales. 

Indirect auto loans. The Company finances fixed rate

automobile loans sourced indirectly through an estab-

lished network of unaffiliated automobile dealers located

throughout the Chicago metropolitan area.  These indi-

rect auto loans are secured by new and used automo-

biles and generally have an original maturity of 36 to 60

months with the average actual maturity estimated to be

approximately 35 to 40 months.  The risk associated with

this portfolio is diversified among many individual bor-

rowers.  The Company utilizes credit underwriting stan-

dards that management believes results in a high quality

portfolio.  The Company does not currently originate any

significant level of sub-prime loans, which are made to

individuals with impaired credit histories at generally

higher rates, and accordingly, with higher levels of credit

risk.  Management continually monitors the dealer rela-

tionships and the Banks are not dependent on any one

dealer as a source of such loans.  In response to eco-

nomic conditions and the competitive environment for

this product, the Company has been reducing the level of

new indirect auto loans originated.  However, the Com-

pany continues to maintain its relationships with the deal-

ers and may increase its volume of originations when

market conditions indicate it is prudent to do so.   As of

December 31, 2001, net indirect auto loans totaled

$184.2 million, a decrease of $19.3 million, or 9.5%, from

the previous year-end balance

Tricom finance receivables. These receivables consist of

high-yielding short-term accounts receivable financing to

Tricom’s clients in the temporary staffing industry located

throughout the United States.  Typically, Tricom also pro-

vides value-added out-sourced administrative services to

many of these clients, such as data processing of pay-

rolls, billing and cash management services, which gen-

erates additional fee income.  As of December 31, 2001,

Tricom’s finance receivables totaled $18.3 million, a

decrease of $2.1 million, or 10.2%, from the previous

year-end balance, resulting from the general slowdown in

the economy and the reduction in the placement of tem-

porary staffing individuals by Tricom’s customers. 

Core Loan Categories. Core loans include commercial

and commercial real estate loans, home equity loans,

residential real estate loans and consumer loans.  Core

loans totaled $1.5 billion at December 31, 2001, and rep-

resented 73% of the Company’s total loan portfolio.  Core

loans increased $489.7 million, or 48.0%, over the prior

year amount of $1.0 billion. 

Commercial and commercial real estate loans, the largest

loan category, totaled $1.0 billion at December 31, 2001

and increased $359.6 million, or 55.5%, over the Decem-

ber 31, 2000 balance of $647.9 million.  This category

comprised 49% of the loan portfolio at the end of 2001

and the increase over the prior year-end balance was

mainly due to the combination of increased business

development efforts, a low interest rate environment and

a continued healthy local economy.  

Home equity loans totaled $261.0 million as of December

31, 2001 and increased $81.9 million, or 45.7%, when

compared to the December 31, 2000 balance of $179.2

million.  This increase was mainly the result of increased
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line of credit usage and special marketing programs.

Unused commitments on home equity lines of credit

have increased approximately $79.7 million, or 35.4%,

over the balance at December 31, 2000 and totaled

$304.6 million at December 31, 2001.

Residential real estate loans totaled $182.9 million at

December 31, 2001, and increased $41.0 million, or

28.9%, over the prior year-end balance.  Mortgage loans

held for sale are included in this category and totaled

$42.9 million and $10.4 million at December 31, 2001

and 2000, respectively.  The Company collects a fee on

the sale of these loans into the secondary market to

avoid the interest-rate risk associated with these loans, as

they are predominantly long-term fixed rate loans.  The

increase in the amount of mortgage loans held for sale

reflects the significant increase in mortgage loan activity

at the end of 2001 resulting from the low interest rate

environment.  The remaining loans in this category are

maintained within the Banks’ loan portfolios and com-

prise mostly adjustable rate mortgage loans and shorter-

term fixed rate mortgage loans.   

Liquidity Management Assets. Funds that are not utilized

for loan originations are used to purchase investment

securities and short-term money market investments, to

sell as federal funds and to maintain in interest-bearing

deposits with banks.  The balances of these assets fluc-

tuate frequently based on deposit inflows and loan

demand.  As a result of anticipated significant loan

growth in the development of de novo banks and earning

asset niches, it has been Wintrust’s policy to generally

maintain its securities portfolio in short-term, liquid, and

diversified high credit quality securities at the Banks in

order to facilitate the funding of quality loan demand as it

emerges and to keep the Banks in a liquid condition in

the event that deposit levels fluctuate.  The aggregate

carrying value of these earning assets increased to

$438.0 million at December 31, 2001 from $357.9 million

at December 31, 2000. Total liquidity management

assets as a percent of total earning assets was 17.5% at

December 31, 2001 and 18.7% at December 31, 2000.  A

detail of the carrying value of the individual categories of

liquidity management assets as of December 31, 2001

and 2000 is set forth in the following table (in thousands):

2001 2000   
Federal funds sold and securities

purchased under resale agreements $   51,955 164,641
Interest-bearing deposits with banks 692 182
Securities 385,350 193,105

Total liquidity management assets $ 437,997 357,928

Consolidated Results of Operations

Overview of the Company’s profitability characteristics.

The following discussion of Wintrust’s results of opera-

tions requires an understanding that the Company’s bank

subsidiaries have all been started as new banks since

December 1991 and have an average life of approxi-

mately six years.  The Company’s premium finance com-

pany, FIFC, began limited operations in 1991 as a start-up

company.  The Company’s trust and investment com-

pany, WAMC, began operations in September 1998.  Pre-

viously, the Company’s Lake Forest Bank operated a trust

department on a much smaller scale than WAMC.  Tricom

started operations as a new company in 1989 and was

acquired by the Company in 1999.   Accordingly, Wintrust

is still a young company that has a strategy of continuing

to build its customer base and securing broad product

penetration in each marketplace that it serves.  The Com-

pany has expanded its banking franchise from three

banks with 5 offices in 1994 to seven banks with 29

offices at the end of 2001.  FIFC has matured from its lim-

ited operations in 1991 to a company that generates, on

a national basis, over $1.0 billion in premium finance

receivables annually. In addition, WAMC has been build-

ing a team of experienced trust professionals who are

located within the banking offices of five of the seven

subsidiary Banks.  These expansion activities have

understandably suppressed faster, opportunistic earn-

ings.  However, as the Company matures and existing

banks become more profitable, the start-up costs associ-

ated with future bank and branch openings and other

new financial services ventures will not have as signifi-

cant an impact on earnings.  Additionally, the Company’s

more mature banks have several operating ratios that are

either comparable to or better than peer group data, sug-

gesting that as the Banks become more established, the

overall earnings level will continue to increase.

Earnings Summary

Net income for the year ended December 31, 2001 totaled

$18.4 million, or $1.27 per diluted common share, com-

pared to $11.2 million, or $0.83 per diluted share, in 2000,

and $9.4 million, or $0.73 per diluted share in 1999.   The

results for 2000 include the impact of a non-recurring $4.3

pre-tax charge ($2.6 million after tax), or $0.20 per diluted

common share, related to a fraudulent loan scheme per-

petrated against the Company’s premium finance sub-

sidiary.  Excluding the effect of this non-recurring charge,

net income increased 34.0% in 2001 and 46.0% in 2000

while earnings per diluted common share increased

23.3% in 2001 and 41.1% in 2000.  Return on average

equity was 15.24% in 2001, 14.20% in 2000 (excluding the

non-recurring charge) and 11.58% in 1999.
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Earnings results for 2001 reflect an increase in net rev-

enues of $23.5 million, or 29.6%, fueled by increases in

net interest income of $13.0 million, or 21.3%, and non-

interest income of $10.5 million, or 57.3%.  For 2000, net

revenues increased $21.8 million, or 37.8%, resulting

from increases in net interest income of $13.3 million, or

27.8%, and non-interest income of $8.5 million, or 86.6%.

The increases in net interest income during these periods

was primarily a result of increases in average earning

assets, particularly increases in average loans of 26.1%

and 24.8%, in 2001 and 2000, respectively. The increase

in non-interest income in 2001 was due in large part to

the positive effects of the declining interest rate environ-

ment, particularly on mortgage refinancing activity and

management’s ability to enhance returns in the securities

portfolio with covered call option contracts.  For 2000,

the increase in non-interest income was mainly the result

of increases in administrative service revenues resulting

from the October 1999 acquisition of Tricom and gains on

the sales of premium finance receivables. Excluding the

2000 non-recurring charge noted above, non-interest

expense increased $12.3 million, or 23.0%, in 2001 and

$13.8 million, or 34.8% in 2000.  The increases in non-

interest expense were due primarily to the growth and

expansion realized by the Company during 2001 and

2000, including the recognition of a full year of  Tricom’s

expenses in 2000, compared to a three month period in

1999. 

Net Interest Income

The primary source of the Company’s revenue is net

interest income.  Net interest income is the difference

between interest income and fees on earning assets,

such as loans and securities, and interest expense on the

liabilities to fund those assets, including interest bearing

deposits and other borrowings.  The amount of net inter-

est income is affected by both changes in the level of

interest rates and the amount and composition of earning

assets and interest bearing liabilities.  The table included

in the previous section of this report titled “Average Bal-

ance Sheets, Interest Income and Expense, and Interest

Rate Yields and Costs” presents the interest income and

expense associated with the major balance sheet cate-

gories, along with the related average balances and

yields, for the three years ending December 31, 2001.

Also in that section of this report is a table titled “Changes

in Interest Income and Expense” which presents the dol-

lar amount of changes in interest income and expense,

by major balance sheet category, attributable to changes

in the volume of the balance sheet category and changes

in the rate earned or paid with respect to that category of

assets or liabilities, for the years ending December 31,

2001 and 2000.   In order to compare the tax-exempt

asset yields to taxable yields, interest income in the

tables referred to above and in the following discussion

are adjusted to tax-equivalent yields based on the mar-

ginal corporate Federal tax rate of 35%.  The tax-equiva-

lent adjustments to interest income for 2001, 2000 and

1999 were $858,000, $566,000 and $274,000, respec-

tively.

Tax-equivalent net interest income in 2001 totaled $74.9

million, up from $61.6 million in 2000 and $48.0 million

in 1999, representing increases of $13.3 million, or

21.6%, in 2001 and $13.6 million, or 28.2%, in 2000.

These increases were primarily attributable to increases

in average earning assets of $467.0 million, or 27.8%, in

2001 and $322.9 million, or 23.8%, in 2000.  Loans are

the most significant component of the earning asset base

as they earn interest at a higher rate than the other earn-

ing assets.  Average loans increased $370.2 million, or

26.1%, in 2001 and $281.2 million, or 24.8%, in 2000.

Total average loans as a percentage of total average earn-

ing assets were 83.2%, 84.3% and 83.6% in 2001, 2000,

and 1999, respectively. The average yield on loans was

8.39% in 2001, 9.28% in 2000 and 8.59% in 1999. The 89

basis point decrease in the yield on loans in 2001 reflects

the overall lower market rates in 2001 and the 69 basis

point increase in the yield in 2000, as compared to 1999,

is primarily a result of market rate increases throughout

2000.  Similarly, the average rate paid on interest bearing

deposits, the largest component of the Company’s inter-

est bearing liabilities, was 4.55% in 2001, 5.43% in 2000,

and 4.73% in 1999, representing a decrease of 88 basis

points in 2001 and an increase of 70 basis points in

2000.  Net interest margin, which reflects net interest

income as a percent of average earning assets, was

3.49% in 2001, 3.66% in 2000 and 3.54% in 1999.   The

decrease in the net interest margin in 2001 was due to

continued decreases in short-term rates throughout 2001

causing compression in the spread between the yields

earned on interest earning assets and the rates paid on

interest bearing liabilities. During 2001, the Federal

Reserve Bank cut short-term interest rates eleven times,

resulting in a decrease in short-term rates totaling 475

basis points. Compression resulted when deposit rates

could not be reduced in the same magnitude as

decreases in short term market rates due to the low level

of the rate paid on certain deposit accounts. The 12 basis

point increase in the net interest margin in 2000 was pri-

marily the result of solid growth in loans in 2000 and

effective deposit pricing strategies.  The core net interest

margin, which excludes the impact of the Company’s

Trust Preferred Securities, was 3.73% in 2001, 3.91% in

2000 and 3.75% in 1999. 



592001 ANNUAL REPORT

Provision for Possible Loan Losses  

The provision for possible loan losses totaled $7.9 mil-

lion in 2001, $5.1 million in 2000 and $3.7 million in

1999.  The increases in provisions in 2001 and 2000

were the result of solid loan growth in each of the core

loan categories, as well as the premium finance receiv-

ables portfolio,  and higher levels of charge-offs in the

premium finance receivables portfolio.  In 2001 and

2000, year end loan balances increased 32.3% and

21.9%, respectively. Net charge-offs as a percentage of

average loans were 0.26% in 2001, 0.24% in 2000 and

0.19% in 1999. While management believes the

allowance for possible loan losses is adequate to provide

for losses inherent in the portfolio, there can be no assur-

ances that future losses will not exceed the amounts pro-

vided for, thereby affecting future results of operations.

The amount of future additions to the allowance for pos-

sible loan losses will be dependent upon the economy,

changes in real estate values, interest rates, the regula-

tory environment, the level of past-due and non-perform-

ing loans, and other factors.  Please refer to the “Asset

Quality” section of this report for further discussion of the

Company’s loan loss experience and non-performing

assets.  

Non-interest Income

Non-interest income totaled $28.8 million in 2001, and

increased $10.5 million, or 57.3%, from the $18.3 million

reported in 2000.  In 2000, non-interest income increased

$8.5 million, or 86.6%, from the $9.8 million reported in

1999.   The increase in 2001 was primarily a result of

increases in fees on mortgage loans sold and income

from covered call option transactions, and to a lesser

extent increases from service charges on deposits,  gains

on the sale of premium finance receivables and net gains

on the sale of securities. 

Fees on mortgage loans sold include income from origi-

nating and selling residential real estate loans into the

secondary market.  These fees totaled $7.8 million in

2001, an increase of $4.9 million, or 169%, over the $2.9

million reported in 2000.  The increase in 2001 was due

to the lower interest rate environment which resulted in

significantly higher levels of refinancing activity.  Con-

versely, the rising interest rate environment in 2000

resulted in a decrease of $295,000, or 9.2%, in fees on

mortgage loans sold compared to the 1999 total.  Man-

agement anticipates that the high levels of refinancing

activity experienced in 2001 will taper off in 2002, barring

any further reductions in mortgage interest rates. 

Service charges on deposit accounts totaled $2.5 million

in 2001, $1.9 million in 2000 and $1.6 million in 1999.

These increases of 29.3% in 2001 and 23.9% in 2000

were due mainly to increases in total deposits of 26.7% in

2001 and 24.8% in 2000. The majority of deposit service

charges relate to customary fees on overdrawn accounts

and returned items.  The level of service charges

received is substantially below peer group levels as man-

agement believes in the philosophy of providing high

quality service without encumbering that service with

numerous activity charges.  

Trust and asset management fees totaled $2.0 million for

2001 and 2000, and $1.2 million for 1999. These  fees

include fees earned on assets under management, cus-

tody fees and other trust related fees.  Trust and asset

management fees have been negatively impacted by the

recent equity market declines and weaker economic con-

ditions. Lower valuations of the equity securities under

management affect the fees earned thereon.  The

increase in fees in 2000 as compared to 1999 was the

result of new business development efforts generated by

a larger staff of experienced trust officers that were added

in late 1998 with the formation of WAMC.  Wintrust is com-

mitted to growing the trust and investment business in

order to better service its customers and create a more

diversified revenue stream.  In February 2002, Wintrust

acquired the Wayne Hummer Companies, which will

augment and diversify the Company’s revenue stream.

The acquisition will provide Wintrust with additional prod-

uct offerings, including full service brokerage capabilities,

annuities and insurance, as well as increase the size of

its portfolio of managed investment accounts. 

The Company sold approximately $245 million of pre-

mium finance receivables in 2001 and approximately

$225 million in 2000, in each year amounting to approxi-

mately 20% of FIFC’s total originations.  In 1999, the Com-

pany sold approximately $69 million of premium finance

receivables.  Wintrust began selling the receivables dur-

ing  the second quarter of 1999 as the level of origina-

tions outpaced the Company’s capacity to retain such

loans within the Banks’ loan portfolios.  Consistent with

Wintrust’s strategy to be asset-driven, it is probable that

sales of premium finance receivables will occur  in the

future, depending on the level of new volume growth in

relation to the capacity to retain such loans within the

Banks’ loan portfolios. FIFC continues to service the

loans sold and recognizes its retained interest in the

loans sold, which consists of a servicing asset and inter-

est only strip, net of a liability for its guarantee obligation

pursuant to the terms of the sale agreement.  Since these

loans are short-term in nature, with terms of less than
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twelve months, the Company’s exposure to prepayment

and market value risk is minimal. Any remaining balance

of the Company’s retained interest at the time of its clean

up call is recorded as an adjustment to the gain on sale

of premium finance receivables.  This activity resulted in

the recognition of net gains of $4.6 million in 2001, $3.8

million in 2000, and $1.0 million in 1999.  At December

31, 2001, the Company was servicing approximately

$108 million of loans pursuant to these sales.  

Administrative services revenue generated by Tricom

was $4.1 million in 2001, $4.4 million in 2000 and $1.0

million in 1999.  This revenue comprises income from

administrative services, such as data processing of pay-

rolls, billing and cash management services, to tempo-

rary staffing service clients located throughout the United

States. The revenue growth at Tricom has stagnated in

recent quarters due to the general slowdown in the econ-

omy and the reduction in the placement of temporary

staffing individuals by Tricom’s customers.  Wintrust

acquired Tricom in October 1999 and accounted for the

acquisition using the purchase method of accounting.  As

a result, Tricom’s administrative revenues for 1999 are

included in the Company’s financial statements from the

date of acquisition. 

Premium income from covered call option transactions

totaled $4.3 million in 2001, $882,000 in 2000 and

$441,000 in 1999.  The call option transactions were

designed to increase the total return associated with

holding certain investment securities and do not qualify

as hedges pursuant to SFAS 133.  There were no out-

standing call options at December 31, 2001 or December

31, 2000.

Other non-interest income totaled $3.1 million in 2001,

$2.4 million in 2000 and $1.4 million in 1999.  The

increase in 2001 of $725,000 was primarily attributable to

an increase of $304,000 of rental income from equipment

leases.  The $1.0 million increase in 2000 was due pri-

marily to a $866,000 increase in rental income from

equipment leases.

Non-interest Expense

Non-interest expense totaled $65.8 million in 2001, $57.8

million in 2000 and $39.7 million in 1999. The 2000

results include a non-recurring $4.3 million charge as a

result of the fraud perpetrated against the Company’s pre-

mium finance subsidiary.  Excluding this non-recurring

charge, non-interest expense increased $12.3 million, or

23.0% in 2001, and $13.8 million, or 34.8%, in 2000.

These increases were predominantly caused by the con-

tinued growth and expansion of the Banks, WAMC and

FIFC.  In addition, $4.2 million of the increase in 2000

was a result of 2000 reflecting a full year of operating

expense related to the October 1999 acquisition of Tri-

com. In 2001, the Company opened two new full-service

banking locations and closed a limited-service facility,

and in 2000, added four new banking locations, including

the opening of its seventh de novo bank. In 2001, total

deposits increased 26.7% and total loans increased

32.3%, and in 2000 total deposits increased 24.8% and

total loan balances increased 21.9%, requiring higher lev-

els of staffing and other operating costs, such as occu-

pancy, equipment, advertising and data processing, to

both attract and service the larger customer base.  

Despite the growth and the related increases in many of

the non-interest expense categories, Wintrust’s net over-

head ratio (non-interest expense, excluding the non-recur-

ring fraud charge, less non-interest income to total

average assets) improved to 1.59% in 2001, from 1.90% in

2000 and 2.00% in 1999.  The Company is operating in its

previously stated performance goal range of 1.50% -

2.00%.  This is a key indicator of operating efficiency and

the Company continues to compare favorably with

regard to this ratio to its peer group based on the  most

recent peer group data.

Salaries and employee benefits is the largest component

of non-interest expense, accounting for 54.2% of the total

in 2001.  For the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000

and 1999, salaries and employee benefits totaled $35.6

million, $28.1 million and $20.8 million, respectively,

reflecting increases of $7.5 million, or 26.7%, in 2001 and

$7.3 million, or 35.1%, in 2000.  Approximately $2.1 mil-

lion of the 2000 increase relates to the inclusion of Tri-

com’s expenses for a full year in 2000 compared to a

three-month period in 1999.  Increases in salaries and

benefits for 2001 and 2000 generally reflect the higher

staffing levels necessary to support the continued growth

of the Company’s balance sheet and fee-based busi-

nesses.  As previously noted, during 2001, deposits

increased 26.7% and loans increased 32.3% and during

2000, deposits increased 24.8% and loans increased

21.9%.   In addition, the Company added two full-service

banking locations in 2001 and added four new banking

locations, including the opening of its seventh de novo

bank, in 2000, all of which required additional staffing.

The Company also increased staff at FIFC to support the

growth in the premium finance business. 

Equipment expense, which includes furniture, equipment

and computer software depreciation and repairs and

maintenance costs, totaled $6.3 million in 2001, $5.1 mil-

lion in 2000 and $3.2 million in 1999.  The 2001 increase

of $1.2 million, or 23.4% was caused mainly by higher

levels of depreciation expense related to the opening of

new facilities and the expansion of existing facilities.  The

2000 increase of $1.9 million, or 59.5%, reflects the
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impact of the acquisition of Tricom and other growth as

discussed earlier.

Net occupancy expenses for the years ended December

31, 2001, 2000 and 1999, were $4.8 million, $4.3 million

and $3.0 million, respectively, reflecting increases of

13.4% in 2001 and 42.2% in 2000.  The 2001 increase

was due mainly to the opening of additional facilities in

2001 and throughout 2000.  The 2000 increase was

attributable to the opening of additional facilities and the

October 1999 acquisition of Tricom.

Data processing expenses totaled $3.4 million in 2001,

$2.8 million in 2000 and $2.2 million in 1999, resulting in

increases of 19.6% for 2001 and 30.8% for 2000.  These

increases were due primarily to the additional transac-

tional charges related to the larger deposit and loan port-

folios, as well as the impact of Tricom’s expenses for a

full year in 2000.  During 2001, average loan balances

increased 26.1% and average deposits increased 26.4%,

while during 2000, average loan balances increased

24.8% and average deposit balances increased 23.3%. 

Advertising and marketing expenses totaled $1.6 million

for 2001, $1.3 million for 2000 and $1.4 million for 1999.

Marketing costs are necessary to attract loans and

deposits at the newly chartered banks, to announce new

branch openings, as well as the expansion of trust and

investment services through WAMC, and to continue to

promote community-based products at the more estab-

lished locations.  The level of marketing expenditures

depends on the type of marketing programs utilized

which are determined based on the market area, targeted

audience, competition and various other factors. Man-

agement has begun to more effectively utilize targeted

marketing programs in the more mature market areas. 

Professional fees, which includes legal, audit and tax

fees, external loan review costs and normal regulatory

exam assessments, totaled $2.1 million in 2001, $1.7 mil-

lion in 2000 and $1.2 million in 1999. These increases

are attributable to the general growth in the Company’s

total assets and fee-based businesses.

Amortization of intangibles expense totaled $685,000 in

2001, $713,000 in 2000 and $251,000 in 1999.  The

goodwill and other intangibles primarily relate to the Octo-

ber 1999 Tricom acquisition and the mid-1998 acquisition

of the  MMF leasing division at Lake Forest Bank.  The

increase in 2000 reflects the inclusion of a full year of

amortization for the Tricom acquisition.  Effective January

1, 2002, pursuant to the provisions of SFAS 142, these

intangible assets will no longer be amortized, but will be

tested at least annually for impairment.  See Note 2 to the

Consolidated Financial Statements for further discussion.  

In 2000, the Company recorded a pre-tax charge of $4.3

million as a result of a fraud perpetrated against the Com-

pany’s premium finance subsidiary.  This charge includes

approximately $300,000 of professional fees associated

with the Company’s pursuit of recovery of the loss as well

as a partial recovery of $200,000.  The Company contin-

ues to pursue legal action against the parties involved

and is optimistic that it will receive additional recoveries

of the loss.  However, the amount and timing of such

recoveries, if any, are not known at this time.  

Other non-interest expenses were $11.3 million in 2001,

$9.5 million in 2000 and $7.7 million in 1999, reflecting

increases of 19.3% in 2001 and 23.7% in 2000. This cate-

gory includes loan expenses, correspondent bank serv-

ice charges, insurance, postage, stationery and supplies,

telephone, directors fees, and other sundry expenses.

These increases were generally caused by the Com-

pany’s expansion activities, including increased costs

from the origination and servicing of a larger base of

deposit and loan accounts, and in 2000, the Tricom

acquisition, as discussed earlier.

Income Taxes

The Company recorded income tax expense of $10.4

million in 2001, $5.3 million in 2000 and $4.7 million in

1999.   The effective tax rates were 35.8%, 32.2% and

33.4% in 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively. The lower

effective rates in 2000 and 1999, as compared to 2001,

were due to decreases in tax expense in 2000 and 1999

resulting from reductions in the valuation allowance pre-

viously established regarding the Company’s deferred tax

assets.  Please refer to Note 14 to the Consolidated

Financial Statements for further discussion and analysis

of the Company’s tax position.

Operating Segment Results

As described in Note 21 to the Consolidated Financial

Statements, the Company’s operations consist of five pri-

mary segments: banking, premium finance, indirect auto,

Tricom and trust and asset management.  The Com-

pany’s profitability is primarily dependent on the net inter-

est income, provision for possible loan losses,

non-interest income and operating expenses of its bank-

ing segment.  The net interest income of the banking seg-

ment includes income and related interest costs from

portfolio loans that were purchased from the premium

finance and indirect auto segments.  For purposes of

internal segment profitability analysis, management

reviews the results of its premium finance and indirect

auto segments as if all loans originated and sold to the

banking segment were retained within that segment’s

operations.  
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The banking segment’s net interest income for the year

ended December 31, 2001 totaled $69.9 million as com-

pared to $57.2 million for the same period in 2000, an

increase of $12.7 million, or 22.2%.  The increase in net

interest income for 2000 when compared to the total of

$44.3 million in 1999 was $12.9 million, or 29.2%.  These

increases were the primarily the result of continued

growth in the loan portfolio.  Average total loans

increased 26% in 2001 and 25% in 2000.  The banking

segment’s non-interest income totaled $18.5 million in

2001, an increase of $9.9 million, or 114.7%, when com-

pared to the 2000 total of $8.6 million.  This increase was

primarily due to an increase of $4.9 million in fees on

mortgage loans sold, reflecting heavy origination vol-

umes driven by the low interest rate environment and a

strong local housing market, a $3.5 million increase in

fees from covered call option transactions which were

entered into to enhance the overall return on the invest-

ment portfolio and a $568,000 increase in service

charges on deposits.  In 2000, noninterest income for the

banking segment increased $1.5 million, or 20.8%, com-

pared to the prior year amount of  $7.1 million.  This

increase was due primarily to increases in equipment

rental income of $866,000, call option premium income

of $441,000 and service charges on deposits of

$374,000 and was offset partially by a decrease of

$295,000 in fees on mortgage loans sold.  The reduction

in fees on mortgage loans sold in 2000 reflected low orig-

ination and refinancing activity due to increasing mort-

gage interest rates.   The banking segment’s net income

for the year ended December 31, 2001 totaled $20.8 mil-

lion, an increase of $6.1 million, or 41.1%, as compared

to the 2000 total of $14.8 million. The total segment profit

in 2000 increased $4.5 million, or 43.6%, over the $10.3

million that was recorded in 1999.  These after-tax seg-

ment profit increases were primarily the result of higher

levels of net interest income and non-interest income, as

noted above, and the general continued maturation and

related profitability improvements of the more estab-

lished de novo bank subsidiaries.  

Net interest income for the premium finance segment

totaled $26.9 million for the year ended December 31,

2001 and increased $12.1 million, or 81.5%, over the

$14.8 million in 2000.  This increase resulted from higher

levels of premium finance receivables and lower funding

costs in 2001 compared to 2000.   In 2000, net interest

income for the premium finance segment increased $2.2

million, or 17.3%, over the 1999 total of $12.6 million.

This increase resulted from higher levels of premium

finance receivables produced from various business

development efforts and other new product offerings.

The premium finance segment’s non-interest income

totaled $4.5 million, $3.8 million and $1.0 million for the

years ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999,

respectively. Noninterest income for this segment reflects

the gains from the sale of premium finance receivables to

an unrelated third party, as more fully discussed in the

Consolidated Results of Operations section.  The Com-

pany began selling premium finance receivables to an

unrelated third party in the second quarter of 1999.  Net

after-tax profit of the premium finance segment totaled

$10.6 million, $2.6 million and $4.3 million for the years

ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively.

Net income for 2000 was negatively impacted by a $4.3

million ($2.6 million after tax) non-recurring charge related

to a fraud perpetrated by one independent insurance

agent. Excluding this one-time charge,  the premium

finance segment profit increased $5.4 million, or 103.5%,

in 2001 compared to 2000, and increased $922,000, or

21.6%, in 2000 compared to the segment’s profit in 1999.

The improvements in profitability during both 2001 and

2000 (excluding the one-time charge) were due mainly to

the combination of higher volumes, lower funding costs

and the sales of excess originations to third parties.

Net interest income for the indirect auto segment totaled

$6.8 million in 2001, compared to the $6.5 million

reported for 2000.  The slight increase in net interest

income was due to lower funding cost in 2001 compared

to 2000, offset significantly by lower outstanding indirect

auto loans.  Net interest income decreased $1.7 million,

or 20.9%, in 2000 compared to 1999, due primarily to

higher funding costs in 2000 coupled with a slightly lower

level of average outstanding loans and slightly lower

yields on such loans.  Due to the impact of the current

economic and competitive environment surrounding indi-

rect auto lending, management has been reducing the

level of new indirect automobile loans originations.  Indi-

rect automobile loans were $184 million, $204 million,

and $255 million at December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999,

respectively. The indirect auto segment after-tax profit

totaled $2.2 million for the year ended December 31,

2001, an increase of $620,000, from the 2000 total of

$1.6 million.  This segment’s profitability in 2001 was neg-

atively affected by a lower level of outstanding balances,

but was offset by lower funding costs as well as a lower

credit loss provision allocated to his portfolio due to a

lower level of charge-offs experienced in 2001.  (See the

“Credit Risk and Asset Quality” section of this report.) In

2000, the after-tax segment profit decreased $1.1 million,

or 40.4%, from the 1999 total of $2.7 million due primarily

to the decrease in net interest income noted above. 

The Tricom segment data reflects the business associ-

ated with short-term accounts receivable financing and

value-added out-sourced administrative services, such as

data processing of payrolls, billing and cash manage-
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ment services, that Tricom provides to its clients in the

temporary staffing industry.  The segment’s net interest

income was $3.9 million in 2001, reflecting an increase of

$296,000, or 8.1%, compared to the $3.6 million reported

for 2000.  Non-interest income for 2001 was $4.1 million,

decreasing $392,000, or 8.8%, from the $4.5 million

reported in 2000.  The segment’s net income was $1.2

million in 2001, a decrease of $381,000, or 23.4%, com-

pared to 2000. The decrease in the segment’s net income

is attributable to the decrease in non-interest income as

well as an increase of $455,000, 8.5%, in operating

expenses.  The revenue growth at Tricom has stagnated

in recent quarters due to the general slowdown in the

economy and the reduction in the placement of tempo-

rary staffing individuals by Tricom’s customers.  The seg-

ment’s results for 1999, as reflected in Note 21 to the

Consolidated Financial Statements, reflect the operations

of Tricom from October 1, 1999, the effective date of the

Company’s acquisition of Tricom, through December 31,

1999. 

The trust and asset management segment reflects the

operations of WAMC, a trust and investment subsidiary

that began operations as a separate subsidiary in late

1998. Net interest income attributable to the trust seg-

ment totaled $755,000 for 2001, as compared to

$508,000 in 2000 and $469,000 in 1999.  The net inter-

est income reported by the trust segment is due to the

trust company’s earning assets as well as the net interest

allocated to the trust company from trust account bal-

ances on deposit at Lake Forest Bank.  Trust fee income

totaled $2.0 million in 2001 and 2000, and $1.2 million in

1999. Trust fees include fees earned on assets under

management, custody fees and other trust related fees.

Trust fees have been negatively impacted by equity mar-

ket declines and weaker economic conditions. Lower val-

uations of the equity securities under management affect

the fees earned thereon.  The trust segment after-tax loss

totaled $413,000 in 2001 and 2000, and $559,000 in

1999. The losses in each of these years were also due to

the fact that they represent the start-up years of WAMC.

As expected during the start-up years, operating

expenses, primarily the salaries and benefit costs of

experienced trust professionals have exceeded trust fees

generated.  With the acquisition of the Wayne Hummer

Companies in 2002, management expects that the trust

and asset management segment will begin to reflect prof-

itability in 2002.

Asset-Liability Management

As a continuing part of its financial strategy, the Company

attempts to manage the impact of fluctuations in market

interest rates on net interest income.  This effort entails

providing a reasonable balance between interest rate

risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and maintenance of yield.

Asset-liability management policies are established and

monitored by management in conjunction with the

boards of directors of the Banks, subject to general over-

sight by the Company’s Board of Directors.  The policy

establishes guidelines for acceptable limits on the sensi-

tivity of the market value of assets and liabilities to

changes in interest rates.

Interest rate risk arises when the maturity or repricing

periods and interest rate indices of the interest earning

assets, interest bearing liabilities, and derivative financial

instruments are different.  The Company continuously

monitors not only the organization’s current net interest

margin, but also the historical trends of these margins.  In

addition, management attempts to identify potential

adverse swings in net interest income in future years, as

a result of interest rate movements, by performing simu-

lation analysis of potential interest rate environments.  If

a potential adverse swing in net interest margin and/or

net income is identified, management then would take

appropriate actions with its asset-liability structure to

counter these potentially adverse situations.  Please refer

to earlier sections of this discussion and analysis for fur-

ther discussion of the net interest margin.  

Since the Company’s primary source of interest bearing

liabilities is customer deposits, the Company’s ability to

manage the types and terms of such deposits may be

somewhat limited by customer preferences and local

competition in the market areas in which the Company

operates.  The rates, terms and interest rate indices of the

Company’s interest earning assets result primarily from

the Company’s strategy of investing in loans and short-

term securities that permit the Company to limit its expo-

sure to interest rate risk, together with credit risk, while at

the same time achieving an acceptable interest rate

spread.

One method utilized by financial institutions to manage

interest rate risk is to enter into derivative financial instru-

ments.  A derivative financial instrument includes interest

rate swaps, interest rate caps and floors, futures, for-

wards, option contracts and other financial instruments

with similar characteristics.  As of December 31, 2001,

the Company had $255 million notional principal amount

of interest rate cap contracts outstanding that mature

between March 2002 and February 2003. These con-

tracts were purchased to mitigate the effect of rising rates

on certain floating rate deposit products.  Additionally,

during 2001, the Company entered into a $25 million

notional principal amount interest rate swap contract that

matures in February 2004.  This contract effectively con-
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verts a portion of the Company’s floating-rate notes

payable to a fixed-rate basis, thus reducing the impact of

rising interest rates on future interest expense.

During 2001, the Company also entered into certain cov-

ered call option transactions related to certain securities

held by the Company.  These transactions are designed

to increase the total return associated with holding these

securities as earning assets and are not used to manage

exposure to changing market interest rates.  However,

the Company’s exposure to interest rate risk may be

affected by these transactions.  To mitigate this risk, the

Company may acquire fixed rate term debt or use other

financial derivative instruments.

The Company’s exposure to interest rate risk is reviewed

on a regular basis by management and the boards of

directors of the Banks and the Company.  The objective

is to measure the effect on net income and to adjust bal-

ance sheet and derivative financial instruments to mini-

mize the inherent risk while at the same time maximizing

net interest income.  Tools used by management include

a standard gap analysis and a rate simulation model

whereby changes in net interest income are measured in

the event of various changes in interest rate indices.  An

institution with more assets than liabilities repricing over

a given time frame is considered asset sensitive and will

generally benefit from rising rates, and conversely, a

higher level of repricing liabilities versus assets would be

beneficial in a declining rate environment.  

Standard gap analysis starts with contractual repricing

information for assets, liabilities and certain derivative

financial instruments.  These items are then combined

with repricing estimations for certain administered rate

(NOW, savings and money market accounts) and non-rate

related products (demand deposit accounts, other

assets, other liabilities).  The following table illustrates the

Company’s estimated interest rate sensitivity and periodic

and cumulative gap positions as of December 31, 2001

(dollars in thousands):

Time to Maturity or Repricing
0-90 91-365 1-5 Over 5
Days Days Years Years Total

Assets:
Fed funds sold and securities purchased 

under resale agreements $ 51,955 - - - 51,955
Interest bearing deposits with banks 692 - - - 692
Available-for-sale securities 127,946 38,366 83,538 135,500 385,350
Loans, net of unearned income 1,150,678 387,581 443,922 79,202 2,061,383

Total earning assets 1,331,271 425,947 527,460 214,702 2,499,380
Other assets - - - 206,042 206,042

Total rate sensitive assets (RSA) $ 1,331,271 425,947 527,460 420,744 2,705,422

Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity:
Interest bearing deposits (1) $ 1,179,868 596,989 281,290 2,220 2,060,367
Short-term borrowings 28,074 - - - 28,074
Federal Home Loan Bank advances - - 62,000 28,000 90,000
Notes payable 46,575 - - - 46,575
Long-term debt - trust preferred securities - - - 51,050 51,050

Total interest bearing liabilities 1,254,517 596,989 343,290 81,270 2,276,066
Demand deposits - - - 254,269 254,269
Other liabilities - - - 33,809 33,809
Shareholders’ equity - - - 141,278 141,278

Effect of derivative financial instruments:
Interest rate swap (pay fixed, receive floating) (25,000) - 25,000 - -

Total rate sensitive liabilities and 
shareholders’ equity  (RSL) $ 1,229,517 596,989 368,290 510,626 2,705,422

Repricing gap (RSA – RSL) $ 101,754 (171,042) 159,170 (89,882)
Cumulative repricing gap $ 101,754 (69,288) 89,882 -

Cumulative RSA/Cumulative RSL 108% 96% 104%
Cumulative RSA/Total assets 49% 65% 84%
Cumulative RSL/Total assets 45% 68% 81%

Cumulative GAP/Total assets 4% (3)% 3%
Cumulative GAP/Cumulative RSA 8% (4)% 4%

(1) Non-contractual interest-bearing deposits are subject to immediate withdrawal and therefore, included in 0-90 days.
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While the gap position and related ratios illustrated in the

table are useful tools that management can use to assess

the general positioning of the Company’s and its sub-

sidiaries’ balance sheets, it is only as of a point in time.

Additionally the gap position does not reflect the impact of

the interest rate cap contracts that may mitigate the effect

of rising rates on certain floating rate deposit products. 

Management uses an additional measurement tool to

evaluate its asset-liability sensitivity that determines expo-

sure to changes in interest rates by measuring the per-

centage change in net interest income due to changes in

interest rates over a two-year time horizon.  Management

measures its exposure to changes in interest rates using

many different interest rate scenarios.   One interest rate

scenario utilized is to measure the percentage change in

net interest income assuming an instantaneous perma-

nent parallel shift in the yield curve of 200 basis points,

both upward and downward.  This analysis includes the

impact of the interest rate cap and swap agreements

mentioned above.  Utilizing this measurement concept,

the interest rate risk of the Company, expressed as a per-

centage change in net interest income over a two-year

time horizon due to changes in interest rates, at Decem-

ber 31, 2001 and December 31, 2000, is as follows:

+200 Basis -200 Basis
Points Points 

Percentage change in net interest 
income due to an immediate 200 
basis point shift in the yield curve: (1)

December 31, 2001 7.2% (11.4)%
December 31, 2000 5.0% (1.6)%

(1) The December 31, 2001, 200 basis point instantaneous perma-
nent parallel shift downward in the yield curve impacted a
majority of rate sensitive assets by the entire 200 basis points,
while certain interest-bearing deposits may already be at their
floor, or reprice significantly less than 200 basis points.  This
causes the results for 2001, in a 200 basis point downward
shift, to reflect a significantly larger decrease in net interest
income than shown for 2000. 

These results are based solely on a permanent parallel

shift in the yield curve and do not reflect the net interest

income sensitivity that may arise from other factors, such

as changes in the shape of the yield curve or the change

in spread between key market rates.  The above results

are conservative estimates due to the fact that no man-

agement action to mitigate potential changes in net inter-

est income are included in this simulation process.

These management actions could include, but would not

be limited to, delaying a change in deposit rates, extend-

ing the maturities of liabilities, the use of derivative finan-

cial instruments, changing the pricing characteristics of

loans or modifying the growth rate of certain types of

assets or liabilities.

As previously noted in the “Net Interest Income” section

of this report, the Federal Reserve Bank cut short-term

interest rates eleven times during 2001, totaling 475

basis points and resulting in the lowest interest rate envi-

ronment in recent history.  As reflected in the previous

table, the Company believes its balance sheet is well

positioned to benefit in the event rates begin to rise in

2002, as is expected.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Federal banking regulatory agencies established capital

adequacy rules which take into account risk attributable

to balance sheet assets and off-balance sheet activities.

All bank holding companies must meet a minimum total

risk-based capital ratio of 8.0%.  Of the 8.0% required, at

least half must be comprised of core capital elements

defined as Tier 1 capital.  The federal agencies also have

adopted leverage capital (Tier 1 capital as a percent of

average quarterly assets) guidelines which banking

organizations must meet.  Under these guidelines, the

most highly rated banking organizations must meet a

minimum leverage ratio of at least 3%, while lower rated

banking organizations must maintain a minimum lever-

age ratio of at least 4% to 5%.  Failure to meet minimum

capital requirements can initiate certain mandatory, and

possibly additional discretionary, actions by regulators

that, if undertaken, could have a direct material effect on

the Consolidated Financial Statements.  

The following table reflects the capital guidelines estab-

lished by the Federal Reserve Bank for a bank holding

company:

Minimum
Capital Adequately Well

Requirements Capitalized Capitalized
Leverage ratio 3.0% 4.0% 5.0%
Tier 1 risk-based capital ratio 4.0% 4.0% 6.0%
Total risk-based capital ratio 8.0% 8.0% 10.0%

The Company’s consolidated leverage ratio (Tier 1 capi-

tal/total fourth quarter average assets less intangibles)

and Tier 1 risk-based capital ratio were 7.1% and 7.7%,

respectively, at December 31, 2001, which are in excess

of the “well capitalized” regulatory levels.  The Company’s

consolidated total risk-based capital ratio was 8.5% at

December 31, 2001, categorizing the Company as “ade-

quately capitalized”.   In January 2002, the Company

became designated as a Financial Holding Company,

thereby requiring its depository institutions to maintain

their capital ratios in the “well capitalized” categories at all
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times.  Refer to Note 16 of the Consolidated Financial

Statements for further information on the capital positions

of the Company’s subsidiary banks. The following table

reflects various measures of the Company’s capital at

December 31, 2001 and 2000.

2001 2000
Average equity-to-average asset ratio 5.2% 5.2%
Leverage ratio 7.1 6.3
Tier 1 risk-based capital ratio 7.7 6.9
Total risk-based capital ratio 8.5 8.4
Dividend payout ratio 7.4 8.0

The Company’s principal source of funds at the holding

company level are from dividends from its subsidiaries,

borrowings on its revolving credit line with an unaffiliated

bank, proceeds from trust preferred securities offerings

and additional equity offerings.  Refer to Notes 10, 12 and

20 of the Consolidated Financial Statements for further

information on the Company’s notes payable, Trust Pre-

ferred Securities offerings and shareholders’ equity,

respectively.   The table below provides a summary of

the funds raised through common stock public offerings

and Trust Preferred Securities public offerings over the

last four years: (dollars in millions)

% of
Net increase in

Date of Type of proceeds regulatory
offering offering received capital

October 1998 Trust preferred securities $31.1 78%
November 1999 Common Stock 6.0 78(1)

June 2000 Trust preferred securities 20.0 67
June 2001 Common Stock 22.2 49

(1) Excludes  $4.0 million in capital generated from issuance of
common stock in connection with the  acquisition of Tricom.

Over the last three years, as shown in the table above,

proceeds from public offerings of Trust Preferred Securi-

ties and the Company’s common stock have accounted

for a decreasing portion of the increase in the Company’s

total regulatory capital.  While these funding and capital

generation sources will continue to be reviewed, the

Company’s reliance on internally generated capital is

expected to continue to grow.

Banking laws impose restrictions upon the amount of div-

idends which can be paid to the holding company by the

Banks.  Based on these laws, the Banks could, subject to

minimum capital requirements, declare dividends to the

Company without obtaining regulatory approval in an

amount not exceeding (a) undivided profits, and (b) the

amount of net income reduced by dividends paid for the

current and prior two years.  In addition, the payment of

dividends may be restricted under certain financial

covenants in the Company’s revolving credit line agree-

ment.  At January 1, 2002, subject to minimum capital

requirements at the Banks, approximately $10.1 million

was available as dividends from the Banks without prior

regulatory approval.  During 2001 and 2000, dividends

paid by the subsidiaries to Wintrust totaled $13.5 million

and $16.0 million, respectively.  There were no dividends

paid by the subsidiaries to Wintrust in 1999.

The Company declared its first semi-annual cash dividend

on its common stock in 2000.  A summary of the Com-

pany’s cash dividends on common stock is as follows:

Record Payable Per share amount
Date Date of cash dividend

February 10, 2000 February 24, 2000 $0.0333
August 10, 2000 August 24, 2000 $0.0333
February 8, 2001 February 22, 2001 $0.0467
August 9, 2001 August 23, 2001 $0.0467
February 5, 2002 February 19, 2002 $0.0600

The Company continues to target an earnings retention

ratio of approximately 90% to support continued growth.

The dividends paid in 2001 represented a 40% increase

over the dividends paid in 2000.  Along those same lines,

the semi-annual dividend declared on January 24, 2002

represents (on an annualized basis) a 29% increase over

2001.

In January 2000, the Board of Directors approved a stock

repurchase program authorizing the purchase of up to

450,000 shares of common stock, from time to time, in

open market or privately negotiated transactions.

Through December 31, 2000, the Company repurchased

a total of 363,450 shares at an average price of $10.63

per share.  The shares repurchased pursuant to this buy-

back program were reissued  with the Company’s com-

mon stock offering  in June 2001.  No additional shares

were repurchased during 2001.

Liquidity management at the Banks involves planning to

meet anticipated funding needs at a reasonable cost.

Liquidity management is guided by policies, formulated

and monitored by the Company’s senior management

and each Bank’s asset/liability committee, which take into

account the marketability of assets, the sources and sta-

bility of funding and the level of unfunded commitments.

The Banks’ principal sources of funds are deposits, short-

term borrowings and capital contributions from the hold-

ing company.  In addition, the Banks are eligible to

borrow under Federal Home Loan Bank advances,

another source of short-term liquidity.
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Core deposits are the most stable source of liquidity for

community banks due to the nature of long-term relation-

ships generally established with depositors and the secu-

rity of deposit insurance provided by the FDIC.  Core

deposits are generally defined in the industry as total

deposits less time deposits with balances greater than

$100,000.   At December 31, 2001, approximately 61% of

the Company’s total assets were funded by core

deposits, as compared to approximately 60% at the end

of 2000.  The remaining assets were funded by other

funding sources such as time deposits with balances in

excess of $100,000, borrowed funds, and the capital of

the Banks.  Due to the Company’s strategy of targeting

high net worth individuals, the Company believes that

many of its time deposits with balances in excess of

$100,000 are also a stable source of funds.

Liquid assets refer to money market assets such as Fed-

eral funds sold and interest bearing deposits with banks,

as well as available-for-sale debt securities.  Net liquid

assets represent the sum of the liquid asset categories

less the amount of assets pledged to secure public

funds.  At December 31, 2001, net liquid assets totaled

approximately $174.6 million, compared to approxi-

mately $164.0 million at December 31, 2000. 

The Banks routinely accept deposits from a variety of

municipal entities.  Typically, these municipal entities

require that banks pledge marketable securities to collat-

eralize these public deposits.  At December 31, 2001 and

2000, the Banks had approximately $116.0 million and

$116.8 million, respectively, of securities collateralizing

such public deposits and other short-term borrowings.

Deposits requiring pledged assets are not considered to

be core deposits, and the assets that are pledged as col-

lateral for these deposits are not deemed to be liquid

assets.

The Company is not aware of any known trends, com-

mitments, events, regulatory recommendations or uncer-

tainties that would have any adverse effect on the

Company’s capital resources, operations or liquidity.

Credit Risk and Asset Quality

Management believes that the loan portfolio is well diver-

sified and well secured, without undue concentration in

any specific risk area.  Control of loan quality is continu-

ally monitored by management and is reviewed by the

Banks’ Board of Directors and their Credit Committees on

a monthly basis.  Independent external reviews of the

loan portfolio are provided by the examinations con-

ducted by regulatory authorities and an independent

entity engaged by the Board of Directors.  The allowance

for possible loan losses is maintained at a level deemed

adequate to provide for losses inherent in the loan portfo-

lio based on management’s assessment of a variety of fac-

tors, including actual charge-offs during the year, historical

loss experience, delinquent and other potential problem

loans, and an evaluation of  economic conditions in the

market area.

The allowance for possible loan losses consists of an

allocated component and an unallocated component.

The allocated component of the allowance for possible

loan losses reflects expected losses resulting from analy-

sis developed through specific credit allocations for indi-

vidual loans and reserve percentages for each loan

category.  The specific credit allocations are based on a

regular analysis of all loans where the internal credit rat-

ing is at or above a predetermined classification.  The

reserve percentages for each loan category are based on

historical credit losses, trends in delinquencies and local

and national economic trends.  The allocated component

also includes consideration of the amounts necessary for

concentrations and changes in portfolio mix and volume.

The unallocated portion of the allowance for possible

loan losses reflects management’s estimate of probable

inherent but undetected losses within the portfolio due to

uncertainties in economic conditions, delays in obtaining

information, including unfavorable information about a

borrower’s financial condition, the difficulty in identifying

triggering events that correlate perfectly to subsequent

loss rates, and risk factors that have not yet manifested

themselves in the loss allocation factors.   Management

believes the unallocated portion of the allowance for pos-

sible loan losses is necessary due to the imprecision

inherent in estimating expected future credit losses. 
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Summary of Loan Loss Experience. The following table summarizes the changes in the allowance for possible loan

losses for the periods shown (dollars in thousands:

2001 2000 1999 1998 1997

Balance at beginning of year $ 10,433 8,783 7,034 5,116 3,636 

Provision for possible loan losses 7,900 5,055 3,713 4,297 3,404 
Allowance acquired in business combination - -   175 -   -   

Charge-offs:
Commercial and

commercial real estate 984 897 691 1,327 573 
Home equity 25 -   -   27 13 
Residential real estate 34 50 14 84 -   
Other 34 103 132 198 103 

Total core loan charge-offs 1,077 1,050 837 1,636 689 

Premium finance receivables 3,062 1,294 456 455 1,126 
Indirect auto loans 1,080 1,339 1,156 646 300 
Tricom finance receivables 103 73 -   -   -   

Total charge-offs 5,322 3,756 2,449 2,737 2,115 

Recoveries:
Commercial and

commercial real estate 163 53 35 100 17 
Home equity 72 -   -   13 62 
Residential real estate - -   -   -   -   
Other 1 5 6 76 9 

Total core loan recoveries 236 58 41 189 88 

Premium finance receivables 245 129 167 127 77 
Indirect auto loans 194 164 102 42 26 
Tricom finance receivables - -   -   -   -   

Total recoveries 675 351 310 358 191 

Net charge-offs 4,647 3,405 2,139 2,379 1,924 

Balance at end of year $ 13,686 10,433 8,783 7,034 5,116 

Year-end total loans, net of unearned income $  2,061,383 1,558,020 1,278,249 992,062 712,631 
Average total loans, net of unearned income 1,786,596 1,416,419 1,135,200 848,344 620,801 

Allowance as percent of year-end total loans 0.66% 0.67% 0.69% 0.71% 0.72%
Net charge-offs to average total loans 0.26% 0.24% 0.19% 0.28% 0.31%
Net charge-offs to the provision for 

possible loan losses 58.82% 67.36% 57.61% 55.36% 56.52%

Net charge-offs of core banking loans for the year ended

December 31, 2001 totaled $841,000 as compared to a

total of $992,000 for 2000.  Net charge-offs of core bank-

ing loans as a percentage of average core banking loans

decreased in 2001 to 0.07%, compared to 0.11% in 2000. 

Premium finance receivable net charge-offs for the year

ended December 31, 2001 totaled $2.8 million as com-

pared to $1.2 million in 2000.  Net charge-offs were 0.79%

of average premium finance receivables in 2001 versus

0.43% in 2000.   The increase in net charge-offs in 2001

was attributable, in part, to accounts with smaller bal-

ances and higher delinquencies and charge-offs than the

Company’s traditional premium finance portfolio.  As a

result, the Company eliminated more than 1,300 relation-

ships with insurance agencies that were referring busi-

ness to FIFC that had relatively smaller balances.  The

business associated with those terminated relationships

is becoming a less significant percentage of the premium

finance receivables portfolio.  

Indirect auto loan net charge-offs decreased to $886,000

in 2001, compared to $1.2 million in 2000. Net charge-

offs as a percentage of average indirect auto loans were

0.46% in 2001 and 0.50% in 2000. 
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The allowance for possible loan losses as a percentage

of total net loans at December 31, 2001 and 2000 was

0.66% and 0.67%, respectively.  As a percent of average

total loans, total net charge-offs for 2001 and 2000 were

0.26% and 0.24%, respectively.  While management

believes that the allowance for possible loan losses is

adequate to provide for losses inherent in the portfolio,

there can be no assurances that future losses will not

exceed the amounts provided for, thereby affecting future

earnings.  Future additions to the allowance, which are

charged to earnings through the provision for possible

loan losses, may be necessary due to changes in eco-

nomic conditions, including changes in real estate values

and interest rates, the level of delinquencies or charge-

offs, changes in the regulatory environment and other

unforeseen factors.

Past Due Loans and Non-performing Assets. The follow-

ing table classifies the Company’s non-performing loans

as of December 31 for each of last five years (dollars in

thousands):

2001 2000 1999 1998 1997

Past Due greater than 90 days and still accruing:
Core banking loans:

Residential real estate and home equity $       168 -   385 459   -   
Commercial, consumer and other 1,059 651 328 341 868 

Premium finance receivables 2,402 4,306 1,523 1,214 887 
Indirect auto loans 361 397 391 274 11 
Tricom finance receivables -  -          -          -          -       

Total 3,990 5,354 2,627 2,288 1,766 

Non-accrual loans:
Core banking loans:

Residential real estate and home equity 1,385 153 -          99          390       
Commercial, consumer and other 1,180 617 1,895 1,388 392 

Premium finance receivables 5,802 3,338 2,145 1,455 1,629 
Indirect auto loans 496 221 298 195 29 
Tricom finance receivables 104 -          -          -          -       

Total non-accrual loans 8,967 4,329 4,338 3,137 2,440 

Total non-performing loans:
Core banking loans:

Residential real estate and home equity 1,553 153 385          558          390       
Commercial, consumer and other 2,239 1,268 2,223 1,729 1,260 

Premium finance receivables 8,204 7,644 3,668 2,669 2,516 
Indirect auto loans 857 618 689 469 40 
Tricom finance receivables 104 -          -          -          -       

Total non-performing loans 12,957 9,683 6,965 5,425 4,206 

Other real estate owned 100 -          -          587 -       
Total non-performing assets $  13,057 9,683 6,965 6,012 4,206 

Total non-performing loans by category
as a percent of its own respective category:

Core banking loans:
Residential real estate and home equity 0.35% 0.05% 0.15% 0.27% 0.22%
Commercial, consumer and other 0.21% 0.18% 0.41% 0.43% 0.47%

Premium finance receivables 2.36% 2.44% 1.67% 1.50% 1.96%
Indirect auto loans 0.47% 0.30% 0.27% 0.22% 0.03%
Tricom finance receivables 0.57% -          -          -          -

Total non-performing loans 0.63% 0.62% 0.54% 0.55% 0.59%

Total non-performing assets to total assets 0.48% 0.46% 0.41% 0.45% 0.40%

Non-accrual loans to total loans 0.43% 0.28% 0.34% 0.32% 0.34%

Allowance for possible loan losses as a 
percentage of non-performing loans 105.63% 107.75% 126.10% 129.66% 121.64%
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Non-performing Core Banking Loans and Other Real
Estate Owned

Total non-performing loans for the Company’s core bank-

ing business were $3.8 million as of December 31, 2001

and were comprised of $1.6 million of residential real

estate and home equity loans and $2.2 million of com-

mercial, commercial real estate and consumer loans.

The non-performing residential real estate and home

equity loans increased $1.4 million from the December

31, 2000 balance and represented 0.35% of such out-

standing loans at December 31, 2001.  The non-perform-

ing commercial, commercial real estate and consumer

loans increased $971,000 from the December 31, 2000

balance and represented 0.21% of such outstanding

loans at December 31, 2001, compared to 0.18% as of

December 31, 2000.  Non-performing core banking loans

consist primarily of a small number of commercial and

real estate loans, which management believes are well

secured and in the process of collection.  The small num-

ber of such non-performing loans allows management to

monitor closely the status of these credits and work with

the borrowers to resolve these problems effectively.  The

Company had $100,000 of other real estate owned as of

December 31, 2001 and none as of December 31, 2000.

Non-performing Premium Finance Receivables

The table below presents the level of non-performing pre-

mium finance receivables as of December 31, 2001 and

2000, and the amount of net charge-offs for the years

then ended.  

2001 2000

Non-performing premium 
finance receivables $ 8,204,000 7,644,000

- as a percent of premium 
finance receivables 2.36% 2.44%

Net charge-offs of premium 
finance receivables $ 2,817,000 1,156,000

- as a percent of average 
premium finance receivables 0.79% 0.43%

The level of non-performing premium finance receiv-

ables, although higher than the amount at December 31,

2000, has declined since the levels at March 31, 2001,

June 30, 2001 and September 30, 2001.  Additionally,

non-performing premium finance receivables as a per-

cent of total premium finance receivables outstanding

declined to 2.36% at December 31, 2001, from 2.73% and

2.44% at September 30, 2001 and December 31, 2000,

respectively. As previously noted, the Company elimi-

nated more than 1,300 relationships with insurance agen-

cies that were referring business to our premium finance

subsidiary that had relatively small balances and higher

than normal delinquency rates.  The business associated

with those accounts is gradually becoming a less signifi-

cant percent of the entire portfolio.  Management contin-

ues to see progress in this portfolio and expects the

relative level of non-performing loans related to this port-

folio to decline in 2002.

It is important to note that the net charge-off ratio for pre-

mium finance receivables is substantially less than the

non-performing asset ratio. The ratio of non-performing

premium finance receivables fluctuates throughout the

year due to the nature and timing of canceled account

collections from insurance carriers.  Collateral for pre-

mium finance loans is essentially the unearned portion of

the premium related to the underlying policy.  Due to the

nature of collateral for premium finance receivables, it

customarily takes 60-150 days to convert the collateral

into cash collections.  Accordingly, the level of non-per-

forming premium finance receivables is not necessarily

indicative of the loss inherent in the portfolio.  In the event

of default, the Company has the ability to cancel the

insurance policy and collect the unearned portion of the

premium from the insurance carrier.  In the event of can-

cellation, the cash returned in payment of the unearned

premium by the insurer should generally be sufficient to

cover the receivable balance, the interest and other

charges due.  Due to notification requirements and pro-

cessing time by most insurance carriers, many receiv-

ables will become delinquent beyond 90 days while the

insurer is processing the return of the unearned premium.

Management continues to accrue interest until maturity

as the unearned premium is ordinarily sufficient to pay-off

the outstanding balance and contractual interest due. 

Non-performing Indirect Auto Loans  

Total non-performing indirect automobile loans were

$857,000 at December 31, 2001 and $618,000 at

December 31, 2000.  The ratio of these non-performing

loans to total indirect automobile loans was 0.47% at

December 31, 2001 and 0.30% at December 31, 2000. As

noted in the Allowance for Possible Loan Losses table,

net charge-offs as a percent of total indirect automobile

loans decreased to 0.46% in 2001 from 0.50% in 2000.

Despite the increase in the level of net non-performing

loans, these ratios continue to be below standard indus-

try ratios for this type of lending.  Due to the impact of the

current economic and competitive environment sur-

rounding this type of lending, management has been

reducing the level of new indirect automobile loans origi-

nated.  Indirect automobile loans at December 31,

2001were $184 million, a decrease of $19 million, or

10%, from the balance at December 31, 2000.
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Potential Problem Loans. In addition to those loans dis-

closed under “Past Due Loans and Non-performing

Assets,” there are certain loans in the portfolio which

management has identified, through its problem loan

identification system, which exhibit a higher than normal

credit risk.  However, these loans are still considered per-

forming and, accordingly, are not included in non-per-

forming loans.  Examples of these potential problem

loans include certain loans that are in a past-due status,

loans with borrowers that have recent adverse operating

cash flow or balance sheet trends, or loans with general

risk characteristics that the loan officer feels might jeop-

ardize the future timely collection of principal and interest

payments.  Management’s review of the total loan portfo-

lio to identify loans where there is concern that the bor-

rower will not be able to continue to satisfy present loan

repayment terms includes factors such as review of indi-

vidual loans, recent loss experience and current eco-

nomic conditions.  The principal balances of potential

problem loans as of December 31, 2001 and 2000 were

approximately $23.8 million and $11.9 million, respec-

tively.  The December 31, 2001 balance includes two

loans totalling $10.1 million.  Both loans are within the

local geographic footprint of Wintrust, represent long-term

banking relationships and are supported with collateral.

Loan Concentrations. Loan concentrations are consid-

ered to exist when there are amounts loaned to a multi-

ple number of borrowers engaged in similar activities

which would cause them to be similarly impacted by eco-

nomic or other conditions.  The Company had no con-

centrations of loans exceeding 10% of total loans at

December 31, 2001, except for loans included in the pre-

mium finance operating segment. 

Effects of Inflation

A banking organization’s assets and liabilities are prima-

rily monetary.  Changes in the rate of inflation do not have

as great an impact on the financial condition of a bank as

do changes in interest rates.  Moreover, interest rates do

not necessarily change at the same percentage as does

inflation.  Accordingly, changes in inflation are not

expected to have a material impact on the Company.  An

analysis of the Company’s asset and liability structure

provides the best indication of how the organization is

positioned to respond to changing interest rates.

Forward-looking Statements

This document contains forward-looking statements

within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of

1933 and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of

1934.  The Company intends such forward-looking state-

ments to be covered by the safe harbor provisions for for-

ward-looking statements contained in the Private

Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995, and is including

this statement for purposes of invoking these safe harbor

provisions.  Such forward-looking statements may be

deemed to include, among other things, statements relat-

ing to the Company’s projected growth, anticipated

improvements in earnings, earnings per share and other

financial performance measures, and management’s

long-term performance goals, as well as statements relat-

ing to the anticipated effects on financial results of condi-

tion from expected development or events, the

Company’s business and growth strategies, including

anticipated internal growth, plans to form additional de

novo banks and to open new branch offices, and to pur-

sue additional potential development or acquisition of

banks or specialty finance businesses.  Actual results

could differ materially from those addressed in the for-

ward-looking statements as a result of numerous factors,

including the following:

• The level of reported net income, return on aver-

age assets and return on average equity for the

Company will in the near term continue to be

impacted by start-up costs associated with de

novo bank formations, branch openings, and

expanded trust and investment operations.  De

novo banks typically require 13 to 24 months of

operations before becoming profitable, due to the

impact of organizational and overhead expenses,

the start-up phase of generating deposits and the

time lag typically involved in redeploying deposits

into attractively priced loans and other higher yield-

ing earning assets. 

• The Company’s success to date has been and will

continue to be strongly influenced by its ability to

attract and retain senior management experienced

in banking and financial services.

• Although management believes the allowance for

possible loan losses is adequate to provide for

losses inherent in the existing portfolio of  loans

and  leases, there can be no assurance that the

allowance will prove sufficient to cover actual

future loan or lease losses.
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• If market interest rates should move contrary to the

Company’s gap position on interest earning assets

and interest bearing liabilities, the “gap” will work

against the Company and its net interest income

may be negatively affected. 

• The financial services business is highly competi-

tive which may affect the pricing of the Company’s

loan and deposit products as well as its services.

• The Company’s ability to adapt successfully to

technological changes to compete effectively in

the marketplace.

• Unforeseen future events that may cause slower

than anticipated development and growth of the

Tricom business or changes in the temporary

staffing industry.

• Changes in the economic environment, competi-

tion, or other factors, may influence the anticipated

growth rate of loans and deposits, the quality of

the loan portfolio and loan and deposit pricing and

may affect the Company’s ability to successfully

pursue acquisition and expansion strategies.

• The Company’s ability to recover on the loss result-

ing from the fraudulent loan scheme perpetrated

against the Company’s premium finance subsidiary

in the third quarter of 2000.

• Unforeseen future events surrounding the brokerage

and asset management business, including compe-

tition and related pricing of brokerage and asset man-

agement products and difficulties integrating the

acquisition of the Wayne Hummer Companies. 
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Vice President/Lake Forest

Edward Edens

Vice President/Hinsdale

Gerard B. Leenheers

Vice President/Hinsdale

Kevin D. Mitzit

Vice President/Hinsdale

Kay Stevens

Vice President/Hinsdale

Ann Wiesbrock

Vice President/Hinsdale

T. Tolbert Chisum

Managing Director of

Marketing/North Shore

Jennifer Czerwinski

Vice President/North Shore

Elizabeth Karabatsos

Trust Officer/North Shore

Timothy J. Keefe

Vice President/Barrington

Kenneth H. Cooke

Vice President/Northbrook 

Wayne Hummer Investments L.L.C.

Directors 

Steven R. Becker

James F. Duca II

David A. Dykstra

Laura A. Kogut

Raymond L. Kratzer

John S. Lillard

Edward J. Wehmer

Richard Wholey 

Executive Officers 

Raymond L. Kratzer

Chief Executive Officer

George T. “Ted” Becker

Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer

Laura A. Kogut

Executive Vice President, Chief Operations

Officer

David P. Poitras

Executive Vice President & Director of Fixed

Income

Focused Investments L.L.C.

Executive Officers

Laura A. Kogut

President & CEO

Jenny J. Charles

Chief Operations Officer

Daniel J. Marks

Chief Financial Officer & Relationship Manager

Thomas E. Stamborski, CFP 

National Sales Manager & Director of Marketing

Wintrust Asset Management Company, N.A.
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Wayne Hummer Management
Company  

Directors

Joseph Alaimo 

Mark H. Dierkes

James F. Duca II

David A. Dykstra 

Phillip W. Hummer

John S. Lillard

David P. Poitras

Thomas J. Rowland

Edward J. Wehmer

Executive Officers 
James F. Duca II

President

Mark H. Dierkes, CFA

Managing Director, First Vice 

President/Investments

Philip W. Hummer

Managing Director

David P. Poitras

Managing Director, First Vice 

President

Thomas Rowland, CFA

Managing Director, First Vice 

President/Investments

Administration

Amy B. Goeldner, CFA

Vice President, Portfolio 

Manager

David D. Cox, CFA

Portfolio Manager

Damaris (Doni) E. Martinez

Vice President/Administration

Jean M. Maurice

Treasurer

First Insurance Funding Corp.

Directors

Frank J. Burke

David A. Dykstra

Hollis W. Rademacher

Edward J.  Wehmer (Chairman)

Executive Officers

Frank J. Burke

President & CEO

Robert G. Lindeman

Executive Vice President/Information

Technology

Mark A. Steenberg

Executive Vice President/Operations

Finance/Marketing/Operations

Michelle H. Perry

Senior Vice President/CFO

Matthew E. Doubleday

Senior Vice President/Marketing

Mark C. Lucas

Senior Vice President/Asset 

Management

G. David Wiggins

Senior Vice President/Loan 

Origination

Kimberly J. Malizia

Vice President/Cash Management

John W. Dixon

Vice President/General Counsel

Amy J. Evola

Vice President/Inside Sales

Mary Kay Francel

Assistant Vice President/

Cash Management

Russell L Goldstein

Assistant Vice President/Asset 

Management

Tricom, Inc. of Milwaukee

Directors

Julie Ann Blazei

David A. Dykstra

Dennis J. Jones

John Leopold

Mary Martha Mooney

Hollis W. Rademacher

Katharine V. Sylvester

Edward J. Wehmer (Chairman)

Senior Staff

John Leopold

President

Julie Ann Blazei

Director of Operations and 

Technology Officer

Mary Jo Heim

Accounting Manager 

Linda Walsch

Payroll Services Manager

Laura Dykstra

Client Services Manager

Sandra Sell

Credit Manager/Account 

Executive

Wintrust Information Technology
Services Company

Officers

Lloyd M. Bowden

President

Sue Greffin

Internet Banking Manager

Tara Delaney-Grimes

Item Imaging Manager

Glenn Ritchie

Senior Systems Engineer

Dennis Brower

Senior Network Engineer

Ron Henriksen

Advanced Network Engineer
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Wintrust Financial Corporation

727 North Bank Lane

Lake Forest, IL 60045

847-615-4096

www.wintrust.com

Lake Forest Bank & Trust Company
Lake Forest Locations

Main Bank

727 North Bank Lane

Lake Forest, IL 60045

847-234-2882

www.lakeforestbank.com

Main Drive-thru

780 North Bank Lane

Lake Forest, IL 60045

847-615-4022

West Lake Forest 

810 South Waukegan Avenue

Lake Forest, IL 60045

847-615-4080

West Lake Forest Drive-thru

911 Telegraph Road

Lake Forest, IL 60045

847-615-4098

Lake Bluff 

103 East Scranton Avenue

Lake Bluff, IL 60044

847-615-4060

Bank of Highwood – Fort Sheridan

507 Sheridan Road

Highwood, IL  60040

847-266-7600

www.bankofhwfs.com

Highland Park Bank & Trust

600 Central Avenue

Port Clinton Square

Suite 142 (Facing First Street)

Highland Park, IL  60035

(opening soon)

MMF Leasing Services

810 S. Waukegan Road

Lake Forest, IL 60045

847-604-5060

Hinsdale Bank & Trust Company
Hinsdale Locations

Main Bank

25 East First Street

Hinsdale, IL 60521

630-323-4404

www.hinsdalebank.com

Drive-thru

130 West Chestnut

Hinsdale, IL 60521

630-655-8025

Clarendon Hills Bank

200 West Burlington Avenue

Clarendon Hills, IL 60514

630-323-1240

www.clarendonhillsbank.com

ATM Drive-thru

5 South Walker Ave

Clarendon Hills, IL 60514

The Community Bank of Western Springs

1000 Hillgrove Avenue

Western Springs, IL 60558

708-246-7100

www.communitybankws.com

Riverside Bank

17 E. Burlington

Riverside, IL 60546

708-447-3222

www.bankriverside.com

North Shore Community Bank &
Trust Company
Wilmette Locations

Main Bank

1145 Wilmette Avenue

Wilmette, IL 60091

847-853-1145

www.nscbank.com

Drive-thru

720 12th Street

Wilmette, IL 60091

4th & Linden Walk-up

351 Linden Ave

Wilmette IL 60091

Glencoe Locations

362 Park Avenue

Glencoe, IL 60022

847-835-1700

Drive-thru

633 Vernon Avenue

Glencoe, IL 60022

Winnetka 

576 Lincoln Ave

Winnetka, IL 60093

847-441-2265

Skokie 

5049 Oakton Street

Skokie, IL 60077

847-933-1900

Libertyville Bank & Trust Company
Libertyville Locations

Main Bank

507 North Milwaukee Avenue

Libertyville, IL 60048

847-367-6800

www.libertyvillebank.com

Drive-thru

201 Hurlburt Court

Libertyville, IL 60048

847-247-4045

South Libertyville

1167 South Milwaukee Avenue

Libertyville, IL 60048

847-367-6800

Wauconda Community Bank

Main Bank

495 West Liberty Street

Wauconda, IL  60084

847-487-2500

www.waucondabank.com

Drive-thru

1180 Dato Lane

Wauconda, IL  60084

847-487-3770

Corporate Locations
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Barrington Bank & Trust Company
Barrington Locations

Main Bank

201 S. Hough Street

Barrington, IL 60010

847-842-4500

www.barringtonbank.com

Mortgage Department

202 S. Cook Street

Barrington, IL  60010

847-842-4674
Community Advantage

202 S. Cook Street

Barrington, IL  60010

847-842-7980

www.community-advantage.com

Hoffman Estates Community Bank

1375 Palatine Road

Hoffman Estates, IL   60195

847-963-9500

www.hecommunitybank.com

Crystal Lake Bank & Trust Company
Crystal Lake Locations

Main Bank

70 N. Williams Street

Crystal Lake, IL 60014

815-479-5200

www.crystallakebank.com

Drive-thru

27 N. Main Street

Crystal Lake, IL 60014

South Crystal Lake 

1000 McHenry Avenue

Crystal Lake, IL 60014

815-479-5715

McHenry Bank & Trust

3322 West Elm Street

McHenry, IL  60050

815-344-6600

www.mchenrybank.com

Northbrook Bank & Trust Company

Main Bank

1100 Waukegan Road

Northbrook, IL 60062

847-418-2800

www.northbrookbank.com

Wintrust Asset Management 
Company

727 North Bank Lane

Lake Forest, IL 60045

847-234-2882

25 East First Street

Hinsdale, IL 60521

630-323-4404

720 12th Street – 2nd Floor

Wilmette, IL 60091

847-853-2093

201 S. Hough Street

Barrington, IL 60010

847-842-4500

1100 Waukegan Road

Northbrook, IL 60062

847-418-2800

Wayne Hummer Investments, L.L.C.

300 South Wacker

Suite 1500

Chicago, IL 60606

312-431-1700

www.whummer.com

200 East Washington St.

Appleton, WI 54911

920-734-1474

Wayne Hummer Management
Company  

300 South Wacker

Suite 1340

Chicago, IL 60606

312-431-1700

www.whmgmtco.com

Focused Investments L.L.C.

300 South Wacker

Suite 1680

Chicago, IL 60606

312-431-1700

www.focusedinvestments.com

First Insurance Funding Corp.

450 Skokie Blvd., Suite 1000

Northbrook, IL 60062

847-374-3000

www.firstinsurancefunding.com

Tricom, Inc. of Milwaukee

11270 West Park Place

Suite 100

Milwaukee, WI  53224

414-410-2200

www.tricom.com

Wintrust Information Technology 
Services Company
851 North Villa Ave.

Villa Park. IL 60181

630-516-4060
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Public Listing and Market Symbol

The Company’s Common Stock is

traded on The Nasdaq Stock Market®

under the symbol WTFC.  The stock

abbreviation appears as “WintrstFnl” in

the Wall Street Journal.

Website Location

The Company maintains a financial

relations internet website at the fol-

lowing location:  www.wintrust.com

Annual Meeting of Shareholders

May 23, 2002

Hyatt Deerfield

1750 Lake Cook Road

Deerfield, Illinois

10:00 A.M.

Form 10-K

The Form 10-K Annual Report to the

Securities and Exchange Commission

will be available to holders of record

upon written request to the Secretary

of the Company.  The information is

also available on the Internet at the

Securities and Exchange Commis-

sion’s website.  The address for the

web site is: http://www.sec.gov.

Transfer Agent

Illinois Stock Transfer Company

209 West Jackson Boulevard

Suite 903

Chicago, Illinois 60606

Telephone: 312-427-2953

Facsimile: 312-427-2879

Primary Market Makers for
Wintrust Financial Corporation
Common Stock

Advest, Inc.

First Union Securities, Inc.

Howe Barnes Investments, Inc.

RBC Dain Rauscher Capital Markets

Sandler O’Neill & Partners

Stifel, Nicolaus & Company, Inc.

U.S. Bancorp Piper Jaffray

William Blair & Co.

Corporate Information


